
 

Page 1 of 698 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2018 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of December 3, 2018. 

Agenda Revisions 

Presentation by a Representative of the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban 
Renewal Plan. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published December 6, 2018) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution determining an area of the City to be a blighted area, and that the rehabilitation, 
conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, of such area is necessary in 
the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area 
as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown 
Development Area Urban Renewal Plan. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 
Urban Renewal Plan. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published December 6, 2018) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Oral comments. 

5. Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that the 
rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, of such area is 
necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the residents of the City; 
designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the Amendment No. 5 
to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

1



 

Page 2 of 698 

6. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the reappointment of Roger White to the 
Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees, term ending 12/31/2024. 

7. Receive and file the City Council Goal Setting Report of November 14, 2018 and November 15, 
2018. 

8. Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to certified lists for the 
following positions: 
a) Administrative Assistant. 
b) Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator I. 

9. Receive and file the FY18 Annual Report of the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Beck's Taproom Grill & Deringer's Public Parlor (f/k/a Noble Oak), 314 Main Street, Class C liquor 
& outdoor service - renewal. 
d) College Square Cinema, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - change in ownership. 
e) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - change in 
ownership. 
 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution establishing the 2019 pay for City of Cedar Falls elected officials, in compliance with the 
City's Code of Ordinances. 

12. Resolution approving and adopting the FY20 City Council Goals & Objectives. 

13. Resolution approving and adopting revised job classifications, in conjunction with the City’s pay plan 
study. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of three leases relative to property vacated by the 
2008 flood buyout programs. 

15. Resolution approving and adopting the recommendation of the Parks & Recreation Commission 
relative to a Recreation Fee Schedule to become effective April 30, 2019. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing placement of a sculpture near the main entrance to City Hall, 
as requested by the Cedar Falls Public Art Committee of the Art & Culture Board. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of five Owner Purchase Agreements and four 
Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting two Public Utility Easements and five 
Owner's Temporary Grading Easements, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction 
Project. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Resource Enhancement and Protection (REAP) 
Grant Agreement-Development with the Iowa Department of Natural Resources relative to the Clay 
Street Park Water Quality Improvement Project. 

19. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 1416 Clay Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

20. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 821 College Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

21. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 1616 Olive Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

2



 

Page 3 of 698 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Informal Project Contract for Demolition with 
Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc., in conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to 2019 Engineering Services. 

24. Resolution setting January 7, 2019 as the date of public hearing on amendments to the City's FY19 
Budget. 

25. Resolution setting January 7, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, 
Agricultural District, to R-1, Residence District, of property located to the north of Arbors Drive and 
west of Richard Road. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

26. Allow Bills and Payroll of December 17, 2018. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, DECEMBER 3, 2018 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52108 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of November 19, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring December 14, 2018 as the 38th 
Annual Cedar Valley Teddy Bear Roundup Day, and Gerald Himes commented. 

 
52109 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of the Mayor 
Pro Tem and Chair of the Administration Committee for 2019. 

 
  Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 

of members to Boards and Commissions:  
a) Susan deBuhr, Board of Appeals, Boards of Electrical, Mechanical & Plumbing 

Appeals, terms ending 12/31/2019.  
 b) Rick Dumler, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2022.  
 c) Steve Broell, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2022.  
 d) Todd Gebhardt, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2022.  
 e) Helen Pearce, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2020.  
  f) Lindsay Pieters, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2020.  
 g) Don Timmerman, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2020.  
 h) Kyle Larson, Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending 11/01/2023. 
 

Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of November 19, 2018 
relative to the following items:  
a) Planning & Zoning Commission Interview - Kyle Larson.  
b) Greater Cedar Valley Alliance Update.  
c) FY2018 Audit Report.  
d) Bills & Payroll. 

 
Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of November 19, 2018. 

 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of October 2018. 

 
Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer. 

4



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
Approve the following applications for liquor licenses:  
a) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C liquor - renewal.  
b) Rancho Chico, 618 Brandilynn Boulevard #104, Class C Liquor - renewal.  
c) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service 

renewal.  
d) The Brown Bottle, 1111 Center Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service -  

renewal.  
e) Urban Pie, 200 State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 1 
 f) Bani's, 2128 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal.  
g) Barmuda Distribution, 6027 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52110 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,351, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed and Flood 
Mitigation Deed Restriction, in Conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood 
Buyout Program.  
 
Resolution #21,352, approving and authorizing execution of eleven leases 
relative to property vacated by the 2008 flood buyout programs.  
 
Resolution #21,353, approving and authorizing execution of an agreement with 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Umpires Association relative to the provisions of umpiring 
services for the 2019-2021 seasons.  
 
Resolution #21,354, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
the Use of the State or Local Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic 
Initiative Program for Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Forces 
(OCDETF) for FY2019.  
 
Resolution #21,355, approving and authorizing execution of five Owner Purchase 
Agreements and three Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and 
accepting two Public Utility Easements and four Owner's Temporary Grading 
Easements, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project.  
 
Resolution #21,356, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Vieth Construction Corporation for the 2017 Permeable Alley Project.  
 
Resolution #21,357, approving and authorizing Change Order No. 3 to the 
contract with Iowa Bridge & Culvert, LC for the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System 
Improvements Project.  
 
Resolution #21,358, approving and authorizing execution of an Easement 
Agreement with Hi Yield, LLC and DBD Investments, LLC for installation and 
maintenance of a private sanitary sewer connection for 924 Viking Road.  

5



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Resolution #21,359, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Six Kids, LLC relative to a post-
construction stormwater management plan for 1402 Technology Parkway.  

 
Resolution #21,360, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement and Permanent Easement Agreement with 
ACOH, LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 
6601 Development Drive.  
 
Resolution #21,361, approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for façade improvements at 209 State Street.  
 
Resolution #21,362, approving and authorizing execution of a Proposal for 
Asbestos Removal and Proposed Form of Contract with Advanced 
Environmental Testing and Abatement, in conjunction with the Northern Cedar 
Falls Flood Buyout Program.  
 
Resolution #21,363, approving a PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District site 
plan for construction of a retail/professional office building at 936 Viking Road.  
 
Resolution #21,364, approving and authorizing execution of a HWY-1 Highway 
Commercial Zoning District Development Agreement with VEREIT Real Estate, 
L.P., Mills Properties, LLC, and Midland Atlantic Development Company, LLC 
relative to a commercial development in the southwest corner of Highway 58 and 
West Ridgeway Avenue.  
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,351 through #21,364 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52111 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,365, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. for the Lakeshore Storm Sewer Analysis, be 
adopted. Following questions by Councilmember Kruse and responses by City 
Engineer Resler and Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,365 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52112 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,366, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Change of Work Order No. 3 to the 
contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. relative to the 2018 Street Construction 
Project, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember deBuhr and 
response by City Engineer Resler, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 

6



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,366 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52113 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,367, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to engineering services, be adopted. Following 
questions by Councilmember deBuhr and responses by Community 
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,367 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52114 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that the bills and payroll be 

allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to 
issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of 
the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried.  

 
52115 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Kruse to refer a request for preparation 

of a proposal and timeline for creation of a Five Year Public Safety Strategic Plan 
to be adopted no later than December 2, 2019. Following a comment by Mayor 
Brown and comments by Councilmembers Blanford, deBuhr, Wieland, Miller, 
Darrah and Green, the motion failed 1-6, with Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah and Wieland voting nay. 

 
52116 - Public Safety Services Director Olson commented that the department will be 

evaluating medical calls received in more depth during the annual review of the 
calls for service at the end of the year. 

 
 Mayor Brown announced grants received from the Black Hawk County Gaming 

Association; $750,000 for the public safety building, $50,000 for the pickleball 
complex, $50,000 for the Co-Lab Library space, and $30,000 for sanitary sewer 
projects. Additionally, $250,000 was awarded to the Place to Play Park. 

 
52117 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Kruse to adjourn to Executive Session 

to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could 
be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental body would have 
to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental body would receive 
for that property, following Public Forum. Upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52118 -  Jenny Van Dorn, 4124 Thresher Court, #304, expressed concerns about Civil 

Service certification and testing of Public Safety Officers. 
 
     Public Safety Director Olson responded to Councilmember Blanford’s inquiry 

about the testing requirements for Public Safety Officers. 

7



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 
     Richard Hinz, 1219 Western Avenue, commented and inquired about reopening 

the fire station in northern Cedar Falls. 
 
     Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, commented on repairing damage caused by 

water drainage.  City Administrator Gaines responded to questions by 
Councilmember Kruse regarding the water drainage and coordination of potential 
options for solutions.  

 
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:54 P.M. 
 

Mayor Brown reconvened the Council Meeting at 8:19 P.M. and stated that 
Property Acquisition had been discussed but that no further action was required 
at this time. 

  
52119 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Green that the meeting be adjourned at 

8:20 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

8



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 
 

 DATE: December 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal 
Plan 

 
At its November 19, 2018 meeting, City Council set a date of consultation and public 
hearing on the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban 
Renewal Plan.  As staff has noted on prior occasions, changes to Urban Renewal 
legislation (TIF) effective July 1, 2012 require that an Urban Renewal Plan Amendment 
be adopted by City Council to address ongoing or new development projects/costs 
proposed within an existing Urban Renewal Area. 
 
The Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan was originally adopted in 1986, 
and has provided financing or partial financing for numerous downtown improvement 
projects over the years. Several amendments have been made to the plan since its 
adoption, including most recently in December of 2017, where a new project was 
identified for funding (Mill Race Center for Entrepreneurship and Innovation). 
 
For the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban 
Renewal Plan (copy attached as Exhibit 1 to Resolution), attention is directed to the 
section titled Proposed Urban Renewal Projects (Amendment No. 5) of the Plan. This 
section identifies a new project that may be funded through the Downtown Urban 
Renewal Plan Amendment No. 5. A visional and zoning code update for downtown 
Cedar Falls, including that portion included in the Downtown Development Area Urban 
Renewal Area. This includes professional services related to developing a detailed 
vision plan and an associated zoning ordinance for downtown Cedar Falls and near 
neighborhoods. 
 
With the above information noted, a copy of the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the 
Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan (Exhibit 1 to the Resolution) is 
attached for your review.  This Amendment No. 5 and related documents were drafted by 
Community Development staff in coordination with the Ahlers Law Office in Des Moines. 
 
 

9



2 
 

It is important to keep in mind that the projects and associated cost estimates are 
maximum expenditures for all potential projects that may occur within the Unified Urban 
Renewal Area over the next 1-5 years.  To the best of our ability, staff is trying to 
identify as many potential future projects to minimize the need for constant plan 
amendments.  However, the reality is that Plan Amendments will likely occur every 
12+/- months to address completed projects and new projects identified through the 
City’s annual CIP process. 
 
Part of the legal requirement for an Urban Renewal Plan Amendment is to notify the 
local taxing entities (in this case Black Hawk County and Cedar Falls School District) 
and conduct a “consultation session” to discuss the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the 
Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan. A copy of the Minutes from the 
November 27, 2018 consultation session is attached along with the meeting agenda. 
 
Prior to entering into any new Development Agreements or proceeding with future 
infrastructure projects within the area, it is required that Amendment No. 5 to the 
Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan be adopted.  The Community 
Development Department recommends that City Council adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution determining an area of the City to be a blighted area, and that the 
rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination 
thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or 
welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for 
urban renewal projects; and adopting the Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown 
Development Area Urban Renewal Plan. 

 

 
If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum, please contact the 
Community Development Department. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Nathan Overberg, Ahlers Law Office 
  
 
 

 
 
 

10



 

 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

December 17, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 

 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan 

 

  Public hearing on the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area 

Urban Renewal Plan 

 

  Resolution determining an area of the City to be a blighted area, and that the 

rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, of 

such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the 

residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and 

adopting the Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal 

Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

 

 

1. The above agenda items should be included, along with any other agenda items, in the 

meeting agenda.  The agenda should be posted on a bulletin board or other prominent 

place easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the 

principal office of the body holding the meeting.  If no such office exists, the notice must 

be posted at the building in which the meeting is to be held. 

 

2. If you do not now have a bulletin board designated as above mentioned, designate one 

and establish a uniform policy of posting your notices of meeting and tentative agenda. 

 

3. Notice and tentative agenda must be posted at least 24 hours prior to the commencement 

of the meeting. 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY.

11



 

ii 

December 17, 2018 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 

session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M., on 

the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the following 

named Council Members: 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

* * * * * * *  

12



 

iii 

This being the time and place fixed for a public hearing on the matter of the adoption of 

the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan, the 

Mayor first asked for the report of the Planner II, or his delegate, with respect to the consultation 

held with the affected taxing entities to discuss the proposed Amendment.  The Council was 

informed that the consultation was duly held as ordered by the Council, and that __________ 

written recommendations were received from affected taxing entities.  The report of the Planner 

II, or his delegate, with respect to the consultation was placed on file for consideration by the 

Council. 

 

The Mayor then asked the City Clerk whether any written objections had been filed with 

respect to the proposed Amendment, and the City Clerk reported that __________ written 

objections thereto had been filed.  The Mayor then called for any oral objections to the adoption 

of the Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan and 

__________ were made.  The public hearing was then closed. 

 

{Attach summary of objections here} 

13



 

iv 

Council Member ____________________ then introduced the following Resolution 

entitled "RESOLUTION DETERMINING AN AREA OF THE CITY TO BE A BLIGHTED 

AREA, AND THAT THE REHABILITATION, CONSERVATION, REDEVELOPMENT, 

DEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, OF SUCH AREA IS NECESSARY IN 

THE INTEREST OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS 

OF THE CITY; DESIGNATING SUCH AREA AS APPROPRIATE FOR URBAN RENEWAL 

PROJECTS; AND ADOPTING AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE DOWNTOWN 

DEVELOPMENT AREA URBAN RENEWAL PLAN" and moved: 

 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 

 

 to defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to the meeting to be 

held at __________ _____.M. on the __________ day of __________, 

2018, at this place. 

 

Council Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and the 

vote was, 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the measure duly adopted. 

 

14



 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 

 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING AN AREA OF THE CITY TO 

BE A BLIGHTED AREA, AND THAT THE 

REHABILITATION, CONSERVATION, REDEVELOPMENT, 

DEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, OF 

SUCH AREA IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR WELFARE OF THE 

RESIDENTS OF THE CITY; DESIGNATING SUCH AREA AS 

APPROPRIATE FOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS; AND 

ADOPTING AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE DOWNTOWN 

DEVELOPMENT AREA URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 7418, adopted November 24, 1986, this City Council 

found and determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be 

designated as an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Plan (the "Urban Renewal Plan" or "Plan") for the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan Area (the "Urban Renewal Area" or "Area") 

described therein, which Plan, as amended, is on file in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk 

County; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 12,795, adopted May 14, 2001, this City Council 

approved and adopted an Amendment No. 1 to the Downtown Development Area Urban 

Renewal Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 18,165, adopted July 16, 2012, this City Council 

approved and adopted an Amendment No. 2 to the Downtown Development Area Urban 

Renewal Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 18,837, adopted November 11, 2013, this City Council 

approved and adopted an Amendment No. 3 to the Downtown Development Area Urban 

Renewal Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 20,864, adopted December 18, 2017, this City Council 

approved and adopted an Amendment No. 4 to the Downtown Development Area Urban 

Renewal Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, this Urban Renewal Area currently includes and consists of: 

 

ORIGINAL AREA 

 

That portion of Sec. 12 T89N R14W of the 5
th

 P.M. in the City of Cedar Falls, 

County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

15



 

2 

Beginning at the intersection of the east line of Franklin St. and the north line of 

Seventh St.; thence North on the east line of Franklin St. to the north line of First 

St. (formerly Hwy. 20); thence East on the north line of First St. to the extended 

west line of Washington Street; thence north on the extended west line of 

Washington St. to the centerline of the Chicago, Central and Pacific Railroad 

(C.C. & P.R.R.); thence Northeasterly on the centerline of the C.C. & P.R.R. to 

the southwesterly bank of the Cedar River; thence Southeasterly on the 

Southwesterly bank of the Cedar River to the extended east line of the NW ¼  SE 

¼ Sec. 12-89-14; thence South on the extended east line of the NW ¼ SE ¼ to the 

north line of Seventh St.; thence West on the north line of Seventh St. to the place 

of beginning; exc. Blk. 7 Garrison & Dean's Add.; also exc. all of Fifth St. from 

the east line of Main St. to the east line of the NW ¼ SE ¼ Sec. 12-89-14; all as 

shown on the map attached herewith and made a part hereof. 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 AREA 

 

Blk. 7 Garrison & Dean's Add.; also all of Fifth St. from the east line of Main St. 

to the east line of the NW ¼ SE ¼ Sec. 12-89-14; and  

 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 AREA 

 

Amendment No. 2 added no real property to the Area; and 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 3 AREA 

 

Area A. Beginning at the intersection of the East line of Franklin Street and the 

North line of West 1st Street; thence North along said East line of 

Franklin Street to the centerline of the Canadian National Railway 

Company (formerly the Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad); thence 

Easterly and Northeasterly along said centerline to the Northerly 

extension of the West line of Washington Street; thence South along the 

Northerly extension of said West line to the North line of West 1st 

Street; thence West along said North line to the point of beginning. 

 

Area B. Beginning on the East line of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast 

Quarter of Section 12-89-14 at its intersection with the North line of 

East 7th Street; thence North along said East line to the Southwesterly 

bank of the Cedar River; thence Southeasterly along said Southwesterly 

bank to the Easterly extension of the North line of East 7th Street; 

thence West along the Easterly extension of said Northerly line a 

distance of 600 feet; thence Southwesterly to the intersection of the 

Northeasterly line of the Iowa Northern Railroad Company (formerly 

the Chicago, Rock Island and Pacific Railroad) with the Easterly 

extension of the North line of Lot 3, Block 1 of Garrison's Addition to 

Cedar Falls, Iowa; thence Southeasterly along said Northeasterly line to 

the Easterly extension of the South line of East 9th Street; thence West 

16



 

3 

along the Easterly extension of said South line to the Northeasterly line 

of the Northwestern Transportation Company (formerly the Wisconsin, 

Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company and later the Chicago, Great 

Western Railroad Company); thence Southeasterly along said 

Northeasterly line to the Easterly extension of the South line of East 

11th Street; thence West along the Easterly extension of said South line 

to the Northeast corner of Lot 1, Block 1 in T. Mullarky's Addition to 

Cedar Falls, Iowa (part vacated); thence North along the Southerly 

extension of the East line of Block 2 and the East line of Block 2 in T. 

Mullarky's Addition to Cedar Falls, Iowa (part vacated) to the Northeast 

corner of said Block 2; thence West along the North line of said Block 

2 13 feet; thence North along a line which is 13 feet West of a parallel 

with the Northerly extension of said East line of Block 2 to the South 

line of East 9th Street; thence Northwesterly parallel with the 

Southwesterly line of the Northwestern Transportation Company to the 

intersection with a line which is 43 feet normally distant Southwesterly 

and parallel with the Southwesterly line of the Iowa Northern Railroad 

Company; thence Northwesterly parallel with said Southwesterly line 

to the North line of East 7th Street; thence East along said North line to 

point of beginning; and 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 4 AREA 

 

Amendment No. 4 added no real property to the Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, a proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Plan ("Amendment No. 5" or 

"Amendment") for the Urban Renewal Area described above has been prepared, which proposed 

Amendment has been on file in the office of the City Clerk and which is incorporated herein by 

reference, the purpose of which is to add and/or confirm the list of proposed urban renewal 

projects to be undertaken within the Urban Renewal Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, this proposed Amendment No. 5 adds no new land to the Urban Renewal 

Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the Area be redeveloped as part of the activities described 

within the proposed Amendment No. 5; and 

 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted on November 19, 2018, this Council directed that a 

consultation be held with the designated representatives of all affected taxing entities to discuss 

the proposed Amendment No. 5 and the division of revenue described therein, and that notice of 

the consultation and a copy of the proposed Amendment No. 5 be sent to all affected taxing 

entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such notice, the consultation was duly held as ordered by the 

City Council and all required responses to the recommendations made by the affected taxing 

entities, if any, have been timely made as set forth in the report of the Planner II, or his delegate, 

17



 

4 

filed herewith and incorporated herein by this reference, which report is in all respects approved; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, by resolution this Council also set a public hearing on the adoption of the 

proposed Amendment No. 5 for this meeting of the Council, and due and proper notice of the 

public hearing was given, as provided by law, by timely publication in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, which notice set forth the time and place for this hearing and the nature and purpose 

thereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the notice, all persons or organizations desiring to be 

heard on the proposed Amendment No. 5, both for and against, have been given an opportunity 

to be heard with respect thereto and due consideration has been given to all comments and views 

expressed to this Council in connection therewith and the public hearing has been closed. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

 

Section 1. That the findings and conclusions set forth or contained in Amendment No. 5 

concerning the area of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the preamble hereof, 

be and the same are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects as the findings of this Council 

for this area. 

Section 2. This Council further finds: 

a) Although relocation is not expected, a feasible method exists for the relocation 

of any families who will be displaced from the Urban Renewal Area into decent, safe and 

sanitary dwelling accommodations within their means and without undue hardship to 

such families; 

b) The Plan, as amended, and Amendment No. 5 conform to the general plan for 

the development of the City as a whole; and 

c) Acquisition by the City is not immediately expected, however, as to any areas 

of open land to be acquired by the City included within the Urban Renewal Area: 

i.  Residential use is not expected, however, with reference to any portions 

thereof which are to be developed for residential uses, this City Council hereby 

determines that a shortage of housing of sound standards and design with 

decency, safety and sanitation exists within the City; that the acquisition of the 

area for residential uses is an integral part of and essential to the program of the 

municipality; and that one or more of the following conditions exist: 

a. That the need for housing accommodations has been or will be 

increased as a result of the clearance of slums in other areas, including 

other portions of the urban renewal area. 

18



 

5 

b. That conditions of blight in the municipality and the shortage of 

decent, safe and sanitary housing cause or contribute to an increase in and 

spread of disease and crime, so as to constitute a menace to the public 

health, safety, morals, or welfare. 

c. That the provision of public improvements related to housing 

and residential development will encourage housing and residential 

development which is necessary to encourage the retention or relocation of 

industrial and commercial enterprises in this state and its municipalities. 

d. The acquisition of the area is necessary to provide for the 

construction of housing for low and moderate income families. 

ii. Non-residential use is expected and with reference to those portions 

thereof which are to be developed for non-residential uses, such non-residential 

uses are necessary and appropriate to facilitate the proper growth and 

development of the City in accordance with sound planning standards and local 

community objectives. 

Section 3. That the Urban Renewal Area, as amended, continues to be a blighted area 

within the meaning of Iowa Code Chapter 403; that such area is eligible for designation as an 

urban renewal area and otherwise meets all requisites under the provisions of Chapter 403 of the 

Code of Iowa; and that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development, or a 

combination thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or 

welfare of the residents of this City. 

Section 4. That Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal 

Plan of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated 

herein by reference, be and the same is hereby approved and adopted as "Amendment No. 5 to 

the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan for the City of Cedar Falls, State of 

Iowa"; Amendment No. 5, including all of the exhibits attached thereto, is hereby in all respects 

approved; and the City Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of Amendment No. 5 with 

the proceedings of this meeting. 

Section 5. That, notwithstanding any resolution, ordinance, plan, amendment or any other 

document, Amendment No. 5 shall be in full force and effect from the date of this Resolution 

until the Council amends or repeals the Plan.  The proposed Amendment No. 5 shall be forthwith 

certified by the City Clerk, along with a copy of this Resolution, to the Recorder for Black Hawk  

County, Iowa, to be filed and recorded in the manner provided by law. 

Section 6. That all other provisions of the Plan not affected or otherwise revised by the 

terms of Amendment No. 5, as well as all resolutions previously adopted by this City Council 

related to the Plan be and the same are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all respects. 

19



 

6 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

Label the Amendment as Exhibit 1 (with all exhibits) and attach it to this Resolution. 

 

20



 

FINAL 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

 

 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 5 

 

TO THE 

 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AREA 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

 

 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 
 

Original Area Adopted – November 1986 

Amendment No. 1 – May 2001 

Amendment No. 2– July 2012 

Amendment No. 3– November 2013 

Amendment No. 4 – December 2017 

Amendment No. 5 – December 2018 

21



 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 5 

to the 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AREA 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 The Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan") for the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal Area") was originally 

adopted in 1986 and has been amended by Amendment No. 1 in May 2001, Amendment No. 2 in 

July 2012, Amendment No. 3 in November 2013, and Amendment No. 4 in December 2017.  

This Plan is being further amended to add to and/or confirm the list of proposed urban renewal 

projects to be undertaken within the Urban Renewal Area by this Amendment No. 5 to the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan (“Amendment”).   

 

The Original Area and each amendment area are referred to as subareas in this 

Amendment. The subareas make up the Urban Renewal Area.  No change is being made to the 

property within the Original Area or subareas. 

  

 Except as modified by this Amendment, the provisions of the original Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Plan, as previously amended, are hereby ratified, confirmed 

and approved and shall remain in full force and effect as provided herein.  In case of any conflict 

or uncertainty, the terms of this Amendment No. 5 shall control. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 

Under this amendment, there is no new property being added to the Urban Renewal Area. 

For illustrative purposes and reader convenience, the Downtown Development Area Urban 

Renewal Area map is attached to this Amendment as Exhibit A. 

 

DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 

 With the adoption of this Amendment No. 5, the City of Cedar Falls will continue to 

designate the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area as appropriate for blight 

remediation.  The rationale for the Area Designation is the remediation, stabilization, and 

removal of blight, and the return of properties to useful condition for public facilities or private 

development, which private development of commercial, retail and/or residential projects would 

generate increased taxable valuation. 

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

The City of Cedar Falls has a general plan for the physical development of the City, as a 

whole, designated as the “Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan” adopted in May 2012. The Plan, as 

amended, and including this Amendment No. 5, is in conformity with the Cedar Falls 

Comprehensive Plan. The urban renewal projects as restated in Amendment No. 5 also are 

consistent with the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan. 

 

22



 

 

This Amendment No. 5 does not change or in any way replace the City’s current land use 

planning or zoning regulations process. 

 

Any urban renewal projects related to the need for improved traffic, public transportation, 

public utilities, recreational and community facilities, or other public improvements within the 

Area are set forth in this Plan, as amended. As the Area develops, the need for public 

infrastructure extensions and upgrades will be evaluated and planned for by the City. 

 

PROJECT OBJECTIVES 

 

Objectives for development within the Area remain as stated in the original Plan, as 

previously amended. 

 

TYPES OF RENEWAL ACTIVITIES 

 

The Types of Renewal Activities within the Area remain as stated in the original Plan, as 

previously amended. 

 

PREVIOUS URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 

Several Urban Renewal Projects were authorized prior to July 1, 2012, and are 

continuing.   

 

EXISTING URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 

 

The following items have been previously approved by the adoption of Amendment No. 3 to the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan in 2013 and are continuing: 

 

1. Public Improvements:   
 

Project 

 

 

 

Estimated 

Date 

Estimated cost to 

be Reimbursed 

by Incremental 

Tax Revenues 

Rationale 

 

Downtown Flood Protection:  After the 

historic flooding that occurred in June of 

2008, the City of Cedar Falls decided that 

increasing the protection level of the 

downtown flood levee and floodwall system 

was one of the highest priorities for the 

City.  The 2008 flood event exceeded the 

design for the existing levee system; but 

with the assistance of emergency flood 

fighting procedures, the protection was not 

 

2013-2025 

 

$8,000,000 

 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

23



 

 

overtopped.  The intent of this project is to 

increase the level of protection for the City 

to the 500-year level of protection.  

Increasing the flood protection levels for the 

City will require additional levee and/or 

floodwall extensions, modifications to 

existing storm sewer gatewells, 

modifications to closure structures 

(pedestrian and street openings), and 

modification to areas with sandbag closure 

plans along with related levee/flood wall 

improvements and amenities.   

 

Construction of future public infrastructure 

and improvements within the Urban 

Renewal Plan Area including but not 

limited to new and reconstructed roadways, 

alleys, sidewalks, parking lots or structures, 

recreation trails, lighting, and other public 

amenities. 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$2,500,000 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

Infrastructure tied to new or reconstructed 

roadways and alleys including but not 

limited to water, sanitary sewer, storm 

sewer, gas, electric, and communications. 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$1,500,000 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

Consulting, engineering, design and 

inspection costs for future roadway and 

infrastructure projects within the Urban 

Renewal Area. 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$700,000 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

    

24



 

 

 

 

Traffic, site development and parking 

related studies tied to any roadway or 

parking lot/structure improvement project or 

projects. 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

 

$150,000 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

2. Development Agreements:  Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities Development Agreement 

 

 

Additional electrical production, 

distribution and transmission including but 

not limited to burying lines, relocating lines, 

and other items necessary to accommodate 

future development and growth within the 

Urban Renewal Area. 

 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$1,200,000 

 

 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

 

Additional gas utility installation (new and 

relocated) necessary to accommodate future 

development and growth within the Urban 

Renewal Area. 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$100,000 

 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

25



 

 

 

Additional water utility installation (new 

and relocated) necessary to accommodate 

future development and growth within the 

Urban Renewal Area. 

 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$ 200,000 

 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

 

Additional communications utility or 

utilities (new or relocated) necessary to 

accommodate future development and 

growth within the Urban Renewal Area. 

 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$ 250,000 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

 

Total 

  

$1,750,000 
 

 

 

3. Other Development Agreements 

 

Tax Rebate or Other Incentive 

Agreements: 

 

   

 

Tax Rebate or other Incentive Agreements 

for future City Council approved 

agreements. One potential development 

agreement is proposed for the city –owned 

annex (Historic Post Office).  See further 

information under Public Building Analysis 

below. 

 

2013-2025 

 

$1,000,000 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

 

 

26



 

 

4. Land Acquisition 

 

 

City land acquisitions to accommodate 

urban renewal projects and job creation 

within the Urban Renewal Area    

 

2013-2025 

 

$2,000,000 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation 

 

5 City Personnel Costs and other Administrative Costs to Support Urban Renewal 

Projects and Planning 

 

 

Staffing related expenses (including but not 

limited to salary and benefits) incurred by 

Community Services, Engineering, and 

Planning Services Divisions personnel tied 

to supporting urban renewal projects within 

the Urban Renewal Area. 

 

 

2013-2025 

 

$400,000 

 

Administrative expenses 

necessary to promote, 

support and complete urban 

renewal projects. 

 

 

Legal, consulting, abstracting, recording, 

publication, and other miscellaneous fees 

associated with urban renewal projects 

occurring within the Urban Renewal Area.   

 

2013-2025 

 

$200,000 

 

 

 Administrative expenses 

necessary to promote, 

support and complete urban 

renewal projects. 

 

 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 4 

The following item has been previously approved by the adoption of Amendment No. 4 to the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan in 2017 and is continuing: 

  

 

Project 

 

 

 

Estimated 

Date 

Estimated cost to 

be Reimbursed 

by Incremental 

Tax Revenues 

Rationale 

 

Grant Agreement with Mill Race Center for 

Entrepreneurship and Innovation (Mill Race 

Center): The purpose of the Mill Race 

 

2018-2025 

 

$200,000 

 

 

The City’s support of the 

Mill Race Center will allow 

the Mill Race Center to 

27



 

 

Center is to provide resources and 

programming to improve the local business 

environment and support available for 

entrepreneurship and innovation in Cedar 

Falls. The City, along with other 

constituents, will provide grants to the Mill 

Race Center who will use the funds to 

increase commercial and entrepreneurial 

activity in the Area, which will in turn help 

remediate blighting influences. 

increase commercial and 

entrepreneurial activity in 

the Area, which will in turn 

help remediate blighting 

influences. 

 

 

PROPOSED URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS  

(AMENDMENT NO. 5) 

 

 Although certain project activities may occur over a period of several years, in addition to 

the projects previously proposed in the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan, as 

previously amended, the Proposed Urban Renewal Projects under this Amendment include: 

 

Project 

 

 

 

Estimated 

Date 

Estimated cost to 

be Reimbursed 

by Incremental 

Tax Revenues 

Rationale 

 

Visioning and Zoning Code Update for 

Downtown Cedar Falls, including that 

portion included in the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Area. 

This includes professional services related 

to developing a detailed vision plan and an 

associated zoning ordinance for Downtown 

Cedar Falls and near neighborhoods.  

 

2018-2021 

 

$250,000 

 

(Representing 

that portion of the 

total costs 

associated with 

planning for the 

Urban Renewal 

Area) 

 

 

Remediation, stabilization, 

and removal of blight, and 

the return of properties to 

useful condition for public 

facilities or private 

development, which private 

development of commercial, 

retail and/or residential 

projects would generate 

increased taxable valuation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



 

 

 

DEBT 

 

1. Constitutional debt limit: $151,911,983 

 

 

2. Current outstanding general obligation debt: $9,740,000 

 

3. Proposed amount of indebtedness to be incurred:  A 

specific amount of debt to be incurred for the Proposed 

Urban Renewal Projects (Amendment No. 5) has not yet 

been determined.  This document is merely for planning 

purposes.  The estimated project costs in this 

Amendment are estimates only and will be incurred and 

spent over a number of years.  In no event will the City’s 

constitutional debt limit be exceeded.  The City Council 

will consider each project proposal on a case-by-case 

basis to determine if it is in the City’s best interest to 

participate before approving an urban renewal project or 

expense.  It is further expected that such indebtedness, 

including interest on the same, may be financed in whole 

or in part with tax increment revenues from the Urban 

Renewal Area.  Subject to the foregoing, it is estimated 

that the cost of the Proposed Urban Renewal Projects as 

described above will be approximately as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$ 250,000 

 

 

PROPERTY ACQUISITION/DISPOSITION 

 

The City will follow any applicable requirements for the acquisition and disposition of 

property. 

 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 

 

The Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan may be amended from time to 

time for a variety of reasons, including but not limited to, change in the area, to add or change 

land use controls and regulations, to modify goals or types of renewal activities, to add or change 

renewal projects, or to amend property acquisition and disposition provisions. The City Council 

may amend the Plan in accordance with applicable state law. 

 

EFFECTIVE PERIOD 

 

This Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan will 

become effective upon its adoption by the City Council.  Notwithstanding anything to the 

contrary in the Plan, any prior amendment, resolution, or document, the Downtown Development 

29



 

 

Area Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, shall remain in effect until terminated by the City 

Council 

 

The use of incremental property tax revenues in the Area, or the "division of revenue," as 

those words are used in Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, will be consistent with Chapter 403 of 

the Iowa Code. Specifically, the division of revenues shall continue in the Area for the maximum 

period allowed by law.   

 

The Urban Renewal Area (and all sub areas) has no statutorily required sunset because 

the Area is designated as appropriate for blight remediation. Therefore, the collection of 

incremental tax revenues within the Urban Renewal Area shall continue until terminated by the 

City Council.   

 

REPEALER 

 

Any parts of the Plan, as previously amended, in conflict with this Amendment are 

hereby repealed. 

 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

 

If any part of the Amendment is determined to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 

invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of the previously adopted Plan as a 

whole or the previous amendments to the Plan, or any part of the Plan not determined to be 

invalid or unconstitutional.  

  

30



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Maps of Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 

 
01538714-1\10283-164 

33



34



35



36



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 
 

 DATE: December 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Plan 

 
At its November 17, 2018 meeting, City Council set a date of consultation and public 
hearing on the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 
Corridor Urban Renewal Plan.  As staff has noted on prior occasions, changes to Urban 
Renewal legislation (TIF) effective July 1, 2012 require that an Urban Renewal Plan 
Amendment be adopted by City Council to address ongoing or new development 
projects/costs proposed within an existing Urban Renewal Area. 
 
In December 2012 the Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 
Corridor Urban Renewal Plan was adopted.  As City Council may recall, Unified Plan 
Amendment No. 1 “linked” the existing Cedar Falls Industrial Park to the Northern Cedar 
Falls Industrial Park using the Highway 58 Corridor as the linkage conduit.  The primary 
objectives of establishing Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 
Corridor Urban Renewal Plan were: 
 

1. To link the two Industrial Park areas so the City could maximize the use of 
incremental tax revenue and more quickly pay off debt. 
 

2. To complete and plan for infrastructure projects (both City and CFU) within the 
Highway 58 Corridor including proposed major future improvements at the 
Highway 58/Viking Road intersection. 
 

Most recently, in May of 2018, the Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan was adopted. The primary objectives of 
establishing Amendment No. 4 were to remove several projects that have been 
completed and to update the cost estimate of another project that is already in the Plan, 
remove a portion of the area from the Plan that recently met its sunset date in regards 
to the 20 year lifespan that this area has (per State Code), and to add several areas of 
right-of-way along Viking Road in order to better connect all of the areas within the Plan. 
 

37



2 
 

For the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 
Urban Renewal Plan (copy attached as Exhibit 1 to Resolution), the primary objective is 
to add property to the Urban Renewal Area and to update and modify the status and 
budget figures of certain previously identified projects within the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
With the above information noted, a copy of the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar 
Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan (Exhibit 1 to the Resolution) is 
attached for your review. Also attached within the plan is a map that shows the area being 
added. This Amendment No. 5 and related documents were drafted by Community 
Development staff in coordination with the Ahlers Law Office in Des Moines. 
 
It is important to keep in mind that the projects and associated cost estimates are 
maximum expenditures for all potential projects that may occur within the Unified Urban 
Renewal Area over the next 1-5 years.  To the best of our ability, staff is trying to 
identify as many potential future projects to minimize the need for constant plan 
amendments.  However, the reality is that Plan Amendments will likely occur every 
12+/- months to address completed projects and new projects identified through the 
City’s annual CIP process. 
 
Part of the legal requirement for an Urban Renewal Plan Amendment is to notify the 
local taxing entities (in this case Black Hawk County, Cedar Falls School District and 
Dike-New Hartford School District) and conduct a “consultation session” to discuss the 
proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Plan. A copy of the Minutes from the November 27, 2018 consultation session 
is attached along with the meeting agenda. 
 
Prior to entering into any new Development Agreements or proceeding with future 
infrastructure projects within the area, it is required that Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar 
Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan be adopted.  The Community 
Development Department recommends that City Council adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, 
and that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a 
combination thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, 
safety or welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area as 
appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the Amendment No. 5 to 
the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum, please contact the 
Community Development Department. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
           Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 Nathan Overberg, Ahlers Law Office 

 

38



39



40



41



 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

December 17, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 

 

Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

 

  Public hearing on the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 

58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

 

  Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that 

the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, 

of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the 

residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and 

adopting the Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

 

 

1. The above agenda items should be included, along with any other agenda items, in the 

meeting agenda.  The agenda should be posted on a bulletin board or other prominent 

place easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the 

principal office of the body holding the meeting.  If no such office exists, the notice must 

be posted at the building in which the meeting is to be held. 

 

2. If you do not now have a bulletin board designated as above mentioned, designate one 

and establish a uniform policy of posting your notices of meeting and tentative agenda. 

 

3. Notice and tentative agenda must be posted at least 24 hours prior to the commencement 

of the meeting. 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

42



ii 

December 17, 2018 

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 

session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M., on 

the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the following 

named Council Members: 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

* * * * * * *  

43



iii 

This being the time and place fixed for a public hearing on the matter of the adoption of 

the proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Plan, the Mayor first asked for the report of the Planner II, or his delegate, with respect to the 

consultation held with the affected taxing entities to discuss the proposed Plan.  The Council was 

informed that the consultation was duly held as ordered by the Council, and that __________ 

written recommendations were received from affected taxing entities.  The report of the Planner 

II, or his delegate, with respect to the consultation was placed on file for consideration by the 

Council. 

 

The Mayor then asked the City Clerk whether any written objections had been filed with 

respect to the proposed Amendment, and the City Clerk reported that __________ written 

objections thereto had been filed.  The Mayor then called for any oral objections to the adoption 

of the Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

and __________ were made.  The public hearing was then closed. 

 

{Attach summary of objections here} 

44



iv 

Council Member ____________________ then introduced the following Resolution 

entitled "RESOLUTION DETERMINING AN AREA OF THE CITY TO BE AN ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT AREA, AND THAT THE REHABILITATION, CONSERVATION, 

REDEVELOPMENT, DEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, OF SUCH 

AREA IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR 

WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE CITY; DESIGNATING SUCH AREA AS 

APPROPRIATE FOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS; AND ADOPTING AMENDMENT 

NO. 5 TO THE CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

PLAN" and moved: 

 

 that the Resolution be adopted. 

 

 to defer action on the Resolution and the proposal to the meeting to be 

held at __________ _____.M. on the __________ day of __________, 

2018, at this place. 

 

Council Member ____________________ seconded the motion.  The roll was called and the 

vote was, 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the measure duly adopted. 

 

45



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 

 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING AN AREA OF THE CITY TO 

BE AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AREA, AND THAT THE 

REHABILITATION, CONSERVATION, REDEVELOPMENT, 

DEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, OF 

SUCH AREA IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR WELFARE OF THE 

RESIDENTS OF THE CITY; DESIGNATING SUCH AREA AS 

APPROPRIATE FOR URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS; AND 

ADOPTING AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE CEDAR FALLS 

UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

PLAN 

 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 8196, adopted November 12, 1990, this Council 

found and determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be 

designated as an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Cedar 

Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban 

Renewal Area (the “Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area”) described therein, which was 

subsequently amended by Resolution No. 10,224, adopted November 13, 1995, and by 

Resolution No. 13,862, adopted November 17, 2003; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 16,631, adopted September 28, 2009, this Council 

found and determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be 

designated as an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Cedar 

Falls Northern Industrial Park Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls Northern Industrial 

Park Urban Renewal Area (the “Northern Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area”) described 

therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area and the Northern Industrial 

Park Urban Renewal Area were combined and renamed the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 

58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (the “Unified Urban Renewal Area”) by Amendment No. 

1 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan (the “Plan”) by 

Resolution No. 18,377, adopted December 10, 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 19,263, adopted November 3, 2014, this Council 

approved and adopted the Amendment No. 2 to the Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 19,963, adopted April 18, 2016, this City Council 

approved and adopted an Amendment No. 3 to the Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 21,079 , adopted May 7, 2018, this City Council 

approved and adopted an Amendment No. 4 to the Plan; and  

46



2 

 

WHEREAS, this Unified Urban Renewal Area currently includes and consists of: 

 

Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1990) 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

and 

 

Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area 

Amendment No. 1 (1995) 

 

All of Sections 35 and 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. 

and that part of Sections 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth 

P.M. lying North of U.S. Highway No. 20. 

 

And also that part of the West 2 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth P.M. lying West of Iowa Highway No. 58. 

 

And also that part of the East 2 of the southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. described as beginning at the East 1/4 

corner of said Section 26; thence Southwest to the Southeast corner of Viking 

Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of 

the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26; thence East to the Southeast corner of said 

Section 26; thence North to the point of beginning. 

 

Except that portion described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

47



3 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

Section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

and 

 
Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area  

Amendment No. 2 (2003) 

 

The Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) and the North One-half (N1/2) of the North One-

half (N1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., 

Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the following described parcels: 

 

Parcel 1:  The East Eight Hundred Forty-three (843) feet of the West One 

Thousand Eighty-three (1,083) feet of the North Five Hundred Fifty (550) feet of 

the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine 

(89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; 

 

Parcel 2:  The West Two Hundred Forty (240) feet of the North Five Hundred 

Fifty (550) feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. 

Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 

 

Parcel 3:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of the said Section 34; thence 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East, on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, 70.00 feet, to the point of beginning; thence continuing 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34, 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 13 

seconds West, 85.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds West, 

1,888.00 feet, to the present South right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 

89 degrees 19 minutes 13 seconds East, on the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road, 85.00 feet, to the point of beginning. The East line of the Northeast 

48



4 

Quarter of said Section 34 is assumed to bear South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 

seconds East for the purpose of this description, and 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; thence continuing 

South 0039’19” East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a 

distance of 1,888.00 feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; 

thence North 0039’19” West a distance of 1,888.00 feet to the present South 

right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 8919’13” East on the present 

South right-of-way line of Viking Road a distance of 85.00 feet to the point of 

beginning; containing 3.68 acres. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; thence North 

8054’49” West a distance of 218.13 feet to the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road; thence North 0040’47” West a distance of 33.00 feet to the North 

line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34; thence North 8919’13” East on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 300.00 feet to the 

point of beginning; containing 0.39 acre, of which 0.23 acre is within existing 

road right-of-way. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

 

and 

 
Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area - 2009 

 

That part of Section 6 and Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 West and that 

part of Section 31, Township 90 North, Range 13 West of the Fifth P.M. in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa described as beginning at the 

Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence Southerly 

49



5 

along the East line of said Southeast Quarter to the Southeast corner of said 

Southeast Quarter; thence continue Southerly along the East line of said Section 6 

to the Southeast corner of said Section 6; thence continue Southerly along the 

East line of said Section 7 to the South Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; 

thence Westerly along said South Right-of-way line to the Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along said Easterly Right-of-way line 

to the Easterly Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along 

said Easterly Right-of-way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said 

Section 31; Thence Easterly along said North line to the point of beginning. 

 

and 

 

Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls  

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 
South of the present North Right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa.  

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County 

of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence Northerly on the 

East line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

Road to the East line of GENCOM Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said East line and the Southerly prolongation of 

said East line to the South line of said Section 25; Thence Easterly on said South 

line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

 

50



6 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

said Section 26; Thence Northerly on the East line of the Southwest 1/4 of the 

Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the present North Right-of-way line of West 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of  West 

Viking Road to the present East Right-of-way line of Hudson Road; Thence South 

on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., to the South line of said Section 26; Thence 

Easterly on said South line to the point of Beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 

described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., City of Cedar Falls, County of Black 

Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, Thence 

Westerly on the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, a distance of 

270.00 feet; Thence northerly to the Southeast corner of Greenhill Village Fourth 

Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly 

on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village Fourth Addition to the Southeasterly 

corner of Greenhill Village Sixth Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village 

Sixth Addition to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26; Thence 

Southerly on said East line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From Viking Road to the North line of Sections 25 Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M. (Greenhill Road), described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence westerly on the 

South line of said Section 25, a distance of 1878.5 feet to the point of beginning 

of the parcel of land herein described; Thence Northerly on a line that is normal to 

the South line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East 

51



7 

Viking Road to the Southwest corner of Blain’s Corner, an official plat in the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Southwest of Blain’s Corner is on the present North 

Right-of-way line of East Viking Road); Thence Northerly and Northwesterly and 

Northerly on the West line of said Blain’s Corner to the Northwest corner of said 

Blain’s Corner; Thence Westerly on the Westerly prolongation of the North line 

of said Blain’s Corner and the North line of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase III, 

an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northwesterly and Northerly and 

Northeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, to 

the present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence Easterly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the Northwesterly Right-of-

way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property; 

Thence Northeasterly on said Northwesterly Right-of-way line to the North line 

of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of 

the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on said North line to the present Westerly Right-

of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southerly and Southeasterly and 

Southerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

South line of said Section 25; thence Easterly on the South line of said Section 25 

to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (Greenhill Road) to the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 

14 West of the 5th P.M. (University Avenue), described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former 

Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property and the North line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Westerly on said North line to the Northeast corner of Section 26, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the Southerly prolongation of 

the West line of the East 40 acres of the East 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Northerly on said 

West line to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the present 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly on the 

present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of the 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Easterly on said North line to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill 

Road; Thence Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road 

to the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western 

Railway Company property; Thence Southwesterly on the Northwesterly Right-

of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property to 

52



8 

the point of beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (University Avenue) to the Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. and the Southerly 

prolongation of a line that is 100.00 feet West of and parallel with the West line 

of Lot 45 in Fairvalley Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

Thence Northerly on the Southerly prolongation of said parallel line and said 

parallel line to the present North Right-of-way line of University Avenue; Thence 

Easterly on the North Right-of-way line of University Avenue to the present 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present South Right-of-

way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-

of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the West 

line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition; Thence Northerly on the Northerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition to the present 

North Right-of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the 

present North Right-of-way line of east Seerley Boulevard to the present East 

Right-of-way line of Main Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-

way line of Main Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street and its Easterly prolongation to the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58 to the East line of Taylor 2nd Addition, an official plat in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on said East line to the South line of 

Block 16 in said Taylor 2nd Addition; Thence Westerly on said South line to the 

East line of the West 1/2 of said Block 16; Thence Northerly on said East line to 

the present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street; Thence Westerly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street to the present East Right-of-

way line of State Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-way line 

of State Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street to the present 

East Right-of-way line of Bluff Street; Thence Northerly on the present East 

Right-of-way line of Bluff Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 

14th Court; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 14th 

Court to the West line of Behrens’ Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said West line to the South line of said Behrens’ 

Addition; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Behrens’ Addition, 34.50 feet 

to the Southwesterly corner of the parcel of land described in City Lot Deed Book 

619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office; Thence 

53



9 

Northeasterly on the Northwesterly line of the parcel of land described in City Lot 

Deed Book 619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s 

Office and its Northeasterly prolongation to the present Northeasterly Right-of-

way line of Waterloo Road; Thence Northwesterly on the present Northeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road to the present Southeasterly Right-of-way 

line of Utility Parkway; Thence Northeasterly on the present Southeasterly Right-

of-way line of Utility Parkway to the point of intersection of the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Utility Parkway and the Southerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 6 of Block 6 in T. Mullarky’s Addition (part 

vacated), an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on the 

Southerly prolongation of the West line of said Lot 6 to the Southwesterly corner 

of said Lot 6; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Lot 6 to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of the Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later 

the Chicago, Great Western Railway Company now the Northwestern 

Transportation Company); Thence Northerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of 

the former Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later the Chicago, 

Great Western Railway Company now the former Northwestern Transportation 

Company) to the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street to the present 

Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s 

property; Thence Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property to the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-

of-way line of Grand Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-

way line of Grand Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the present West 

Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the Northerly prolongation 

of the present West Right-of-way line of East Street and the West Right-of-way 

line of East Street to the Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa 

Highway 58 to the present Northeasterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; 

Thence continuing Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of Lot 534 in Pacific Addition, an official 

plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Westerly on said North line to a 

point that is 85.00 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 534; Thence 

Southerly to a point that is on the North line of Lot 2 in Block 2 of Bixby’s 

Subdivision, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 85.53 feet 

(85.00 feet record) Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 2; Thence 

Easterly on the North line of Lots 2 and 1 in said Block 2 of Bixby’s Subdivision 

to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; Thence 

Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road 

to the present West Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the 

present West Right-of-way line of East Street to the present Northerly Right-of-

way line of 18th Street; Thence continuing Southerly on the present West Right-

of-way line of East Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

54



10 

Street to a line that is 12.50 feet West of and parallel with the East line of Lots 

550, 551, 552 and 553 of said Pacific Addition; Thence Southerly on said parallel 

line to the South line of the North 58.00 feet of Lot 551 of said Pacific Addition; 

Thence Westerly on said South line to the East line of Lot 526 of said Pacific 

Addition; Thence Southerly on the East line of Lots 526 and 525 to the South line 

of said Pacific Addition, also being the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

South line of said Pacific Addition and the North line of Southeast 1/4 of said 

Section 13 and the North line of Galloway Addition, an official plat in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition; Thence continuing Southerly 

on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also being the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition, to the present North Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard; Thence Southerly to the Northeast corner of Lot 

41 of said Fairvalley Addition, being on the present South Right-of-way line of 

Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly, 44.45 feet on the present South Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard, also being the North line of Lot 41 of said 

Fairvalley Addition to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58 to the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M; Thence Westerly on said North line to the point of 

beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the Iowa Northern Railway in Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West of the 5th P.M. to Lincoln Street, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 

18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. and the present 

Northwesterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly and 

Northwesterly and Northeasterly on the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 and the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line of U.S. 

Highway 218 to the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence South on the present Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present South Right-of-way line of Lincoln 

Street, also being the Northwest corner of Maplewood Addition, an official plat in 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the West line of said 

Maplewood Addition and its Southerly prolongation to the South line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West; Thence Easterly on said South line to the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence Southeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present Easterly city limits of the City of 

55



11 

Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly city limits of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218; Thence Southwesterly on present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218 and the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also 

being the present Easterly city limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the 

center of the Cedar River; Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way 

line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of 

Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. Thence 

Northwesterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, 

Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. to the point of beginning, all 

in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

and 

 

Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls  

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 

 No land was added or removed by Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area. 

 

Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls  

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 

 No land was added or removed by Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area. 

 

Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls  

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 

Land removed by Amendment No. 4: 

 

That part of Section 35, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Southerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Southerly right of way to the Northwest corner of Parcel 

D described in Plat of Survey recorded in File 2018-00009903 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D South to the South line of 

the North 700 feet of said Section 35; 

 thence along said Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said South line 

of the North 700 feet East to the West line of the East 320 feet of the Northwest 

Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 35; 

56



12 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said West line of 

the East 320 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter South to the 

Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9 

South to the Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13 

South to the Northwest corner of Lot 4 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 1; 

 thence along the West line of said Lot 4 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of Technology Parkway; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 35; 

 thence along said West line North to the Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian and that part of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 

5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Southeast corner 

of said Section 36; 

 thence along the South line of said Section 36 West to the Northeast 

corner of said Section 2; 

thence along the East line of said Section 2 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Northerly to the Southerly 

right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence Northerly to the Southwest corner of Parcel No. 1 as described in 

Land Deed Book 563 Page 674 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder, 

point being on the Southerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel No. 1 Northerly to the 

Southeast corner of Parcel No. 3 as described in in Land Deed Book 559 Page 446 

in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel No. 3 Northerly to the 

Southeasterly corner of Tract B as described in Land Deed Book 558 Page 715 in 

the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel B Northerly to the South line 

of Tract A as described in said Land Deed Book 558 Page 715; 

thence along said South line East to the Southeast corner of said Tract A; 

thence along the East line of said Tract A North to the Southeast corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 559 Page 532 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

57



13 

thence along the Easterly line of said parcel of land described in Land 

Deed Book 559 Page 532 Northerly to the Southwest corner of East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Westerly line of said East Viking Plaza Addition 

Northerly to the Southwesterly corner of Tract B in said East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Southeasterly line of said Tract B Northeasterly to the 

Northeasterly corner of said Tract B, being on the Southerly right of way line of 

Viking Road; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Point of 

Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

South of the present North right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa; 

 

And also, 

 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 

of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 

extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 

said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 

line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 

East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 

Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 

right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

58



14 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 

of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 

Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 

Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 

to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 

said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 

Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 

right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 

3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 

of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Land Added by Amendment No. 4: 

 

That part of the Viking Road right of way lying in the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) 

of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

described as follows: 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter;  

thence along the South line of said Southeast Quarter West to the 

Southeast corner of Tract A in GENCOM Addition, being the Point of Beginning; 

thence continuing along said South line West to a point being 1875.5 feet 

West of the Southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter; 

thence on a line that is normal to the South line of said Southeast Quarter 

Northerly to the Northerly right of way line of said Viking Road; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Southeast 

corner of Lot 4 in said GENCOM Addition; 

thence along the East line of said GENCOM Addition Southerly to the 

Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of the Viking Road right of way lying in the South Half (S 1/2) of 

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

described as follows: 

 Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Section 26; 

59



15 

 thence along the West line of said Section 26 North to the Northerly right 

of way line of said Viking Road; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to Easterly right of 

way line of Hudson Road; 

 thence South on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26 to 

the South line of said Section 26; 

 thence along said South line West to the Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Viking Road right of way lying in the South Half (S ½) of Sections 

27, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described 

as follows: 

                Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 27; 

                thence along the East line of said Section 27 North to the Northerly 

right of way line of said Viking Road; 

                thence along said Northerly right of line Westerly to the West line of 

the Southeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 27; 

                thence Southerly along said West line a distance of forty two (42) 

feet,  as recorded in Document 2005-17138 in the Office of the Black Hawk 

County Recorder, to the South right of way line of said Viking Road; 

                thence Westerly along said right of way to the West line of the 

corporate limits of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

                thence South along said corporate limits to the South line of said 

Section 27; 

                thence Easterly along said South line to the Point of Beginning. 

 

WHEREAS, a proposed Amendment No. 5 to the Plan ("Amendment No. 5" or 

"Amendment") described above has been prepared, which proposed Amendment has been on file 

in the office of the City Clerk and which is incorporated herein by reference, the purpose of 

which is to add property and to update and modify the status and budget figures of certain 

previously identified projects within the Urban Renewal Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, this proposed Amendment No. 5 adds land to the Unified Urban Renewal 

Area, as follows: 

 

Viking Road ROW (North side): 

The South thirty-three (33) feet of Section twenty-seven (27), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, except that part of Viking 

Road right of way contained within the city limits of Cedar Falls lying in the 

Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of said Section twenty-seven (27);  

 

And also, 

 

S Union Road ROW (West side): 

60



16 

The East thirty-three (33) feet of the North three-quarters (3/4) of Section 

thirty-three (33), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

and the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East thirty-three (33) feet of Section 

twenty-eight (28), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

except the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East three hundred and twenty-eight 

and ninety-two hundredths (328.92) feet; 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of Section thirty-four (34), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of 

Section thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) 

West, except West Viking Road Industrial Park Phases 1 & 2; 

 

And also, 

 

The North one-half (N1/2) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 

thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West. 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Plan adds land to the Area that is outside the City’s corporate 

limits but within two miles of said limits and within Black Hawk County, and Black Hawk 

County has consented to said property being included in the Area by entering into a Joint 

Agreement with the City to include the property within the Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the land proposed to be added to the Unified Urban Renewal Area by 

Amendment No. 5 includes land classified as agricultural land and consequently written 

permission of the current owners has been obtained; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the Area be redeveloped as part of the activities described 

within the proposed Amendment No. 5; and 

 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted on November 19, 2018, this Council directed that a 

consultation be held with the designated representatives of all affected taxing entities to discuss 

the proposed Amendment No. 5 and the division of revenue described therein, and that notice of 

the consultation and a copy of the proposed Amendment No. 5 be sent to all affected taxing 

entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such notice, the consultation was duly held as ordered by the 

City Council and all required responses to the recommendations made by the affected taxing 

entities, if any, have been timely made as set forth in the report of the Planner II, or his delegate, 

filed herewith and incorporated herein by this reference, which report is in all respects approved; 

and 

61



17 

 

WHEREAS, by resolution this Council also set a public hearing on the adoption of the 

proposed Amendment No. 5 for this meeting of the Council, and due and proper notice of the 

public hearing was given, as provided by law, by timely publication in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, which notice set forth the time and place for this hearing and the nature and purpose 

thereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the notice, all persons or organizations desiring to be 

heard on the proposed Amendment No. 5, both for and against, have been given an opportunity 

to be heard with respect thereto and due consideration has been given to all comments and views 

expressed to this Council in connection therewith and the public hearing has been closed. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

 

Section 1. That the findings and conclusions set forth or contained in Amendment No. 5 

concerning the area of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the preamble hereof, 

be and the same are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects as the findings of this Council 

for this area. 

Section 2. This Council further finds: 

a) Although relocation is not expected, a feasible method exists for the relocation 

of any families who will be displaced from the Unified Urban Renewal Area into decent, 

safe and sanitary dwelling accommodations within their means and without undue 

hardship to such families; 

b) The Plan, as amended, and Amendment No. 5 conform to the general plan for 

the development of the City as a whole; and 

c) Acquisition by the City is not immediately expected, however, as to any areas 

of open land to be acquired by the City included within the Unified Urban Renewal Area: 

i.  Residential use is not expected, however, with reference to any portions 

thereof which are to be developed for residential uses, this City Council hereby 

determines that a shortage of housing of sound standards and design with 

decency, safety and sanitation exists within the City; that the acquisition of the 

area for residential uses is an integral part of and essential to the program of the 

municipality; and that one or more of the following conditions exist: 

a. That the need for housing accommodations has been or will be 

increased as a result of the clearance of slums in other areas, including 

other portions of the urban renewal area. 

b. That conditions of blight in the municipality and the shortage of 

decent, safe and sanitary housing cause or contribute to an increase in and 

62



18 

spread of disease and crime, so as to constitute a menace to the public 

health, safety, morals, or welfare. 

c. That the provision of public improvements related to housing 

and residential development will encourage housing and residential 

development which is necessary to encourage the retention or relocation of 

industrial and commercial enterprises in this state and its municipalities. 

d. The acquisition of the area is necessary to provide for the 

construction of housing for low and moderate income families. 

ii. Non-residential use is expected and with reference to those portions 

thereof which are to be developed for non-residential uses, such non-residential 

uses are necessary and appropriate to facilitate the proper growth and 

development of the City in accordance with sound planning standards and local 

community objectives. 

Section 3. That the Unified Urban Renewal Area, as amended, continues to be an 

economic development area within the meaning of Iowa Code Chapter 403; that such area is 

eligible for designation as an urban renewal area and otherwise meets all requisites under the 

provisions of Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa; and that the rehabilitation, conservation, 

redevelopment, development, or a combination thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest 

of the public health, safety or welfare of the residents of this City. 

Section 4. That Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 

Urban Renewal Plan of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 

incorporated herein by reference, be and the same is hereby approved and adopted as 

"Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan for the 

City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa"; Amendment No. 5, including all of the exhibits attached 

thereto, is hereby in all respects approved; the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute 

the Joint City Agreement and approve the executed Agricultural Land Agreements; and the City 

Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of Amendment No. 5 with the proceedings of this 

meeting. 

Section 5. That, notwithstanding any resolution, ordinance, plan, amendment or any other 

document, Amendment No. 5 shall be in full force and effect from the date of this Resolution 

until the Council amends or repeals the Plan.  The proposed Amendment No. 5 shall be forthwith 

certified by the City Clerk, along with a copy of this Resolution, to the Recorder for Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, to be filed and recorded in the manner provided by law. 

Section 6. That all other provisions of the Plan not affected or otherwise revised by the 

terms of Amendment No. 5, as well as all resolutions previously adopted by this City Council 

related to the Plan be and the same are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all respects. 

63



19 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

Label the Amendment as Exhibit 1 (with all exhibits) and attach it to this Resolution. 

 

64



 

 

Final 

Exhibit 1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE 
CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED  

HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR 
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
 

Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1990) 
Expanded Industrial Urban Renewal Area (1995) – Amendment #1 

Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2003) – Amendment #2 
Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Plan (2009) 
Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor  

Urban Renewal Area (2012)  
Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor  

Urban Renewal Area (2014) 
Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 

Urban Renewal Area (2016) 
Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor  

Urban Renewal Area (2018) 
Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 

Urban Renewal Area (2018) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE 
CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
In 1990, the City of Cedar Falls (―City‖) established the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
Urban Renewal Area with the adoption of an urban renewal plan for that area, approved 
by Resolution No. 8196. The urban renewal plan for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
Urban Renewal Area was amended two times, with the adoption of Amendment No. 1 to 
that area in 1995, approved by Resolution No. 10,224, and Amendment No. 2 to that 
area in 2003, approved by Resolution No. 13,862.  
 
In 2009, the City established the North Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area 
with the adoption of an urban renewal plan for that area, approved by Resolution No. 
16,631. 
 
In 2012, the City unified the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area and the 
North Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, creating the Cedar Falls Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (the ―Unified Area‖ or ―Unified Urban 
Renewal Area‖), with the adoption of Amendment No. 1 (―Amendment No. 1‖) to the 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan (the ―Plan‖ or ―Urban 
Renewal Plan‖), approved by Resolution No. 18,337. The Unified Urban Renewal Area 
has been amended three times since its unification, by Amendment No. 2 to the Urban 
Renewal Plan (―Amendment No. 2‖), approved in 2014 by Resolution No. 19,263, by 
Amendment No. 3 to the Urban Renewal Plan (―Amendment No. 3‖), approved in 2016 
by Resolution No. 19,963, and by Amendment No. 4 to the Urban Renewal Plan 
(―Amendment No. 4‖), approved in 2018 by Resolution No. 21,079.  
 
This Unified Urban Renewal Area is being further amended by this Amendment No. 5 to 
the Urban Renewal Plan (―Amendment‖ or ―Amendment No. 5‖) to add property and to 
update and modify the status and budget figures of certain previously identified projects 
within the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Except as modified by this Amendment No. 5, the provisions of Urban Renewal Plan, as 
previously amended, are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved and shall remain in 
full force and effect as provided herein. In case of any conflict or uncertainty, the terms 
of this Amendment shall control. 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 
The property being added to the Unified Urban Renewal Area by this Amendment No. 5 
includes an area of land located adjacent to the current boundaries of the Urban 
Renewal Area that is proposed to be developed with industrial uses.  

66



 

 

 

 
A map of the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, as 
amended, is in Exhibit A. The description of the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 
Corridor Urban Renewal Area, as amended, is in Exhibit B.  
 
The City reserves the right to modify the boundaries of the Area by amendments to this 
Plan. 
 

AGREEMENT TO INCLUDE AGRICULTURAL LAND  
 

Portions of the property being added to the Unified Urban Renewal Area by this 
Amendment No. 5 are defined as ―agricultural land‖ by Iowa Code Section 403.17(3). In 
accordance with Iowa Code Section 403.17(10), the owners of such property have 
entered into agreement(s) permitting the City to include their real property defined as 
―agricultural land‖ in the Unified Urban Renewal Area.  A copy of the signed agreement 
of each agricultural land owner is attached as Exhibit C. The original signed agreements 
will be on file at City Hall. 
 

JOINT CITY/COUNTY AGREEMENT 
 
In accordance with Iowa Code Section 403.17(4), a City may exercise urban renewal 
powers with respect to property which is located outside but within two miles of the 
boundary of a City if the City obtains the consent of the County within which such 
property is located.  A Joint Agreement has been executed by the City of Cedar Falls 
and Black Hawk County, which gives the City permission to add land that is outside the 
city limits to the Area through this Amendment No. 5.  A copy of such Joint Agreement 
is attached hereto as Exhibit ―D‖.  The original signed Joint Agreement is on file at City 
Hall. 
 

AREA DESIGNATION 
 
With the adoption of this Amendment No. 5, the City continues to designate the Cedar 
Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area as an economic development 
area that is appropriate for the promotion of industrial and/or commercial development 
(including but not limited to corporate office and technology projects). 

 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has a general plan for the physical development of the City, as a 
whole, designated as the ―Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan‖ adopted in May 2012. The 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, and this 
Amendment No. 5, is in conformity with the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan. The 
urban renewal projects included in Amendment No. 5 also are consistent with the Cedar 
Falls Comprehensive Plan. 
 

67



 

 

 

This Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan does not change or in any way replace the City’s current land use planning or 
zoning regulation process. 
 
The need for improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities, recreational and 
community facilities, or other public improvements within the Unified Urban Renewal 
Area is set forth in this Urban Renewal Plan, as amended.  As the Unified Area 
develops, the need for public infrastructure extensions and upgrades will be evaluated 
and planned for by the City. 

 
PROJECT AREA OBJECTIVES 

 
This Amendment makes no change to the Project Area Objectives for the Unified Urban 
Renewal Area as outlined in the Plan, as previously amended.  
 

TYPE OF RENEWAL ACTIVITIES 
 
This Amendment makes no change to the Types of Renewal Activities for the Unified 
Urban Renewal Area as outlined in the Plan, as previously amended.  
 

URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 
(AMENDMENT NO. 5) 

 
This Amendment No. 5 proposes no new urban renewal projects for the Unified Urban 
Renewal Area, but provides updates on the progress of the urban renewal projects 
identified in Amendments No. 1, 2, 3 and 4 to the Urban Renewal Plan as follows: 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 
COMPLETED AND/OR FULLY CERTIFIED URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS: 

 
The following projects originally listed in Amendment No. 1 to the Urban Renewal Plan 
have been completed and/or their actual debt amounts fully certified by the City of 
Cedar Falls through 2017: 
 

Description Rationale 

Cost to be 
Reimbursed by 
Incremental Tax 

Revenues 

Construction of current or 
future public infrastructure 
within the Urban Renewal 
Plan Area to include new and 
reconstructed roadways, 
including but not limited to 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$1,483,869 

68



 

 

 

roadways in Phase III and IV 
of West Viking Road Industrial 
Park. 

Infrastructure tied to the new 
or reconstructed roadways to 
include but not limited to 
water, sanitary sewer, storm 
sewer, gas, electric, rail and 
communications, including but 
not limited to infrastructure in 
Phases III and IV of West 
Viking Road Industrial Park. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$2,000,000 

Associated engineering, 
design and inspection costs 
for the future roadway and 
infrastructure projects, 
including but not limited to 
these costs incurred for 
Phases III and IV of West 
Viking Road Industrial Park. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$750,000 

Viking Road 4 Lane project to 
include the design and 
construction to increase 
Viking Road from two lanes to 
four lanes from Westminster 
Drive to Hudson Road. 

Economic Development –  
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$2,000,000 

Phase II construction for 
Leversee Road north to Lone 
Tree Road west to Highway 
218 Interchange along with 
associated infrastructure 
improvements, design and 
inspection. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$2,000,000 

Cedar Falls Wastewater 
Treatment Facility Sanitary 
Sewer Disinfection Project 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$2,645,000 

Target Corporation for  
2115 Technology Parkway 

Economic Development –  
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$164,122 
(Completed since  

Amendment No. 
3) 

Cedar Falls Mayor’s 
Pedestrian Bridge Crossing at 

Economic Development- 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$3,000,000 
(Completed 

69



 

 

 

Greenhill Road and Highway 
58 

since 
Amendment No. 

4) 

 TOTAL: $14,042,991 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ONGOING URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS: 
 
The following projects originally approved in Amendment No. 1 to the Urban Renewal 
Plan have not yet been completed and may occur over a period of 1-5 years or more: 
         

 

Description Rationale 

Estimated cost to be 
Reimbursed by 
Incremental Tax 

Revenues 

1)  Development and Tax Rebate Agreements: 

Realty Income Properties 
8, LLC for 1100 
Technology Parkway 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$309,129 

Development and Tax 
Rebate Agreements for 
future City Council 
approved agreements tied 
to increased taxable 
valuation and/or the 
creation/retention of jobs 
within the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$3,500,000 

2)  Land Acquisitions: 

City land acquisitions to 
accommodate future 
economic development 
growth and job creation 
within the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$7,500,000  
(Amendment No. 5  
adds $5,600,000 to 

account for the 
potential acquisition 

by the City of 

70



 

 

 

additional property 
being added to the 

Area by Amendment 
No. 5) 

3)  Legal Fees: 

Legal, consulting, 
recording, publication, and 
other miscellaneous fees 
associated with economic 
development projects 
occurring within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$350,000 

4)  City Identified Capital Improvement Projects: 

GIS mapping hardware 
and software allocated to 
the Urban Renewal Plan 
Area along with consultant 
fees for the development 
of mapping and data 
collection for areas within 
the Urban Renewal Plan 
Area. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$100,000 

Northern Cedar Falls 
Industrial Park insurance 
and maintenance for 
operation of the existing 
rail spur and future 
additional rail. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$250,000 

Industrial Park Signage 
Program to include the 
installation of new signage 
in the Northern Cedar Falls 
Industrial Park, Wayfinding 
Signage, or other 
appropriate City signage 
within the Urban Renewal 
Area, along with ongoing 
maintenance, repair, or 
replacement of existing 
signage within the Urban 
Renewal Area. Provides 
for a cohesive theme for 
both Industrial Parks. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$200,000 

71



 

 

 

Sanitary sewer and other 
necessary infrastructure 
extensions for economic 
development growth along 
the Highway 20, Highway 
58, Hudson Road and 
Ridgeway Avenue 
corridors within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$4,500,000 

Highway 58 and Viking 
Road Intersection 
Improvements to include 
the study, design, 
construction of an 
interchange at the 
intersection of Highway 58 
and Viking Road. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$11,250,000 
(Amendment No. 4 
added $1,250,000) 

Streetscape and public art 
installation and/or related 
in infrastructure to the 
installation that could 
include median, shoulder 
and roundabout 
improvements along 
Ridgeway Avenue, 
Hudson Road, Highway 
58, Viking Road, or other 
areas within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$375,000 

5) Cedar Falls Utilities TIF Expenses: 

Additional gas utility 
installations and 
relocations necessary to 
accommodate future 
economic development 
and growth within the 
Urban Renewal Area. 

Economic Development- 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$1,550,000 
(Amendment No. 5  

adds $550,000 to 
account for the 

potential gas utility 
extensions warranted  

by the additional 
property being added 

to the Area by 
Amendment No. 5) 

Additional water utility 
installations and 
relocations necessary to 

Economic Development-
promotion of commercial 
/industrial 

$3,600,000 
(Amendment No. 5  
adds $2,100,000 to 

72



 

 

 

accommodate future 
economic development 
and growth within the 
Urban Renewal Area. 

account for the 
potential water utility 

extensions warranted 
by the additional 

property being added 
to the Area by 

Amendment No. 5) 

Additional communication 
utility installations and 
relocations necessary to 
accommodate future 
economic development 
and growth within the 
Urban Renewal Area. 

Economic Development-
promotion of commercial 
/industrial 

$2,800,000 
(Amendment No. 3 

added $100,000) 
(Amendment No. 5  

adds $100,000 to 
account for the 

potential 
communication utility 
extensions warranted 

by the additional 
property being added 

to the Area by 
Amendment No. 5) 

 TOTAL for Ongoing Projects 
in Amendment No. 1:   

$36,284,129 

 
The previously approved projects originally identified in Amendment No. 1 had a total 
estimated cost to be reimbursed through incremental tax revenues of $54,755,000 at 
the time Amendment No. 1 was adopted. The updated total of $36,284,129 noted above 
has been adjusted to remove the costs of fully-certified projects and account for 
increases in estimated project costs that are identified in this Amendment No. 5.  

 
AMENDMENT NO. 2 URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 
COMPLETED AND/OR FULLY CERTIFIED URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS: 

 
The following projects originally listed in Amendment No. 2 to the Urban Renewal Plan 
have been completed and/or their actual debt amounts fully certified by the City of 
Cedar Falls through 2017: 
 

Description Rationale 

Cost to be 
Reimbursed by 
Incremental Tax 

Revenues 

1) City Identified Improvement Projects 

2015/2016 Pavement Economic Development – $584,711 

73



 

 

 

Management Program 
including but not limited to 
Asphalt Overlays of 
Commerce Drive from 
Chancellor Drive to end of 
new section, Nordic Drive 
from West Viking Road to 
north approximately 1,400’, 
and Savannah Park Road 
from Chancellor Drive to 
Nordic Drive 

promotion of commercial/industrial  
 

2) Cedar Falls Utilities TIF Expenses 

Additional electrical 
production, distribution and 
transmission necessary to 
accommodate ongoing 
development and growth 
within the Urban Renewal 
Area. Includes balance of 
debt certification for Walter 
Scott #4 Generator and new 
future electrical debt by Cedar 
Falls Utilities. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$10,000,000 

2016-2018 Pavement 
Management Program for Full 
Panel Replacement and 
manholes within the Urban 
Renewal Area including but 
not limited to Nordic Drive 
South, Chancellor Drive, 
Enterprise Drive, Savannah 
Park Road, Performance 
Drive, Shawnee Road, 
Westminster Drive, Greenhill 
Road, Ridgeway Avenue 
East, Ridgeway Avenue West 
and Nordic Drive North. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/ industrial 

$900,000 

 TOTAL: $11,484,711 

 
ONGOING URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS: 

 
The following projects originally approved in Amendment No. 2 to the Urban Renewal 
Plan have not yet been completed and may occur over a period of 1-5 years or more: 
 

74



 

 

 

 
Description 

 
Rationale 

Estimated cost 
to be 

Reimbursed by 
Incremental Tax 

Revenues 

1)  City Identified Improvement Projects 

Prairie Lakes Trail Connection 
project in the areas of 
Chancellor Drive, Commerce 
Drive, Technology Parkway 
and Ridgeway Avenue. 
Includes design, construction 
and related project expenses. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/ industrial 

$200,000 

Cedar Falls Zoning Ordinance 
Update and Revisions. To 
include professional services 
related to the revising, 
amending, and updating the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance within 
the Urban Renewal Plan Area. 

Economic Development—
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$50,000 

2)  Personnel Costs and Other Administrative Expenses to Support Urban  
     Renewal Projects and Planning 

Staffing/Personnel related 
expenses including but not 
limited to salary and benefits 
incurred by Community 
Development Department and 
other City personnel tied to 
supporting economic 
development and urban 
renewal projects within the 
Urban Renewal Area. Plan 
Amendment preparation and 
administration included. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/ industrial 

$600,000 
(Amendment 

No. 5 adds 
$200,000) 

 TOTAL for Ongoing Projects in 
Amendment No. 2: 

$850,000 

The previously approved projects originally identified in Amendment No. 2 had a total 
estimated cost to be reimbursed through incremental tax revenues of $12,134,711 at 
the time Amendment No. 2 was adopted. The updated total of $850,000 noted above 
has been adjusted to remove the costs of fully-certified projects and account for 
increases in estimated project costs that are identified in this Amendment No. 5. 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 3 URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

75



 

 

 

 
COMPLETED AND/OR FULLY CERTIFIED URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS: 

 
The following projects originally listed in Amendment No. 3 to the Urban Renewal Plan 
have been completed and/or their actual debt amounts fully certified by the City of 
Cedar Falls through 2017: 
 

Description Rationale 

Cost to be 
Reimbursed by 
Incremental Tax 

Revenues 

1) City Identified Improvement Projects 

Dry Run Creek Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements 
including replacing 5,400’ of 
sewer main ranging from 30‖ 
to 42‖ and rehabilitating 
1,760’ of 36‖ sewer main due 
to showing signs of failure. 
Only those portions of the 
improvements that fall within 
the Urban Renewal Area are 
eligible for reimbursement. It 
has been determined that 
38% of the total project falls 
within the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$4,500,000 
 

 

2016-2018 Pavement 
Management Program 
including but not limited to 
Asphalt Overlays of 
Technology Parkway from 
Hudson Road to Chancellor 
Drive, Westminster Drive from 
Nordic Drive to west 
approximately 1,500’ to curve, 
and other overlay projects 
within the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/industrial 

$800,000 

 TOTAL: $5,300,000 

 
ONGOING URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS: 

 

76



 

 

 

The following projects originally approved in Amendment No. 3 to the Urban Renewal 
Plan have not yet been completed and may occur over a period of 1-5 years or more: 
 

 
Description 

 
Rationale 

Estimated cost to 
be 

Reimbursed by 
Incremental Tax 

Revenues 

1)  City Identified Improvement Projects 

Construction of current or 
future public infrastructure 
within the Urban Renewal 
Area to include new and 
reconstructed roadways in 
the Urban Renewal Area. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/ 
industrial 

$2,500,000 

Infrastructure tied to the 
new or reconstructed 
roadways to include but not 
limited to water, sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer, gas, 
electric, rail and 
communications in the 
Urban Renewal Area. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of commercial/ 
industrial 

$4,000,000 
(Amendment No. 5 
adds $2,000,000 to 

account for 
additional 

infrastructure needs 
to prepare for the 

development of the 
property being 

added to the Area 
by Amendment No. 

5) 

Associated engineering, 
design and inspection costs 
incurred for the future 
roadway and infrastructure 
projects within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

Economic Development—
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$1,000,000 
(Amendment No. 5 

adds $500,000 to 
account for 

additional 
infrastructure needs 

to prepare for the 
development of the 

property being 
added to the Area 

by Amendment No. 
5) 

University Avenue/Highway 
58 Interchange 
reconstruction within the 
Urban Renewal Area 

Economic Development – 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$8,000,000 

77



 

 

 

including but not limited to 
the reconstruction of the 
road, right-of-way, 
roundabouts, grading, storm 
sewer, sanitary sewer, 
street lights, water main, 
landscaping, design and 
construction related 
inspection. 

Roadway and related 
infrastructure improvements 
including design, inspection 
and other associated costs 
for the extension of 
Commerce Drive, Viking 
Road, and other road 
extension or reconstruction 
projects within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$750,000 

2)  Cedar Falls Utilities TIF Projects 

Additional electric utility 
installations and relocations 
necessary for development 
and growth within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

Economic Development – 
promotion of 
commercial/industrial 

$9,800,000 
(Amendment No. 5  
adds $7,000,000 to 

account for the 
potential electric 
utility extensions 
warranted by the 

additional property 
being added to the 

Area by 
Amendment No. 5) 

 TOTAL for Ongoing Projects 
in Amendment No. 3: 

$26,050,000 

The previously approved projects originally identified in Amendment No. 3 had a total 
estimated cost to be reimbursed through incremental tax revenues of $21,850,000 at 
the time Amendment No. 3 was adopted. The updated total of $26,050,000 noted above 
has been adjusted to remove the costs of fully-certified projects and account for 
increases in estimated project costs that are identified in this Amendment No. 5. 
 

 
FINANCIAL DATA 

 
Constitutional debt limit:  $151,911,983 
   

78



 

 

 

Current general obligation debt:  $9,740,000 
 

 
 

PROPOSED AMOUNT OF LOANS, ADVANCES, INDEBTEDNESS  
OR BONDS TO BE INCURRED 

 
A specific amount of actual debt to be incurred for the previously approved on-going 
projects (Amendments No. 1, 2, and 3) has not yet been determined. The City Council 
will consider each Project proposal on a case-by-case basis to determine if it is 
consistent with the Plan and in the public’s best interest to participate in the Project. 
These Projects, if approved, will commence and be concluded over a number of years. 
In no event will debt be incurred that would exceed the City’s debt capacity. It is further 
expected that such indebtedness, including interest on the same, will be financed in 
whole or in part with tax increment revenues from the Urban Renewal Area.  
 
Subject to the foregoing, it is estimated that the future costs to be certified for 
reimbursement through tax increment revenues for those projects identified in this 
Amendment No. 5 as ongoing projects from Amendments No. 1, 2 and 3, as updated in 
Amendment No. 5, will not exceed in total $63,184,129. 
 

URBAN RENEWAL FINANCING 
 
The City intends to utilize various financing tools such as those described below to 
successfully undertake the proposed urban renewal actions.  The City has the statutory 
authority to use a variety of tools to finance physical improvements within the Unified 
Area.  These include: 
 

A. Tax Increment Financing. 
 

Under Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, urban renewal areas may 
utilize the tax increment financing mechanism to finance the costs of 
public improvements, economic development incentives, or other urban 
renewal projects.  Upon creation of a tax increment district within the 
Unified Area, by ordinance, the assessment base is frozen and the 
amount of tax revenue available from taxes paid on the difference 
between the frozen base and the increased value, if any, is segregated 
into a separate fund for the use by the City to pay costs of the eligible 
urban renewal projects.  Certain increased taxes generated by any new 
development, above the base value, are distributed to the taxing entities, if 
not requested by the City, and in any event upon the expiration of the tax 
increment district. 
 
The City may also determine to use tax increment financing to provide 
incentives such as cash grants, loans, tax rebates, or other incentives to 
developers or private entities in connection with the urban renewal 

79



 

 

 

projects identified in this Plan.  In addition, the City may determine to issue 
general obligation bonds, tax increment revenue bonds or such other 
obligations, or loan agreements for the purpose of making loans or grants 
of public funds to private businesses located in the Area for urban renewal 
projects.  Alternatively, the City may determine to use available funds for 
making such loans or grants or other incentives related to urban renewal 
projects.  In any event, the City may determine to use tax increment 
financing to reimburse the City for any obligations or advances. 
 

B. General Obligation Bonds. 
 

Under Division III of Chapter 384 and Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, 
the City has the authority to issue and sell general obligation bonds for 
specified essential and general corporate purposes, including the 
acquisition and construction of certain public improvements within the 
Unified Area and for other urban renewal projects or incentives for 
development consistent with this Plan.  Such bonds are payable from the 
levy of unlimited ad valorem taxes on all the taxable property within the 
City of Cedar Falls.  It may be, the City will elect to abate some or all of 
the debt service on these bonds with incremental taxes from this Unified 
Area. 

 
Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise 
any lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15, Chapter 15A, Chapter 403, 
Chapter 427B, or any other provision of the Code of Iowa in furtherance of the 
objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan. 
 

PROPERTY ACQUISITION/DISPOSITION 
 
The City may finance or assist with financing the cost of land acquisitions in the Unified 
Area. The City will follow applicable legal proceedings and procedures for the 
acquisition and disposition of property. 
 

RELOCATION 
 
The City does not expect there to be any relocation required of residents or businesses 
as part of the proposed urban renewal projects; however, if any relocation is necessary, 
the City will follow all applicable relocation requirements. 
 

STATE AND LOCAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
All provisions necessary to conform to state and local laws will be complied with by the 
City and/or the developer in implementing this Urban Renewal Plan and its supporting 
documents, objectives and renewal activities. 

80



 

 

 

REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY  
 
Any parts of the Plan, as previously amended, in conflict with this Amendment are 
hereby repealed. 
 
In the event one or more provisions contained in the Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, 
shall be held for any reason to be invalid, illegal, unauthorized or unenforceable in any 
respect, such invalidity, illegality, unauthorization or enforceability shall not affect any 
other provision of this Urban Renewal Plan, and this Urban Renewal Plan shall be 
construed and implemented as if such provisions had never been contained herein.  
 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
This Urban Renewal Plan may be amended from time to time for a number of reasons, 
including but not limited to, change in the area, addition of new or modification of 
existing urban renewal projects, deletion of completed urban renewal projects, 
modification to urban renewal project costs, to add or change land use controls and 
regulations, to modify goals or types of renewal activities, or to amend property 
acquisition and disposition provisions. The City Council may amend this Plan pursuant 
to appropriate procedures under Iowa Code Chapter 403. 
 

EFFECTIVE PERIOD 
  
This Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan will become effective upon its adoption by the Cedar Falls City Council and will 
remain in effect until it is repealed by City Council. This Amendment No. 5 is making no 
changes to the effective dates or the duration of any division of revenue from any 
already existing subareas or amendment areas of the Unified Urban Renewal Area, as 
amended. 
 
With respect to the property being added to the Unified Urban Renewal Area by this 
Amendment No. 5, which is also included in an ordinance which designates that 
property as a tax increment area, the use of incremental property tax revenues or the 
―division of revenue,‖ as those words are used in Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, is 
limited to twenty (20) years beginning with the first calendar year following the calendar 
year in which the City first certifies to the County Auditor the amount of any loans, 
advances, indebtedness, or bonds which qualify for payment from the incremental 
property tax revenues attributable to that property within a TIF ordinance of the Unified 
Urban Renewal Area. The division of revenues shall continue on the Unified Urban 
Renewal Area for the maximum period allowed by law. 
 
It is possible that separate TIF ordinances for separate parcel(s) may be adopted as 
development in the Area warrants.  In that case, each separate TIF ordinance may have 
a separate base and separate sunset or expiration date.   
 

81



 

 

 

At all times, the use of tax increment financing revenues (including the amount of loans, 
advances, indebtedness or bonds which qualify for payment from the division of 
revenue provided in Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa) by the City for activities carried 
out in the Unified Urban Renewal Area shall be limited as deemed appropriate by the 
City Council and consistent with all applicable provisions of law. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
MAP OF THE UNIFIED URBAN RENEWAL AREA, AS AMENDED 

  

83



 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIFIED URBAN RENEWAL AREA, AS AMENDED 

 
Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1990) 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

and 

 

Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area 

Amendment No. 1 (1995) 

 

All of Sections 35 and 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. 

and that part of Sections 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth 

P.M. lying North of U.S. Highway No. 20. 

 

And also that part of the West 1/2 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth P.M. lying West of Iowa Highway No. 58. 

 

And also that part of the East 1/2 of the southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. described as beginning at the East 1/4 

corner of said Section 26; thence Southwest to the Southeast corner of Viking 

Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of 

the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26; thence East to the Southeast corner of said 

Section 26; thence North to the point of beginning. 

 

Except that portion described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

84



 

 

 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

Section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

and 

 

Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area  

Amendment No. 2 (2003) 

 

The Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) and the North One-half (N1/2) of the North One-

half (N1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., 

Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the following described parcels: 

 

Parcel 1:  The East Eight Hundred Forty-three (843) feet of the West One 

Thousand Eighty-three (1,083) feet of the North Five Hundred Fifty (550) feet of 

the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine 

(89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; 

 

Parcel 2:  The West Two Hundred Forty (240) feet of the North Five Hundred 

Fifty (550) feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. 

Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 

 

Parcel 3:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of the said Section 34; thence 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East, on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, 70.00 feet, to the point of beginning; thence continuing 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34, 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 13 

seconds West, 85.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds West, 

1,888.00 feet, to the present South right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 

89 degrees 19 minutes 13 seconds East, on the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road, 85.00 feet, to the point of beginning. The East line of the Northeast 

85



 

 

 

Quarter of said Section 34 is assumed to bear South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 

seconds East for the purpose of this description, and 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; thence continuing 

South 0039’19” East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a 

distance of 1,888.00 feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; 

thence North 0039’19” West a distance of 1,888.00 feet to the present South 

right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 8919’13” East on the present 

South right-of-way line of Viking Road a distance of 85.00 feet to the point of 

beginning; containing 3.68 acres. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; thence North 

8054’49” West a distance of 218.13 feet to the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road; thence North 0040’47” West a distance of 33.00 feet to the North 

line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34; thence North 8919’13” East on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 300.00 feet to the 

point of beginning; containing 0.39 acre, of which 0.23 acre is within existing 

road right-of-way. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

 

and 

 

Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area - 2009 

 

That part of Section 6 and Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 West and that 

part of Section 31, Township 90 North, Range 13 West of the Fifth P.M. in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa described as beginning at the 

Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence Southerly 

86



 

 

 

along the East line of said Southeast Quarter to the Southeast corner of said 

Southeast Quarter; thence continue Southerly along the East line of said Section 6 

to the Southeast corner of said Section 6; thence continue Southerly along the 

East line of said Section 7 to the South Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; 

thence Westerly along said South Right-of-way line to the Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along said Easterly Right-of-way line 

to the Easterly Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along 

said Easterly Right-of-way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said 

Section 31; Thence Easterly along said North line to the point of beginning. 

 

and 

 

Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls  

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 
South of the present North Right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa.  

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County 

of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence Northerly on the 

East line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

Road to the East line of GENCOM Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said East line and the Southerly prolongation of 

said East line to the South line of said Section 25; Thence Easterly on said South 

line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

 

87



 

 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

said Section 26; Thence Northerly on the East line of the Southwest 1/4 of the 

Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the present North Right-of-way line of West 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of  West 

Viking Road to the present East Right-of-way line of Hudson Road; Thence South 

on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., to the South line of said Section 26; Thence 

Easterly on said South line to the point of Beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 

described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., City of Cedar Falls, County of Black 

Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, Thence 

Westerly on the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, a distance of 

270.00 feet; Thence northerly to the Southeast corner of Greenhill Village Fourth 

Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly 

on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village Fourth Addition to the Southeasterly 

corner of Greenhill Village Sixth Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village 

Sixth Addition to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26; Thence 

Southerly on said East line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From Viking Road to the North line of Sections 25 Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M. (Greenhill Road), described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence westerly on the 

South line of said Section 25, a distance of 1878.5 feet to the point of beginning 

of the parcel of land herein described; Thence Northerly on a line that is normal to 

the South line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East 

88



 

 

 

Viking Road to the Southwest corner of Blain’s Corner, an official plat in the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Southwest of Blain’s Corner is on the present North 

Right-of-way line of East Viking Road); Thence Northerly and Northwesterly and 

Northerly on the West line of said Blain’s Corner to the Northwest corner of said 

Blain’s Corner; Thence Westerly on the Westerly prolongation of the North line 

of said Blain’s Corner and the North line of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase III, 

an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northwesterly and Northerly and 

Northeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, to 

the present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence Easterly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the Northwesterly Right-of-

way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property; 

Thence Northeasterly on said Northwesterly Right-of-way line to the North line 

of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of 

the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on said North line to the present Westerly Right-

of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southerly and Southeasterly and 

Southerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

South line of said Section 25; thence Easterly on the South line of said Section 25 

to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (Greenhill Road) to the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 

14 West of the 5th P.M. (University Avenue), described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former 

Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property and the North line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Westerly on said North line to the Northeast corner of Section 26, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the Southerly prolongation of 

the West line of the East 40 acres of the East 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Northerly on said 

West line to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the present 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly on the 

present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of the 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Easterly on said North line to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill 

Road; Thence Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road 

to the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western 

Railway Company property; Thence Southwesterly on the Northwesterly Right-

of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property to 

89



 

 

 

the point of beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (University Avenue) to the Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. and the Southerly 

prolongation of a line that is 100.00 feet West of and parallel with the West line 

of Lot 45 in Fairvalley Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

Thence Northerly on the Southerly prolongation of said parallel line and said 

parallel line to the present North Right-of-way line of University Avenue; Thence 

Easterly on the North Right-of-way line of University Avenue to the present 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present South Right-of-

way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-

of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the West 

line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition; Thence Northerly on the Northerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition to the present 

North Right-of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the 

present North Right-of-way line of east Seerley Boulevard to the present East 

Right-of-way line of Main Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-

way line of Main Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street and its Easterly prolongation to the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58 to the East line of Taylor 2nd Addition, an official plat in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on said East line to the South line of 

Block 16 in said Taylor 2nd Addition; Thence Westerly on said South line to the 

East line of the West 1/2 of said Block 16; Thence Northerly on said East line to 

the present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street; Thence Westerly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street to the present East Right-of-

way line of State Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-way line 

of State Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street to the present 

East Right-of-way line of Bluff Street; Thence Northerly on the present East 

Right-of-way line of Bluff Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 

14th Court; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 14th 

Court to the West line of Behrens’ Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said West line to the South line of said Behrens’ 

Addition; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Behrens’ Addition, 34.50 feet 

to the Southwesterly corner of the parcel of land described in City Lot Deed Book 

619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office; Thence 

90



 

 

 

Northeasterly on the Northwesterly line of the parcel of land described in City Lot 

Deed Book 619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s 

Office and its Northeasterly prolongation to the present Northeasterly Right-of-

way line of Waterloo Road; Thence Northwesterly on the present Northeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road to the present Southeasterly Right-of-way 

line of Utility Parkway; Thence Northeasterly on the present Southeasterly Right-

of-way line of Utility Parkway to the point of intersection of the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Utility Parkway and the Southerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 6 of Block 6 in T. Mullarky’s Addition (part 

vacated), an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on the 

Southerly prolongation of the West line of said Lot 6 to the Southwesterly corner 

of said Lot 6; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Lot 6 to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of the Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later 

the Chicago, Great Western Railway Company now the Northwestern 

Transportation Company); Thence Northerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of 

the former Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later the Chicago, 

Great Western Railway Company now the former Northwestern Transportation 

Company) to the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street to the present 

Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s 

property; Thence Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property to the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-

of-way line of Grand Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-

way line of Grand Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the present West 

Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the Northerly prolongation 

of the present West Right-of-way line of East Street and the West Right-of-way 

line of East Street to the Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa 

Highway 58 to the present Northeasterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; 

Thence continuing Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of Lot 534 in Pacific Addition, an official 

plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Westerly on said North line to a 

point that is 85.00 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 534; Thence 

Southerly to a point that is on the North line of Lot 2 in Block 2 of Bixby’s 

Subdivision, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 85.53 feet 

(85.00 feet record) Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 2; Thence 

Easterly on the North line of Lots 2 and 1 in said Block 2 of Bixby’s Subdivision 

to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; Thence 

Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road 

to the present West Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the 

present West Right-of-way line of East Street to the present Northerly Right-of-

way line of 18th Street; Thence continuing Southerly on the present West Right-

of-way line of East Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

91



 

 

 

Street to a line that is 12.50 feet West of and parallel with the East line of Lots 

550, 551, 552 and 553 of said Pacific Addition; Thence Southerly on said parallel 

line to the South line of the North 58.00 feet of Lot 551 of said Pacific Addition; 

Thence Westerly on said South line to the East line of Lot 526 of said Pacific 

Addition; Thence Southerly on the East line of Lots 526 and 525 to the South line 

of said Pacific Addition, also being the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

South line of said Pacific Addition and the North line of Southeast 1/4 of said 

Section 13 and the North line of Galloway Addition, an official plat in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition; Thence continuing Southerly 

on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also being the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition, to the present North Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard; Thence Southerly to the Northeast corner of Lot 

41 of said Fairvalley Addition, being on the present South Right-of-way line of 

Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly, 44.45 feet on the present South Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard, also being the North line of Lot 41 of said 

Fairvalley Addition to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58 to the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M; Thence Westerly on said North line to the point of 

beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the Iowa Northern Railway in Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West of the 5th P.M. to Lincoln Street, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 

18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. and the present 

Northwesterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly and 

Northwesterly and Northeasterly on the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 and the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line of U.S. 

Highway 218 to the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence South on the present Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present South Right-of-way line of Lincoln 

Street, also being the Northwest corner of Maplewood Addition, an official plat in 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the West line of said 

Maplewood Addition and its Southerly prolongation to the South line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West; Thence Easterly on said South line to the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence Southeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present Easterly city limits of the City of 

92



 

 

 

Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly city limits of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218; Thence Southwesterly on present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218 and the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also 

being the present Easterly city limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the 

center of the Cedar River; Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way 

line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of 

Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. Thence 

Northwesterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, 

Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. to the point of beginning, all 

in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

and 

 

Land Added by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58  

Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 

That part of the Viking Road right of way lying in the Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) 

of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

described as follows: 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter;  

thence along the South line of said Southeast Quarter West to the 

Southeast corner of Tract A in GENCOM Addition, being the Point of Beginning; 

thence continuing along said South line West to a point being 1875.5 feet 

West of the Southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter; 

thence on a line that is normal to the South line of said Southeast Quarter 

Northerly to the Northerly right of way line of said Viking Road; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Southeast 

corner of Lot 4 in said GENCOM Addition; 

thence along the East line of said GENCOM Addition Southerly to the 

Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of the Viking Road right of way lying in the South Half (S 1/2) of 

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

described as follows: 

 Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Section 26; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 26 North to the Northerly right 

of way line of said Viking Road; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to Easterly right of 

way line of Hudson Road; 

 thence South on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26 to 

the South line of said Section 26; 

93



 

 

 

 thence along said South line West to the Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Viking Road right of way lying in the South Half (S 1/2) of Sections 

27, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described 

as follows: 

                Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 27; 

                thence along the East line of said Section 27 North to the Northerly 

right of way line of said Viking Road; 

                thence along said Northerly right of line Westerly to the West line of 

the Southeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 27; 

                thence Southerly along said West line a distance of forty two (42) 

feet,  as recorded in Document 2005-17138 in the Office of the Black Hawk 

County Recorder, to the South right of way line of said Viking Road; 

                thence Westerly along said right of way to the West line of the 

corporate limits of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

                thence South along said corporate limits to the South line of said 

Section 27; 

                thence Easterly along said South line to the Point of Beginning. 

 

 

Land Removed by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58  

Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 

That part of Section 35, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Southerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Southerly right of way to the Northwest corner of Parcel 

D described in Plat of Survey recorded in File 2018-00009903 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D South to the South line of 

the North 700 feet of said Section 35; 

 thence along said Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said South line 

of the North 700 feet East to the West line of the East 320 feet of the Northwest 

Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 35; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said West line of 

the East 320 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter South to the 

Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9 

South to the Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13 

South to the Northwest corner of Lot 4 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 1; 

94



 

 

 

 thence along the West line of said Lot 4 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of Technology Parkway; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 35; 

 thence along said West line North to the Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian and that part of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 

5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Southeast corner 

of said Section 36; 

 thence along the South line of said Section 36 West to the Northeast 

corner of said Section 2; 

thence along the East line of said Section 2 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Northerly to the Southerly 

right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence Northerly to the Southwest corner of Parcel No. 1 as described in 

Land Deed Book 563 Page 674 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder, 

point being on the Southerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel No. 1 Northerly to the 

Southeast corner of Parcel No. 3 as described in in Land Deed Book 559 Page 446 

in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel No. 3 Northerly to the 

Southeasterly corner of Tract B as described in Land Deed Book 558 Page 715 in 

the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel B Northerly to the South line 

of Tract A as described in said Land Deed Book 558 Page 715; 

thence along said South line East to the Southeast corner of said Tract A; 

thence along the East line of said Tract A North to the Southeast corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 559 Page 532 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said parcel of land described in Land 

Deed Book 559 Page 532 Northerly to the Southwest corner of East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Westerly line of said East Viking Plaza Addition 

Northerly to the Southwesterly corner of Tract B in said East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

95



 

 

 

thence along the Southeasterly line of said Tract B Northeasterly to the 

Northeasterly corner of said Tract B, being on the Southerly right of way line of 

Viking Road; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Point of 

Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

South of the present North right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa; 

 

And also, 

 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 

of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 

extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 

said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 

line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 

East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 

Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 

right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 

of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 

Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 

Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 

to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

96



 

 

 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 

said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 

Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 

right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 

3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 

of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 

 
and 

 

Land Added by Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58  

Corridor Urban Renewal Area 

 

Viking Road ROW (North side): 

The South thirty-three (33) feet of Section twenty-seven (27), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, except that part of Viking 

Road right of way contained within the city limits of Cedar Falls lying in the 

Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of said Section twenty-seven (27);  

 

And also, 

 

S Union Road ROW (West side): 

The East thirty-three (33) feet of the North three-quarters (3/4) of Section 

thirty-three (33), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

and the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East thirty-three (33) feet of Section 

twenty-eight (28), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

except the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East three hundred and twenty-eight 

and ninety-two hundredths (328.92) feet; 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of Section thirty-four (34), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

97



 

 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of 

Section thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) 

West, except West Viking Road Industrial Park Phases 1 & 2; 

 

And also, 

 

The North one-half (N1/2) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 

thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

100



 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D  

 

JOINT CITY/COUNTY AGREEMENT 

  

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls (the “City”) has proposed to amend the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area to include property that is outside, but within 

two miles of, its corporate boundaries for the purpose of engaging in proposed urban renewal 

projects on said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, has reviewed the 

Amendment No. 5 to the Urban Renewal Plan for said Urban Renewal Area, and has determined 

that the proposed Urban Renewal Area, as amended, and completion of the eligible projects 

therein, are in the best interests of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Section 403.17(4) requires a “joint agreement” between the City 

and the County before the City can proceed with said projects. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA AND THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 1. The Board of Supervisors of Black Hawk County, State of Iowa hereby agrees 

and authorizes the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to proceed with adding property within two 

miles of the City of Cedar Falls to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area as described in Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Plan, and the undertaking of the eligible urban renewal projects therein. 

 

 2. This “joint agreement” is intended to meet the requirements of Iowa Code 

Chapter 403.17(4) with respect to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area located in or within two miles of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 

 

 3. This Joint Agreement has been duly authorized by the governing bodies of Black 

Hawk County, State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

101



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

102



 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

 

 
01538484-1\10283-163 

103



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: December 10, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment 

 

I am recommending the following reappointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Roger White Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees 12/31/2024 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

104



 1 

  

City of Cedar Falls Goal Setting Report 
2018 
 

Eric Christianson 
ISU Extension  

ejchr@iastate.edu 
(515) 231-6513 

 

Jeff Schott 
jeff-schott@uiowa.edu 

(712) 262- 2264 
 

Mayor: 

Jim Brown 

 

City Council: 

Mark Miller 

Susan DeBuhr 

Frank Darrah 

Dave Wieland 

Tom Blanford 

Daryl Kruse 

Rob Green 

Facilitated by: 

105



 2 

GOAL SETTING SESSION 

2018 

 

 

Introduction 
 

The City of Cedar Falls requested Iowa State Extension and Outreach (ISUEO), along 
with Jeff Schott, to assist the city with goal setting. ISUEO agreed to organize and 
facilitate a process that involved the following steps: 
 
 

1. Conduct interviews with the Mayor and City Council Members to discuss 
recent accomplishments, issues/trends/concerns, potential new 
initiatives/programs/policies, and suggestions to improve organizational 
effectiveness. 

 

2. Conduct a preliminary session with department heads. 
 

3. Conduct two goal-setting sessions with the elected officials. 
 

4. Preparation of this final report. 
 
 

Goal Setting Work Sessions 
 

City Council Members and the Mayor held goal setting work sessions conducted by 
ISUEO on November 14 and 15, 2018. In attendance and participating at these meetings 
were Mayor Jim Brown and Council Members Mark Miller, Susan DeBuhr, Dave 
Wieland, Tom Blanford, Daryl Kruse, Rob Green, and Frank Darrah. Also attending were 
City Administrator Ron Gaines, Director of Community Development Stephanie Houk 
Sheetz, Public Safety Director/Police Chief Jeff Olson, Director of Finance and Business 
Operations Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Municipal Operations and Programs Mark 
Ripplinger, and City Attorney, Kevin Rogers. Jamie Castle, Building Official, and Mike 
Nyman, Water Reclamation Manager, attended only the November 14 session. Karen 
Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager, attended only the November 15 
session. 
 
In addition, the facilitators and City Administrator held individual meetings with the 
Mayor and City Council Members on October 29 and 31. A summary of those interviews 
is included with this report as Exhibit A. 
 
Jeff Schott held a preliminary session with department heads on November 8 and also, 
with Eric Christianson, prior to the November 15 goal setting work session. In attendance 
at these sessions were City Administrator Ron Gaines, Director of Community 
Development Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Public Safety Director/Police Chief Jeff Olson, 
Director of Finance and Business Operations Jennifer Rodenbeck, and Director of 
Municipal Operations and Programs Mark Ripplinger. 
 
 
 

106



 3 

Policy Agreements  

 
After review and discussion, the group reached general agreement on the following 
policy issues: 

 
 

1. FY 19-20 Budgetary/Financial Goals: 

• Property Tax Goal – Rate of residential inflation 

• Cash Reserves Goal – Policy 15-25% of annual GF expenditures 

• Plan for FY 19-20 budget without state backfill 

• Storm water fee and sanitary sewer fees per 2018 Ordinances  

• Continue Bond Replacement Policy 

• Maintain fiscal discipline and maintain compliance with Financial Policies 
 
 

2. Implementation of Major Capital Projects – The following capital projects were 
identified as priorities: 

 

• Public Safety Building 

• Cedar River flood levee 

• Develop Master Plan/Financing Plan for Cedar River Recreational Project 

• Defective bridge repair program 

• LOST street repair program 

• Infiltration/Inflow Remediation 
o Develop plan 
o Slip-lining 
o Manhole repairs 

• Waste Water Treatment Plant: 
o Plan for funding for future improvements. 
o Evaluate regional WWTP concept 

• Sidewalk inspections and assessments 

• Dry Run Creek storm water improvements 

• US 58/Viking Rd interchange 

• West 1st St reconstruction  

• Center St trail 

• Expansion of trail/sidewalk systems  

• Industrial Park expansion 

• Main St improvements 

• Greenhill Rd corridor study 
 
Staff provided a timeline of projects requested for funding from Black Hawk 
County Gaming Association. 

 

 

 

 

 
107



 4 

3. Use of Flood Recovery Cash Reserves 

• Use of Reserves 
o Adopt Policy for Use: May include natural, disasters, floods, straight-

line wind, tornadoes, etc. 

• Appropriate balance to be retained 
o $1.5 to $2 million 

• Rename Fund 
o Emergency/Disaster Reserve 

 
 

4. Personnel issues – staffing levels, staff transitions, attracting/retaining quality 
staff 
� There was general support for staff’s work towards revising the organizational 

structure in order to create a more “traditional” Public Works department. 
� There was general support for departments to evaluate staffing needs and 

request additional positions as necessary.  
 
 

5. Continue Public Safety staffing initiatives:  

• Continue to grow the PSO program  

• Continue Council support for aggressively moving forward w PSO program  

• Maintain commitment to balancing police/fire staffing with PSO staffing 

• Monitor service levels and effectiveness 

• Develop/implement communication program to explain the PSO program to 

the public? 

 

 

6. Specific Capital Projects 

• IA 58/Greenhill Rd intersection  

o There was general agreement to propose a city contribution to IDOT 

of approx. $4 million to move the project forward in IDOT’s 5-year 

Plan 

• River Improvement Project 

o Keep GO Bond funding at $700,000 

o Maintain ask for gaming commission $1,250,000 – $1,500,000 

o Funding of $1,000,000 from Flood Reserve Fund  

o Private fundraising request: $800,000 

o Research additional grants & tourism dollars 

� REAP 

� Visitors & Tourism 

o Aim for total budget: ~$3.8 million to account for potential cost 

overruns. 

 
 

108



 5 

7. Economic development:  

• Budgetary Allocation of $150,000 for marketing efforts  
 

8. Visioning – there was agreement as to the following sequence of visioning 
projects: 

a. Downtown 
b. College Hill 
c. University Ave corridor 

 
 

9. The following were identified as continuing priorities/ongoing commitments: 
 

• Continue flood recovery activities 
o Island Park challenges 

• Continue proactive code enforcement, including a dedicated staff person.  

• Zoning Ordinance Revision/update 
o Evaluate alternative methods to encourage infill, redevelopment, and 

mixed use developments 

• City support of construction of new hospital and redevelopment of the existing 
property 

• Recodification of City Code  
o ~60 page memo detailing primary changes to council – Dec 
o Committee meeting – Jan, if needed.  

• Develop Stormwater/Grading Ordinance 

• Evaluate additional land acquisition for economic development 

• Evaluate adding new TIF Districts or re-establishing existing districts 

• Allocate additional General Fund revenues resulting from Unified TIF District 
close-out for future economic development projects  

• Parking study – downtown 

• Collaborate with School District regarding school playground areas 

• Rec Center    use/needs market/leakage study  

• Hearst Center – use/needs study  

• Maintain Employee Wellness Program 
 

 
10. Legislative Priorities: There was general agreement that the council should meet 

with the City’s lobbyist and invite local legislators to meet with the council. 
 

 
11. The participants agreed that the following policy issues should be discussed at 

future City Council Work Sessions: 
 

• Update re: agenda management software – scheduled 11/19/18 

• Greenhill Rd corridor study – scheduled 12/17/18 

• Compost facility  
o monitoring  
o capacity 

109



 6 

o emerald ash borer update 

• Alley projects – allocation of funds for permeable paving 

• Special events insurance 

• North Cedar Residential Development  
o Options for incentives 

• Organizational Effectiveness (see item 13 below) 
 

 
12. New initiatives for the Upcoming 24 Months  

 
• Clarify language in budget regarding dispatch system 

o Organizational Goal 3 Long Term Objective Pg. 7 “working 
towards a ‘county funded’ system.” 

o Replace “working towards” with “exploring” 

• Add full-time dedicated city communications coordinator 

• Consider Establishment of University Ave Corridor TIF District  

• Explore sustainability initiatives (in conjunction with CFU) Discuss Eric 
Giddens Report 

• Discuss with MET to identify options for public transportation 

• Communicate with Regional Workforce Development Agency to identify 
ways to retain recent graduates from UNI and young workers 

• Great Places application (support staff’s decision on whether to go forward) 

• Pettersen Plaza redevelopment  

 
 

13. Organizational Effectiveness Initiatives 
 

Due to time limitations, review and discussion of these ideas relating to 
improving organizational effectiveness were deferred to a subsequent session.  
 

 
 

Final Comments 
 

It was a pleasure to again assist the City of Cedar Falls with this goal setting process. We 
were particularly impressed with the level of cooperation and collaboration between the 
City Council and the staff. 
 
 
 
Eric Christianson 
Iowa State University Extension and Outreach 
 
Jeff Schott  
 
December 10, 2018 

  
110



 7 

      EXHIBIT A 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS GOAL SETTING – 2017 

ELECTED OFFICIALS INTERVIEW RESPONSES 

 

 

1.  From your perspective, how is the City of Cedar Falls doing?  

• Doing really great (6) 

• Staffing challenges – retirements, turnover (Engineering) (2) 

• Lots of projects underway – lots of things coming up in next few years (2) 

• Stable financial position (2) 

• Doing well but can always do better 

• Doing well but potential clouds on the horizon – national/regional 
economic issues, increasing interest rates, buildings without adequate 
parking 

• Financially responsible, strong financial position  

• Doing well but always areas for improvements 

• With exception of PSO issue, doing well 

• Doing things on cutting edge – e.g., PSO – some people having trouble 
with PSO 

• Good planning 

• Need to stay focused on key priorities 

• Accountability – mixed per individual’s view of government 

• Need to clarify roles and responsibilities – Mayor, City Administrator 

• Attracting new businesses 

• Are we leading from behind or leading development? 

• We should be more proactive – maybe we’re too reactive 
 
  

111



 8 

2. In your opinion, what are the key issues of paramount importance to the City of 

Cedar Falls that need to be addressed in terms of leadership direction, goals, 

programs, policies and resource allocation in order to achieve the city’s strategic 

vision? 

 

• PSO issue (5) 
o Reaching a point where public has accurate and clear 

understanding and consensus, address misinformation (3) 
o Need strategic plan 

• Form-based zoning (4) 

• Parking issues – downtown and College Hill (4) 

• Revise Zoning Ordinance to reflect future needs of CF (3) 

• River improvements – White Water project (3) 

• Increased economic development opportunities – increased job growth (2) 

• Improving energy efficiency, sustainability (2) 

• Revisit restructuring of city staff from 4-5 years ago – need to determine if 
we need more staff or redefine roles to ensure we are keeping up and not 
burning out staff 

• Work as a leadership team to define a clear VISION for where we hope to 
see CF in 20 years and identify strategies to get there 

• Update strategic plan 

• Establish expectation that council members and P & Z members attend 
relevant workshops and training opportunities 

• Streets – repair and replace 

• Succession planning – lots of excellent employees retiring 

• Infill development – prioritize 

• Options for public transportation 

• Availability of housing – esp. for first-time owners and younger workers 

• Retention of UNI graduates in the community 

• Status of “emergency fund”; level of fund balance 

• Implementation of plans – being more proactive 

• Downtown plan 

• Complete Streets policy – council commitment 

• How to deal with outside economic forces 

• Consequences of overregulation/wrong regulation of rental market 

• Issues regarding density/walkability/biking  

• Using Iowa City as a model for Cedar Falls – not applicable 
 

 

 

 

 

 

112



 9 

3. What specific issues or concerns would you like to see addressed at the council 

goal setting session on Nov. 13? 

 

• PSO Program (4) 

• PSO Program – develop and disseminate strategic plan 

• Form-based zoning ordinance (4) 
o Applicability of form-based zoning to CF 

• Revise Zoning Ordinance (3) 

• Make decision regarding the flood emergency fund; (3) 
o Is it emergency fund or flood emergency fund? Rename? 
o Level of fund balance to be maintained?  

• White Water time line & funding – confirmation re use of flood reserve 

• Upcoming economic development initiatives 

• Economic development – more focus on quality of life and general 
attraction of the community – not just financial incentives 

• More specific initiatives related to sustainability (utilize info from Eric 
Giddens of UNI) 

• Take more seriously recommendations of the Bicycle Committee and 
implement as many as possible right away 

• More work with Waterloo and Cedar Valley to take advantage of regional 
grant funding opportunities 

• Work with UNI to help them achieve their goal of 13,500 students 
enrolled by 2023. 

• Review/discuss process/format/timeline regarding strategic plan 

• Retaining the character of downtown 

• Agreement on the CIP 

• Sustainable city budget 

• N Cedar residential development – policy direction from council, financial 
incentives? 

• Affordable housing 

• Plaza downtown – should there be city investment? 

• General conversation about downtown development 

• Definition of principal uses per Zoning Ordinance 

• Code enforcement issues 

• Incentives for economic development – are they still appropriate given 
current and future economic conditions 

• Rental occupancy standards– parking requirements 

• Evaluate complete streets policy – is this sensible and/or economical, 
especially considering Iowa weather (requirement for bike lanes) 
 

 
 
 
 

 

113



 10 

4. Are there specific major projects that are currently under consideration by the 

City Council that you would like to see completed? If so, please identify them. 

 

• Form-based zoning (5) 

o Emphasis on infill development 

• PSO (4) 

o Accelerate transition to a Public Safety Dept 

• Complete overhaul of Zoning Ordinance (3) 

o And related ordinances (e.g., Subdivision Ordinance) 

• Greenhill Rd project (4)  

o Evaluate alternatives re intersection treatments 

o Round-abouts (2) 

• River improvement project (4) 

• White Water project (4) 

o Whitewater project – move ahead using Flood reserve $ 

• Main St reconstruction (3) 

• Riverbank improvements 

• Parking – next steps – Downtown and College Hill (2) 

• Downtown streetscape plan (2) 

• Expand Main Street outward 

• Northern Industrial Park expansion is that an option? 

• Island Park drainage issues – put plan together 

• More off-street bike trails 

• Finish trail Union Rd from 12th – 27th 

 
 

5. What new priority initiatives, programs or policies would you like the council to 

consider as part of this year’s goal setting process?  

 

• Add full-time dedicated city communications coordinator/PR staff person 

(3) 

• Evaluate staffing needs (2) 

o Evaluate current staff workload – address issues 

• Evaluate departmental organizational structure (2) 

• PSO program – develop/adopt strategic plan 

• Expand solar gardens – other sustainability initiatives (in conjunction with 

CFU) 

• Hire consultant to identify options for public transportation 

• Establish task force to identify ways to retain recent graduate from UNI 

and young workers 

114



 11 

• Create venture/start-up investment fund to encourage new business 

development and growth 

• Establish University Ave Corridor TIF District 

• Develop Renters’ Bill of Rights – information for renters to know their 

legal rights and responsibilities 

• Switch emphasis of National Night Out to neighborhood focus 

• Consider dredging cedar River between CF & Waterloo – is there value? 

• Officially adopt NextDoor.com for neighborhood outreach  

• Main St façade program – funding to replace CDBG funding 

• Economic development – $150,000 allocation for 

conferences/marketing/recruiting travel 

• Snow removal on on trails for joggers in winter 

• Develop plan for relocation of Waste Water Treatment Plant 

• Establish development regulations to enhance water quality/erosion 

control; evaluate SUDAS standards  

 
 
 

 
 

6. Are there any issues regarding organizational effectiveness, decision-making 

processes, teamwork or related issues you would like to have discussed during 

goal setting? 

 
• Restoring/maintaining backfill (5) 
• Addressing rollback issue – esp multi-residential (3) 
• Restoring home rule (3) 
• Water quality 
• Assignment of condemnation cost 
• Enhance penalties for animal abuse cases 
• Advocate for increased funding for UNI 
• Pursue state-wide public employee health plan 
• Change fireworks laws to allow cities to prohibit 
• Address ex parte communication issue on state-wide basis 
• Collect sales tax on internet purchases 
• Rental guidelines 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115



 12 

7. Are there any issues regarding organizational effectiveness, decision-making 

processes, teamwork or related issues you would like to have discussed during 

goal setting? 

 

• How effective is council in setting a vision – 7 different opinions? (2) 

• Staff does great job (2) 

• Continue holding council work sessions – successful last year 

• Discuss scheduling of work sessions 

• Improve council budget review process 

• Succession planning – transition planning 

• More opportunities for council socialization – get to know each other, 

build relationships 

• Staff – maintaining/retaining 

• Develop tools for enhance resident outreach by council 

• Do better job of including outside experts in decision-making process 

• Encourage council to do “ride-alongs” with staff, tours of city facilities, 

projects 

• UNI student liaison on council – does that position have a purpose? 

Encourage liaision to ask questions, participate in discussions 

• Conduct internal climate assessment survey 

• Code enforcement – responding back to council members re status of case 

• Develop tracking system for council correspondence/communications 

• Hold planning sessions/council goal setting off-site 

• Continue training for staff and elected officials (esp newly elected 

officials) 

• Restore sense of community in city hall 

• Ex parte communications 

• Time limitations for citizen presentations to council 

• Review procedures for reconsidering issues/policies previously acted upon 

by council 

 
8. Other comments 

• Improve organization/format of goal-setting report (suggestions 

submitted) 

 
 
 

 

116



117



118



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     M E M O R A N D U M 

Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Colleen Sole, Personnel Specialist/Human Rights Liaison  

 DATE: December 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Receive & File FY18 Human Rights Commission Annual Report 

 

Attached for your review is the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission’s Fiscal Year 
2018 Annual Report.  Human Rights Commissioners will be in attendance at the 
December 17, 2018, City Council Meeting to briefly review the highlights of the report, 
and Commissioners will be available for any questions you may have.   
 
The Commission asks that the FY18 Annual Report be received and filed at the 
December 17, 2018, City Council Meeting.  If you have questions prior to the meeting, 
please feel free to contact me at 319-243-2712 or Colleen.Sole@cedarfalls.com. 
 
cc:   Human Rights Commission 

119



 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IA 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

HUMAN 
 

RIGHTS 
 

COMMISSION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
ANNUAL REPORT 

 
 
 

FY18 
 

 

120



   Page 2 of 10  

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................................ 3 

MISSION, PHILOSOPHY, COMMITMENT & RESPONSIBILITIES .................. 5 

COMMITTEES .......................................................................................................... 6 

FY18 ACCOMPLISHMENTS & CHALLENGES ................................................... 7 

FY18 CASE ACTIVITY INFORMATION .............................................................. 8 

ANNUAL BUDGET .................................................................................................. 9 

TRAINING/CONFERENCES/EVENTS .................................................................. 9 

COMMISSIONERS ................................................................................................. 10 

SUPPORT STAFF ................................................................................................... 10 

CONTACT INFORMATION .................................................................................. 10 

 
 

 

121



   Page 3 of 10  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 continued progress for the Cedar Falls Human Rights 

Commission.  This section summarizes these changes. 

  

Commission Legal Support: Attorney Kevin Rogers is the Commission’s primary legal 

counsel.  Attorney Rogers is available to assist the Commission and staff with complaint 

processing. 

 

Local Claims Processing:  Local claim processing continued, offering mediation, fact-finding, 

and conciliation services to individuals who file complaints during the aforementioned 

timeframe.  Continued efforts in encouraging mediation as a tool in the claims process resulting 

in fewer legal costs.  Commissioners continued to actively serve as fact-finders to determine 

probable or no probable cause in claims reaching beyond mediation.   

 

Fact Finding:  Preparations involve copying and distributing files; file review by fact-finders, 

fact-finding planning meetings, contact with claimant, respondent, and witnesses, and the fact-

finding session itself.  Duration of the sessions vary, but can take several hours, followed by 

discussion and the writing of a “Probable” or “No Probable” Cause determination reviewed by 

the Commission’s attorney.  Total estimated time per fact-finding depends upon the merits of 

each case. 

 

Furthering CFHRC Services: 

 

Federal and State Ordinance Revisions – Updates to Federal and State ordinance revisions 

are reviewed in order to maintain compliance with the Civil Rights Act and claim processing 

procedures.     

 

Annual Planning Retreat – the Commission’s first annual planning retreat was held April 

2002 and proved beneficial in reviewing Commission accomplishments and establishing 

goals for the next fiscal year.  As of May 2018, the Commission facilitated its 17
th

 planning 

retreat and plans to continue annually.  The 2018 Retreat included Representative Bob 

Kressig, City Council Member Rob Green, Iowa Civil Rights Director Kristin Johnson, and 

the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission. 

 

Committee Goals – Committees continue to develop annual goals to accomplish throughout 

the year.  This information is included in this report. 

 

Finance and Funding – review of Commission income and expenditures continued (see 

financial section of this report).   

 

Education/Professional Development – the continued goal of the Education/Professional 

Development is to educate the community and the Commission.  Commissioners attend various 

educational conferences and seminars to expand their knowledge. 

 

122



   Page 4 of 10  

Human Rights Networking – the Commission continued local, state and regional relationships 

with other human rights professionals and groups.  Through these groups and individuals, 

commissioners and staff have established relationships with local State of Iowa Legislators and 

Iowa Civil Rights Commission Staff.  Commissioners are strongly encouraged to attend Iowa 

Civil Rights and Human Rights League events to continue relationships and broaden their 

knowledge.   

 

 

123



   Page 5 of 10  

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission is responsible for enforcing the laws and educating the 

community regarding discrimination as provided in the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances.   

 

 

PHILOSOPHY 

The Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission is committed to: 

1. Enforcing the laws regarding discrimination as provided in the State Code of Iowa and 

City of Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances. 

2. Investigating complaints of discrimination in Cedar Falls. 

3. Studying and attempting to eliminate discrimination in Cedar Falls.  

4. Cooperating with state and federal agencies in law enforcement activities and developing 

civil rights educational programs. 

5. Providing a pro-active approach to the education of the community, employers and 

employees on human rights issues, including support for local organizations. 

 

 

PRIMARY COMMITMENT 
The Commission is concerned primarily with long-term goals and ways by which those goals are to 

be achieved.  The Commission should establish objectives within its areas of responsibility and then 

focus on the desired results. There are two overriding questions that commission members should 

continually be asking themselves: 

1. Are we working to achieve our mission on behalf of the community? 

2. Given new information, new wisdom, and new possibilities, what should we strive to 

accomplish for whom and at what cost in the next year?  The next five years? 

 

 

PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILTIES 

The principal responsibilities of the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission include the 

following: 

1. To advocate for human rights and serve as a link between the Commission and the 

community.   

2. To establish policies that provide direction for the agency, reflect the values of the 

commission, and comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 

3. To establish the long-range vision required to meet local community needs. 

4. To plan actively for the future of the commission. 

5. To provide spending suggestions to city personnel. 

124



   Page 6 of 10  

COMMITTEE DESCRIPTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 

The Chairperson of the CFHRC serves as an ex-officio member to all of the subcommittees approved 

by the CFHRC. 

 

Executive – This committee shall include the Commission Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson, and 

Past-Chairperson.  This committee assists in the preparation of the monthly Commission agenda, 

makes recommendations to the Commission regarding development of policies and procedures, and 

serves as primary contact with the Commission regarding legal matters and assist with the 

development of timely information to the Mayor, City Council, Press, and Public at large.  The 

Executive Committee is also responsible for production of the annual report.  This committee 

normally meets prior to the regular Commission meeting on the third Monday of the month. 

 

Finance and Funding – This Committee shall consist of a minimum of three (3) Commissioners.  

This committee will work with the City’s Commission Liaison and provide this individual with 

recommendations and requests to be included in the City of Cedar Falls budget process each fiscal 

year.  The committee will also assist in researching additional funding streams for the Commission 

such as grants, cooperative agreements, workshops, etc.   This committee meets as required. 

 

Education/Professional Development – This combined committee shall consist of a minimum of 

three (3) Commissioners.  The committee will incorporate the Commission efforts to develop a 

method to educate employers, employees, educating systems, and the public at large regarding 

human and civil rights issues.  This committee shall also provide the entire Cedar Falls Human 

Rights Commission with information regarding local and regional trainings related to the area of 

human and civil rights.  Responsibilities include the planning of the Annual Retreat.  This committee 

meets as required. 

 

Cedar Falls 2020 and 2025 Vision and Strategic Plan – This combined committee was formed 

with the intent to complete the request for the Cedar Falls Human Right’s Commission’s 

involvement in the Cedar Falls 2020 Vision and Strategic Plan.  Responsibility of this committee 

was to continue the efforts of the vision.  The Commission will review the 2025 Vision and 

Strategic Plan on an as needed basis.  A committee will be created if there is a need.  
 

125



   Page 7 of 10  

FY18 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

& CHALLENGES BY COMMITTEE  
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Executive Committee Accomplishments: 

1. FY17 Annual Report 

2. FY18 ICRC COOP Agreement 

3. May 2018 Retreat information and FY18 Goals  

4. Continued communication and cooperation with local and state officials 
 

Executive Committee Challenges: 

1. Maintain a full Commission 

2. Explore the Commission’s role 

3. Support and attend committee meetings for continuity 

4. Continue to build relationships 

5. Review of City Ordinance No. 2661 

 

 

EDUCATION/PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Education/Professional Development Committee Accomplishments: 

1. Promoted the Commission through community education 

2. Participated in Community Events 

3. Supported Commissioner education 

4. Continue to build community relations; UNI, Waterloo Commission on Human Rights, local 

organizations, and local and state officials 
 

Education/Professional Development Committee Challenges: 

1. Raise Awareness and Educate the community about discrimination issues 

2. Attendance at local events 

3. Educate Commissioners 

4. Continue to build relationships with UNI, the Community, City Council, State Officials, and 

the Waterloo Commission on Human Rights 

5. Implement Vision 2025 

 

 

FINANCE & FUNDING COMMITTEE 
 

Currently all finance and funding decisions are made by the Commission as a whole.  If there is a 

need for a committee in the future, one will be assigned. 

126



   Page 8 of 10  

 

CASE ACTIVITY 

   Fiscal Year 2017 2018 
      

Inquiries 13 16 

Referred to Services other than Human Rights 1 2 

Referred to ICRC or Other Jurisdiction 9 13 

No Claim Received 4 0 

     

Cases Opened 0 1 

Open Cases 3 4 

Mediation 0 0 

Mediation Settled 0 0 

Fact Finding Completed 0 1 

Conciliation 0 0 

Conciliation Settled 0 0 

Public Hearing 0 0 

Closed Case 3 0 

Case Status 1 – Admin Closure 
1 – NPC  
1 – Transfer to State 
3– Pending  
1 – Mediation Complete  
1 – Fact Finding 

1 – Fact Finding 
3– Pending Admin Closure 

 

  
 

 

Area 
6 – EMP  
 

 4 – EMP  
 

Basis(es) 4 – Color/Race  
1 – Pregnancy  
1 – Age  

 

3 – Color/Race  
1 – Age  

 

 

KEY………………… 

CLAIM STATUS 
 

AREAS 
 

BASIS 

NPC No Probable Cause 
 

C = Credit 
 

Race/Color 
 

Religion 

PC Probable Cause 
 

EDU = Education 
 

Creed  
 

National Origin 

MED Mediation 
 

EMP = Employment 
 

Sex 
 

Family Status 

FF Fact Finding 
 

PA = Public Accommodation 
 

Gender Identity 
 

Marital Status 

PC/CON PC, Move to Conciliation 
 

  
 

Sexual Orientation 
 

Age 

WD Withdrawal 
 

  
 

Disability    (Pregnancy) 

RTS Right-To-Sue 

      

127



   Page 9 of 10  

ANNUAL BUDGET 

 

Source Received Dollars Spent Balance 

General Fund $ 1,500.00 $      551.48  $   948.52    

 

 

 

 

TRAINING/CONFERENCES/EVENTS 
 
 

1. Pride Fest (08/17) 

2. UNI Social Justice Class (09/17-12/17) 

3. FY18 ICRC COOP Agreement approved by City Council (10/17) 

4. Annual Freedom Fund Banquet (10/17) 

5. Cedar Valley Conference on Diversity and Inclusion (10/17) 

6. Young Leaders in Action (10/17) 

7. Greater Cedar Valley Economic Inclusion Summit (10/17) 

8. Annual Iowa Civil Rights Symposium (10/17) 

9. Greater Cedar Valley Alliance & Chamber Bus Tour (12/17) 

10. FY17 Annual Report received and filed by City Council (12/17) 

11. Cedar Valley United Nations Association Sponsored Events (12/17) 

12. Martin Luther King, Jr. Banquet (01/18) 

13. UNI Social Justice Class (01/18-04/18) 

14. UNI CEEE Events (02/18) 

15. UNI’s Common Read (02/18) 

16. African-American Children & Families Conference (02/18) 

17. Iowa League of Human Rights (02/18) 

18. LGBTQ Health & Wellness Conference (02/18) 

19. Des Moines Civil/Human Rights Commission Symposium (03/18) 

20. CultureFest (04/18) 

21. Governor’s Conference on LGBTQ Youth (04/18) 

22. Community Cinco de Mayo Celebrations (05/18) 

23. Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission Annual Retreat (05/18) 

128



   Page 10 of 10  

COMMISSIONERS SERVING DURING FY18 

  
  Appointed  Re-Appointed Term Expires 

Willie Barney  09-25-08  07-10-17 07-01-20  

Todd Blanford  01-04-16  06-20-16 07-01-19 

Amy Bonebrake  02-16-15  07-01-16 07-01-19 FY18 Chair 

Teri Jorgensen  05-23-11  07-01-16 07-01-19 

Susan Langan  05-13-02  06-18-18 07-01-21  

Spencer Luvert  07-26-99  07-10-17 07-01-20 FY18 Past Chair 

Andrew Morse  07-10-17  06-18-18 07-01-21 

Kei-Che Randle  07-20-15  06-18-18 07-01-21 FY18 Vice Chair 

Eashaan Vajpeyi  05-14-12  07-01-16 03-05-18  

Nicole Winther  04-12-04  07-10-17   07-01-20          

Jeff Zaputil  12-15-14  06-18-18 07-01-21 

 

 

 

 

SUPPORT STAFF FOR FY18 

 
Colleen Sole, Personnel Specialist & Human Rights Commission Liaison 

 

Kevin Rogers, Cedar Falls City Attorney 

 

 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
MAILING ADDRESS: 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

LOCATION:   City Hall, Administrative Services Department 

HOURS:   8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday – Friday 

TELEPHONE:  (319) 273-8600 or (319) 243-2712      

FAX:    (319) 268-5126 

REGULAR MEETINGS: Third Monday of most months at 7:00 p.m.   

MEETING LOCATION: City Hall - Duke Young Memorial Conference Room 

129



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  December 12, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal. 

b) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Beck's Taproom Grill & Deringer's Public Parlor (f/k/a Noble Oak), 314 Main Street, 
Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

d) College Square Cinema, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - change 
in ownership. 

e) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
change in ownership. 

130



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 4, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Council/Mayor Salary Adjustments 

 
Attached is a resolution showing the pay increases for elected officials for calendar year 
2019.  These are in accordance with State Code and City Ordinance as follows: 
 
Per Iowa Code Section 372.12(8):  By ordinance, the council shall prescribe the 
compensation of the mayor, council members, and other elected city officers, but a 
change in the compensation of the mayor does not become effective during the term in 
which the change is adopted, and the council shall not adopt an ordinance changing the 
compensation of the mayor, council members, or other elected officers during the 
months of November and December in the year of a regular city election.  A change in 
the compensation of council members becomes effective for all council members at the 
beginning of the term of the council members elected at the election next following the 
change in compensation.   
 
Per City Code of Ordinances Section 2-43 (council members) and 2-154 (mayor), an 
annual salary adjustment equal to the latest calendar year annual federal consumer 
price index, which was 2.1% for this past year.  
 

The approval of this resolution is a formality to document the state law and city 

ordinance.   The salary ordinance can be changed by a majority of the Council 
members, but it would not apply until after the 2019 local elections and thus start on 
January 1, 2020. 
 
You may recall seven years ago, I presented in committee a history of elected official 
increases and a chart illustrating the different types of inflation factors that could be 
used.  Whether you use the national CPI, the Midwest CPI, or the local valuation 
increases, the average increase over the 10 year period was not that substantially 
different.  In fact in most cases the raises would have been higher, or would have 
fluctuated more.  After the presentation, the Council did not decide to pursue changing 
the ordinance. However, if the council would like to discuss the issue again, the Council 
could look at amending the ordinance.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 

131



NAME POSITION BAND HOURLY MONTHLY ANNUAL

CITY COUNCIL

Mark Miller Council Member 1st Ward

January 1, 2019 514.45 6,173.40

Susan deBuhr Council Member 2nd Ward

January 1, 2019 514.45 6,173.40

Daryl Kruse Council Member 3rd Ward

January 1, 2019 514.45 6,173.40

Tom Blanford Council Member 4th Ward

January 1, 2019 514.45 6,173.40

Frank Darrah Council Member 5th Ward

January 1, 2019 514.45 6,173.40

Dave Wieland Council Member - At Large

January 1, 2019 514.45 6,173.40

Rob Green Council Member - At Large

January 1, 2019 514.45 6,173.40

MAYOR'S OFFICE

Jim Brown Mayor

January 1, 2019 44.766 7,759.44 93,113.28

PAYROLL RESOLUTION - ELECTED OFFICIALS

CALENDAR YEAR 2019

12/3/2018

132



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY20 Goals     

 
Each year after the Council completes the goal setting sessions, detailed goals for the 
new fiscal year are finalized.  Attached are the goals for FY20.  This document takes 
the goals from the prior year and implements any new goals or changes in the current 
goals based on policies discussed by the Council in developing the CIP, the budget and 
establishing other priorities for the upcoming year.  
 
After adoption, the goals are included in the budget document to be used as a 
reference during the fiscal year.  
 
If you have questions regarding the goals, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

133



 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

CITY COUNCIL GOALS, SHORT TERM FINANCIAL PLAN & WORK PROGRAM 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 

 
 
MISSION 

MAINTAIN AND IMPROVE THE SAFETY AND DESIRABILITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
THROUGH THE EFFICIENT DELIVERY OF PUBLIC SERVICES, AND THE 
ONGOING PRACTICE OF OPEN COMMUNICATION AMONG COUNCIL, STAFF, 
MAYOR, AND THE CITIZENS. 

 
 
ORGANIZATION GOAL 1 

Continue to provide a representative system, which identifies and anticipates 
concerns, problems, and opportunities, which are effectively addressed with 
thoughtful and decisive governmental actions. 
 
Supporting Policies: 

� Set policies and guidelines, which provide broad direction to administrators who 
formulate management decisions to provide efficient service offerings and operations. 

� As a policy-making body, interpret community needs and values and convey them to 
City staff through consistent legislative and policy actions. 

� Continue to provide a forum for public input related to City actions through open public 
meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces, local access cable 
television, and web-based media. 

� Develop cost effective methods of informing the public of available ways to provide 
input to encourage wider participation in the various boards, commissions, task forces, 
and other support groups providing input to the City. 

 
Long Term & On-going Objectives: 

� Continue to hold an annual joint meeting with Cedar Falls Utilities to discuss the 
impacts and strategies to deal with  the on-going transfer of Utility funds in lieu of 
property taxes, franchise fees, use of right-of-way, TIF reimbursement, and support of 
entrepreneurship 

� Hold joint meetings with policy making City boards such as the Library Board and the 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 

� Consider holding when timely, joint meetings with the Waterloo City Council, Black 
Hawk County Supervisors, Cedar Falls Community School District and the University 
of Northern Iowa. 

� Encourage the professional development of City Council members and advisory 
boards by providing staff facilitated work sessions, training sessions and innovative 
project presentations from other cities. 

134



 

 

2

 

� Explore the potential of intergovernmental cooperation options with Waterloo, CFU, 
UNI, the County or other governmental bodies. Examples include:  art & culture 
services, airport operations, public safety services, transit systems, economic 
development coordination, emergency response, sewer infrastructure, shared facilities 
or equipment. 

� Continue work on joint CFU, Cedar Falls Schools and UNI projects. 

� Discuss with MET to identify options for public transportation.  

� Continue to develop 10-year community strategic plans at 5-year intervals. 

FY20 Detailed Objectives: 

� Metro area objectives: 

o City of Waterloo 

� Support the creation of a Regional Airport Authority, if initiated and 
supported by the City of Waterloo. 

� Support the Police and Fire Chief level discussions expressing City 
support for the development of Fire and Police mutual aid agreements 
with the City of Waterloo that promote faster emergency response times 
and the reduction of callback expenses for both cities.  

� Promote the development of a metro fire station location study. 

� Common legislative goals 

� Waterloo use of Cedar Falls’ refuse transfer station 

� Cooperative efforts to upgrade the consolidated public safety dispatch 
system and look for alternatives to keep dispatch costs low.  

� Cooperative use of sanitary sewer systems based on natural gravity flow 
basins  

� Cooperative sewer regionalization study 

o Monitor the efforts and benefit of regional economic development organizations.  

• Continue participation in the Cedar Valley Alliance to ensure Cedar Falls 
external marketing interests are best served. 

• Continue to monitor all economic development agencies (Community Main 
Street, College Hill Partnership, and Cedar Valley Alliance) to determine if cash 
subsidies result in services of value to Cedar Falls citizens and businesses.  

o Continue to maintain a Cedar Falls Visitors and Tourism Bureau. 

• Continue to coordinate marketing and programming efforts between the UNI, 
Cedar Falls and Waterloo Visitors and Tourism Bureaus for all Metro tourist 
events. 

� University of Northern Iowa objectives: 

o Enhance communication with the University of Northern Iowa to address public 
safety issues, parking, College Hill neighborhood issues, equitable payment for 

135



 

 

3

 

City services, sharing of facilities and the elimination of duplicated governmental 
services. 

o Specifically study with UNI management staff the development of shared service 
contracts that involve policing, fire protection, dispatch, street maintenance, 
utilities, and recreational facility development or usage. 

o Continue to coordinate the development of new City open field recreational uses 
with UNI to minimize the purchase of additional land allowing City funds to be used 
for site development. 

o Communicate with Regional Workforce Development Agency and UNI to identify 
ways to retain recent graduates from UNI.  

� Cedar Falls Schools objectives: 

o Encourage the Cedar Falls Schools to maintain an elementary school in northern 
Cedar Falls consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Citizens Visioning Committee 
recommendations. 

• Assist the Cedar Falls School District with infrastructure improvements that 
create parking areas, joint City/Schools playgrounds, building expansion areas 
and resolution of drainage problems at the North Cedar School site. 

o Develop  designs near public schools, which improve parking and pedestrian traffic 
conditions similar to Orchard Hill, Southdale, and Lincoln Schools.  

o Coordinate with the Cedar Falls Schools the completion of the new neighborhood 
elementary school and park and a new or remodeled high school. As part of the 
process, identify existing local, county and state of Iowa public facilities, programs 
and property to minimize duplication of services. 

� Cedar Falls Utilities objectives: 

o Annually consider repaying eligible CFU expenses (if excess TIF revenues exist) 
for projects they have completed in City TIF districts, subject to, CFU maintaining a 
fair and updated annual transfer that equitably compensates the City for return on 
investment from City ownership, property taxes, franchise fees and use of ROW. 

• City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally 
incurred TIF debt annually by December 1 for all completed City and CFU 
construction work within the Industrial Park TIF District to better position the 
City and CFU financially. 

o Support CFU in the implementation of their water service programs as they are the 
sole governmental entity authorized by code to provide these services. 

•    Implement public water special assessment programs if requested by CFU to 
install a public water system in unserviced areas such as northern Cedar Falls, 
Viking Place, Horseshoe Drive and other rural areas, if requested and 
financially supported by the majority of benefited property owners. 

� The City will commit CDBG funds if eligible to pay for service line connection 
for all residents who are income eligible and property taxes to pay for fire 
hydrants (consistent with the Cherrywood subdivision policy); CFU will pay 

136



 

 

4

 

for all water line over-sizing and property owners will be responsible for all 
other expenses, less any other funding sources. 

Explore sustainability initiatives in conjunction with CFU. 

� Local governance objectives: 

o Maintain the issuance of the Mayor’s “Updates” to include the status of 
accomplishing City Council priorities, major projects, upcoming activities and key 
information. 

o Maintain a program for orientation of new City Council members, including 
“Frequently Asked Questions,” as suggested by City Council members. 

o Develop an “action plan” for accomplishing the City Council’s planning goals. The 
action plan should define the steps that would be needed to accomplish each goal, 
identify who is responsible for implementation, and establish a timeline for 
implementing the goals on a quarterly basis.   

o Continue to incorporate into council agenda memos how the item being presented 
fits into the City Council’s goals and priorities.   

o Develop a listing of governmental units, neighborhood groups and outside 
agencies that Council members would like to periodically meet with to discuss 
common interests. 

o Hold a meeting with a facilitator, the Mayor, City Council members and key staff to 
discuss goal-setting process/potential changes in format prior next year’s goal-
setting sessions. 

o Hold several special worksessions on council meeting Mondays to discuss larger 
policy issues, including Greenhill Road Corridor Study, Compost Facility, Alley 
projects, Special Events insurance, North Cedar Residential Development 
incentives, and organizational effectiveness. .  

 
 
ORGANIZATIONAL GOAL 2 

Maintain and improve effective communications and marketing programs for the 
citizens of Cedar Falls. 
 
Supporting Policy: 

� The City will continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication 
with its citizens for the purpose of informing them of its activities and 
accomplishments. 

 
Long Term & On-going Objectives: 

� Continue to investigate ways to increase the use of city newsletter, website, cable 
television, social media and fiber optics technology to communicate with the citizens of 
Cedar Falls. 

 

 

137



 

 

5

 

FY20 Detailed Objectives: 

� Annually hold a City Council work session with representatives of neighborhood 
associations to discuss issues, concerns and priorities. The joint work session will 
allow neighborhood groups to hear from each other the range and scope of competing 
interests that must be weighed by the City Council. 

� Develop a new public relations/marketing position that can proactively provide news 
about the City through social media and other traditional media sources.  

� Maintain emergency response plans that: 

o Provide for flood evacuation plans for northern Cedar Falls, downtown areas and 
other properties located on flood-prone tributaries. 

o Provide maps and charts for public distribution that illustrate when select events 
occur during flooding. 

o Provide text, phone e-mail, or social media methods of providing notices to citizens 
of emergency events. 

o Provide door-to-door notifications by firefighters and public safety officers. 

 
ORGANIZATIONAL GOAL 3 

Deliver public services in a cost effective, efficient, professional, and timely manner. 
 
Supporting Policy: 

� Ensure that the community's health, safety, and welfare are protected through the 
provision of essential, cost-effective public services. 

 
Long Term & On-going Objectives: 

� Continue to monitor the City's capacity to provide adequate maintenance of its growing 
infrastructure.  Maintain a long-term maintenance plan, including a contingency plan to 
respond to reductions in maintenance funds if encountered in the long term. 

� Continue to identify and investigate appropriate activities/services for privatization. 

� Continue offering an annual street repair program with RUT and LOST available 
revenues.   

� Annually ensure that basic municipal services (police, fire, parks, sewers, roads, 
refuse collection) are offered while constantly developing methods of increasing 
efficiency in these essential services. 

� Encourage citizen involvement with government to reduce costs.  (Examples include:  
picking up leaves, moving cars to assist with more efficient plowing of snow, cleaning 
sidewalks, use of volunteers (examples are: Library, Community Center, Hearst 
Center, V&T), recycling and police reservists & fire volunteers as supplemental 
support staffing.) 

� Increase the number of alternative staff in police and fire while improving services and 
reducing overtime costs by annually recruiting new citizen reservists, volunteers, 
public safety officers, and paid on call City staff. 

138



 

 

6

 

� Periodically conduct an evaluation of the costs and benefits of participation in the 
Consolidated Dispatch Center and CJIS.  Determine the fair share of costs that should 
be assigned to Cedar Falls while exploring a "county funded" system in the long-term. 

� Maintain the Police Community Service Officer program to help supervisory personnel 
with office duties, allowing supervisors to work closer with the public and provide 
direction in the field supervision of down-line employees. 

� Maintain staffing levels in all departments that reduce overtime by matching staffing 
levels to specific service demands as opposed to predetermined rigid standards. 

 
FY20 Detailed Objectives: 

� Expand the City’s Public Safety Officer (PSO).  Review the need for expanding the 
Paid-on-Call (POC) program appropriately for each division as the PSO program’s 
success may change the needs on the fire side.  Review and expand other cross-
training programs, such as the police reserve program. 

o Actively solicit and encourage Police and Fire employees to participate in the POC 
and PSO program or other cross training programs because their availability from 
shift increases the range of time they are readily available. 

o Expand the use of PSO’s and POC’s to adequately staff fire stations without adding 
full-time staff or overtime expenses. 

o Ensure that all PSO’s, POC’s, reservists, Community Service Officers (CSO) and 
volunteers are treated as equals and with respect. 

� Continue the use of supervisor performance measurement tools that hold first line 
supervisors accountable for daily staffing decisions.  

o Ensure that weekends and holidays for shift personnel are fully scheduled 
productive “work days.” 

o Continue to manage fire shift overtime in the present manner that has reduced 
unneeded callbacks or staff scheduling that has reduced this expense with the use 
of volunteers, PSO’s, POC’s,  part-time staffing or other cross trained positions. 
(Also see Goal 1, seeking to expand mutual aid agreements with the City of 
Waterloo to cover calls while select fire stations are deployed by either city.) 

o Reward via the performance pay system supervisors who successfully respond to 
workload demands with decisions that adequately protect the safety of employees 
and the public while prudently spending tax dollars that are devoted to overtime 
and callback expenses. 

o Negotiate collective bargaining contractual terms that allow the City to implement in 
Public Works and Parks 4-day, 10-hour workweeks to increase efficiency of 
operations, as appropriate. 

o Fully exercise management rights to schedule full staffing to avoid overtime 
expenses on days where known special events (i.e. Sturgis Falls & UNI 
Homecoming) will tax personnel resources.  

o Utilizing “calls for service”, geographic location, population, roadways, response 
time data, and other data to evaluate the best locations for fire stations city-wide 
and determine if more cost efficient options are available working with and without 

139



 

 

7

 

the City of Waterloo. Maintain a fire station staffing plan that directs personnel to 
stations where the highest number of calls for service occurs. 

� Continue to identify and implement methods designed to better coordinate inspections 
while enforcing land use, property maintenance codes, rental housing, and zoning and 
nuisance ordinance violations citywide with cooperative and coordinated actions by the 
Municipal Operations & Programs, Public Safety Services, Community Development 
and Finance & Business Operations Departments. 

o Dedicate a full time position as the Code Enforcement Officer position in FY20 to 
enforce parking, property maintenance codes, snow removal, zoning, housing, and 
building and nuisance codes. 

• Enforce 48-hour parking laws during and following snowfalls, when citizen 
complaints are filed, when violation is habitual or when the public’s safety is 
compromised. 

• Code enforcement should focus predominantly on health & safety, property 
maintenance and over-crowding/over-occupancy. 

• Rental inspection should be on a 3-year cycle. 

• Minimum building maintenance code inspections and enforcement have 
expanded city wide and will continue to include the College Hill area. 

o Coordinate and consolidate federally subsidized rental and minimum rental housing 
inspection duties.  

• Complete any remaining unimplemented consolidated inspection “business 
processes” to form a system that offers consistent application and interpretation 
of codes while providing inspection services in a timely and cost effective 
manner. 

• Complete the restructuring of operations outlined by internal audit that achieves 
consistency in inspections, improves staffing efficiency, and centralizes 
accounting processes. 

o Enhance Fire Prevention and Suppression programs.  

• Assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial Inspection 
duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

• Improve community fire safety, without adding new fire stations, vehicles and 
manpower, by maintaining the annual citywide smoke detector inspection of 
homes and businesses, recognizing that smoke detectors identify fire hazards 
at the earliest possible time. 

• Utilizing “calls for service”, geographic location, population, roadways, response 
time data, and other data to evaluate best locations for fire stations city wide 
and determine if more cost efficient options are available working with and 
without the City of Waterloo. Ultimately, develop a fire station staffing plan that 
directs personnel to stations where the highest number of calls for service 
occurs. 

• Staff stations whenever possible with a combination of career, PSO, POC, part-
time, ambulance and volunteer staff. 

140



 

 

8

 

� Place firefighter protective gear in police patrol cars for faster response times 
and develop appropriate procedures and policies related to the use of this gear.  

� Consider expanding the installation of compressed air foam systems (CAFS) in 
select police vehicles to provide faster fire suppression response times. 

� The Fire Chief is encouraged to exercise his/her management authorities to 
implement fire station staffing plans, when timely and encourage the Battalion 
Chiefs to use management discretion in determining daily staffing levels using 
alternative staff. 

� Complete the design and construction of a combined Public Safety building that would 
include fire and police operations and would not include additional space for 
regionalized training or city operated ambulance service.  

 
 
ORGANIZATIONAL GOAL 4 

Equitably allocate the community's resources in a manner which cost effectively 
accomplishes the City's mission. 
 
Supporting Policies: 

� Adopt a balanced budget, which is reflective of the community's economic climate and 
needs. 

� Maintain a budget philosophy based on maintaining self-sufficiency in all of the City's 
major funds. 

� Adopt a Capital Improvements Program annually which coordinates major capital 
expenditures and is responsive to property tax levies and the City's debt restrictions. 

� Maintain a stable property tax rate in FY20, depositing annually funds in excess of 
operations expenses, including released TIF funds, in a capital reserve account for 
projects such as public safety center, economic development, public land acquisition, 
redevelopment or other one-time expenses as approved by the City Council. 

� Evaluate each newly proposed service to determine the cost, relative importance and 
value of each service.  Utilize these reports to determine the presence of unnecessary 
duplication within and among the various programs offered or sponsored by the City. 

� Study methods of saving energy within City operations and implement changes where 
it is determined to be cost effective. 

� Cash Reserves 

o The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by 
Council to meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating 
criteria.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



 

 

9

 

o The minimum criteria shall be: 
 

� Maintain a General Fund cash balance of 15-25%, allowing for the 
seasonal cash flows. The City Council established Resolution 9054 that the 
General Fund balance be maintained between 15 and 25% and preferably 
at the 20-25% level. 
 

� The Refuse Fund at 20-30%, but no less than $500,000. 
 

� The Sewer Fund at 65-75%, but no less than $1,500,000. 

 
� The Street Fund at 20-30%, but no less than $1,000,000. 

 
� The Storm Water Fund at 10-20%, but no less than $200,000. 

 
o The City will establish an emergency fund and maintain the reserve balance at 

approximately $1.5 to $2 million.  This fund will help cashflow repairs and staff 
costs if a catastrophic event would occur.  

 
� Revenues 

 
o The revenue projection process starts with estimates submitted by the departments 

for their specific areas.  Finance reviews those estimates and makes informed 
judgments on all revenues City-wide.  Prior year’s actual and current year-to-date 
amounts are used to project both the current year and next year's revenues. 
Information received from the State, County, and Iowa League of Cities is utilized 
to project revenue trends and anticipated amounts. Finance using conservative 
interest rate projections, current balances and interest accrual information, projects 
interest earnings.  The City Administrator and the Mayor then review revenues, 
expenditures and ending fund balances to determine if any revenue adjustments 
need to be made. 
 
• Property Taxes 

 
� The budget of the City of Cedar Falls shall be drawn so that the general tax 

levy does not exceed limits established by State law. 
 

• Debt Service Levy 
 

� Taxes shall be levied each year under the Debt Service Levy in the amount 
equal to the general obligation principal and interest due in that same year, 
minus the portion paid by the enterprise funds and Sartori Hospital and 
Cedar Falls Utilities. 

 
 
 
 

142



 

 

10

 

• Tort Liability Levy 
 

� The City may levy for the expected costs of property and liability insurance 
policies and estimated claims losses held by the City. 

 
• Employee Benefits Levy 

 
� The City shall use the Employee Benefits Levy for: 

 
• The City's share of contributions to police and fire pension and retirement 

systems, at rates determined by the State of Iowa, for currently 
employed sworn officers. 

 
• The City's share of contributions for employee benefits budgeted under 

the General Fund only if the general tax levy is at the $8.10 maximum.  
Tax revenues under the employee benefits levy will be receipted into the 
Trust and Agency Fund and then transferred into the General Fund. 

 
• Emergency Management Levy 

 
� Levy for the design of an upgrade emergency radio system using the EMA 

levy.  
 

� Once designed, support placement of all dispatch, 911 and emergency 
operation under one County-wide EMA levy. 

 
• Transit Levy 

 
� Taxes levied under the transit levy shall not exceed the 95-cent limit 

established by State law.  Tax revenues from the transit levy will be 
receipted into the General Fund. 

 
• Band Levy 

 
� Taxes levied under the Band Levy shall not exceed the 13.5-cent limit 

established by State law.  Tax revenues from the band levy will be receipted 
into the General Fund. 

 
• Library Levy 

 
� Taxes levied under the library levy shall not exceed the 27-cent limit 

established by state law.  Tax revenues from the library levy will be used to 
support the library.  Approximately 50% of the levy will be used for new 
materials and services and approximately 50% will be used to lower general 
fund support to the library. 

 
 
 

143



 

 

11

 

• Other City Taxes 
 

� Sales Tax: The City of Cedar Falls collects an additional 1% in local option 
sales tax.  The revenues and expenditures under this program are recorded 
in a separate fund. 

 
� Hotel/Motel Tax: The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the 

income generated by the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors 
and Tourism Division.  The other 50% is devoted to programs related to 
parks, lakes, trails, and recreational/cultural facilities. 

 
• Fees and Charges 

 
� The City will establish fees and charges, in accordance with revenue bond 

requirements or for covering all or part of the related costs of providing the 
services.  The City will review fees and charges, at a minimum, on a 
biannual basis. 

 
• Investments 

 
� The City will invest 100% of idle funds and will obtain the best possible 

return on all cash investments within the limits of the State law. 
 

• Intergovernmental Revenue 
 

� Revenues from local, State and Federal governments will be used according 
to the restrictions or intent placed on each. 

 
• Additional Revenue Sources 

 
� The City will continue to search for additional revenues as a method of 

balancing its budget. 
 

� Expenditures 
 
o Current Service Level: Maintaining the current level of services will receive first 

priority for funding. 
 

o Cost Effective Programs: The City will encourage technology and capital invest-
ment programs, which are cost effective and reduce operating expenses. 

 
o Infrastructures and Equipment: The City will continue the scheduled level of 

maintenance and replacement for its infrastructure and equipment. 
 
o Local Option Sales Tax: The City will continue to spend 100% of the local option 

sales tax proceeds on street repair in accordance with the stipulations set by the 
voters and City Council resolution. City Council Resolution 15,596 provides that, 
“Zero percent (0%) of said local sales and services tax is to be used for property 

144



 

 

12

 

tax relief. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenue generated in the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa during each fiscal year from said local sales and services tax is 
to be allocated for reconstruction, repair or replacement of existing streets, curbs, 
structures, storm sewers and sanitary sewers as they relate to streets within the 
corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and not as replacement funds for 
the present funding levels, as authorized by the City Council of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa.  

 
o Reductions: To balance the budget, the City will attempt to avoid service 

reductions.  If the situation arises, consideration will be given first to alternatives, 
which avoid employee layoffs, resist cuts in service and establish user fees.  If 
reductions are necessary, parameters for downsizing shall ensure that (1) no 
essential service be eliminated; (2) service with high public visibility and exposure 
remain intact, and (3) reductions be made in internal functions as a first priority. 

 
� Long-Term Debt 

 
o Purpose of Debt: Debt will fund the design, inspection and construction of capital 

improvement projects; it will not be used for annual operating expenses. 
 

o Debt Limit: The total general obligation debt will not exceed 5% of the total 
assessed value of real property.  

 
o Debt Issuance: The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt 

level.  Whenever possible, existing debt should be refinanced to secure the lowest 
possible interest costs. 

 
o Utilize self-financing where allowed or use of cash to fund one-time projects if 

excess cash reserves exist.  
 

� Capital Improvement Program Financial Policies 
 
o The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a planning document and does not 

authorize or fund projects.  The projects listed in the CIP are summarized in the 
capital projects program.  The CIP is prepared by the Finance & Business 
Operations Department, is reviewed by the City Administrator, Mayor and 
Department Directors, approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission with final 
approval by the City Council.  Detailed descriptions and a summary of the CIP are 
located in the Capital Improvement Program section of this document. 
 
• Following is a list of policies pertaining to the Capital Improvements Program: 

 
� The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with an adopted 

capital improvements program. 
 

� The City will develop a multi-year plan for capital improvements and update 
it annually. 
 

145



 

 

13

 

� The City will enact an annual capital budget based on the multi-year capital 
improvement plan.  Future capital expenditures necessitated by changes in 
population, changes in real estate development, or changes in economic 
base will be calculated and included in capital budget projections. 
 

� The City will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with 
development of the operating budget.  Future operating costs associated 
with new capital improvement will be projected and included in operating 
budget forecasts.  
 

� The City will use intergovernmental assistance to finance only those capital 
improvements that are consistent with the capital improvement plan and City 
priorities and whose operating and maintenance costs have been included 
in operating budget forecasts. 
 

� The City will maintain all its assets at a level adequate to protect the City's 
capital investment and to minimize future maintenance and replacement 
costs. 
 

� The City will project its equipment replacement and maintenance needs for 
the next several years and will update this projection each year.  From this 
projection a maintenance and replacement schedule will be developed and 
followed. 
 

� Equipment or projects that have a projected life span less than a bond’s 
maturity will not be financed by the sale of general obligation bonds. 
 

� General obligation bonds or revenue bonds will not be utilized to finance on-
going operating expenses. 
 

� The City will determine the least costly financing method for all new projects.  
 

� Maintain a long-term financial plan to address inadequacies in “City 
managed” infrastructure in unserved areas of the City and progressively add 
them to the CIP when cost effective and if consistent with long range growth 
plans. 
 

� Adoption of the CIP shall however maintain a debt management strategy 
that emphasizes the protection of at least 25-30 percent of the City's debt 
capacity.   
 

� Develop a plan that addresses competing projects, priorities and timing to 
meet this objective jointly by soliciting input from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to ensure that projects are timely, unduplicated and supportive 
of long-range plans.  
 

� The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level. 
(Typically ranging from $3.0 - $4.0 million dollars every other year with CFU 

146



 

 

14

 

utilizing the City’s bank qualified financing capacity in off bond sale years.) 
 

• In 2020, budget for a $3.0 - $4 million dollar GO bond sale. 
• Not use GO funding towards University Avenue project.  Local Option 

Sales Tax funds and additional road use tax funds received from the 
state will be used towards this project.   

• Use flood reserve funds for the projects that were identified on the CIP. 
 

� Incorporate when timely, properly planned, safely engineered and financially 
feasible and design appropriate street and growth concepts in the planning 
and design of all capital projects. 

 
• Additional General Fund financial support for annual maintenance 

expenses to better landscape public roadways should be considered. 
(Also addressed below in the Annual Budget Financial Policies)  

 
� Adopted FY20 CIP priority projects: 

 
• General Obligation Bonds 

o Bridge & Culvert Replacements ($.59 million) 
o Cedar River recreation improvements ($.70 million) 
o Infrastructure oversizing ($.30 million) 
o School site park & street ($.73 million) 
o Cedar Heights Drive reconstruction ($.65 million) 
o Center Street Improvements & Trail ($.48 million) 
o Greenhill Road extension ($.65 million) 
o Greenhill Road & South Main intersection improvements ($1.30) 
o Hudson & West 27th Intersection ($.38 million) 
o Main Street Reconstruction ($2.37 million) 
o West 1st Street ($.64 million) 
o West 12th Street ($.07 million) 
o Storm water improvements & drainage improvements ($.19 million) 
o Hearst Center Expansion ($.70 million) 
o Rec Center Expansion ($.70 million) 
o Pickle ball and tennis courts ($.06 million) 
o Project seeding ($.05 million) 
o Roof additions to park restrooms ($.03 million) 
o Trails, trail safety repairs, and sidewalks ($.69 million) 
o Fire bunker gear ($0.18 million) 
o Fire engine replacement ($.50 million) 
o Fire training facility ($.50 million) 
o Issuance expenses ($0.60 million) 
Total = $13.06 million  

 
 
 
 
 

147



 

 

15

 

• TIF 
o Ridgeway Avenue bridge replacement 
o Venture Way street extension 
o Hudson Road/Ridgeway intersection 
o Comprehensive Plan & Zoning ordinance updates 
o Entrepreneur incentives 
o Prairie Parkway & Viking Road  
o Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 
o US 58 Interchange 
o University Avenue 3rd Phase 
o Viking Road Extension 
o Land Acquisition 
o Roundabout landscape improvements 
o Landscaping, alleys, brick replacement, wayfinding signage, parking, 

& utility improvements associated with streetscape improvements in 
Downtown and College Hill. 
 
 

• LOST 
o Annual resurfacing 
o Annual reconstruction 
o Seal coat 
o West 1st Street 
o Cedar Heights Drive 
o Center Street improvements 
o Greenhill Road improvements 
o University Avenue 
o Permeable Alley Program 
o Bridges/culverts 
o Main Street Reconstruction 
o West 12th Street 

 
• Sewer Fund 

o WWTP 
o Nutrient Removal/Facility Plan 
o Slipline sewers 
o I&I reduction 
o Dry Run Creek sanitary sewer 
o Oak Park sewer replacement 
o University Avenue 
o West 1st Street 
o Sewer equipment 
o Infrastructure oversizing 
o Facility Master Plan Update 
o Regionalization Study 
o Park Drive Force Main 
o Sewer collection study 
o Lift station pump repairs 

148



 

 

16

 

 
• Refuse Fund 

o Refuse trucks 
o Recycling site expansion 
o Compaction equipment 
 

• Road Use Taxes (Street Construction Fund) 
o Street equipment 
o Permeable Alley program 
o University Avenue 
o Signalized intersection upgrades 
o Traffic planning studies 
 

• Flood Reserve Fund 
o Cedar River recreational improvements ( $1.0 million) 
o Center Street improvements ($.5 million) 
o Flood Recovery ($.3 million) 

 
� Annual Budget Financial Policies 

 
o Implement the following FY20 budget practices: 

 
• Continue to maintain the practice of not relying on State operating assistance 

(including backfill after FY17) by using State aid, if provided, to fund one-time 
capital expenditures or non-reoccurring expenses. 

 
• In FY20, if budget reductions are required, all City services should be 

prioritized. This will allow for the most cost effective use of Federal Aid to pay 
eligible “essential” service operating expenses as, if the operating expenses are 
not reoccurring or if more efficient staffing can be achieved.  
 

• In FY20, continue the practice of reducing City financial aid to outside agencies 
if funding shortfalls are damaging the provision of essential services. Retain the 
practice of giving agencies notice annually of the anticipated elimination of 
funding the following fiscal year. 
 

• Budget cuts imposed by the State of Iowa have forced State, University, 
County, School and other non-City service agencies to seek City financial 
support. Requests for aid from any group will only be considered once annually 
during the annual budget process. Mid-year requests will be deferred to the 
next fiscal year unless they are emergency in nature. Financial aid will only be 
provided if there is not financial hardship on City offered essential services and 
the services proposed are not duplicated.  
 

• Applications for City funding support from UNI will only be accepted from the 
Vice President of Administration and Finance once annually. This process 
ensures that all UNI projects or programs seeking City financial aid have been 
approved by UNI management and prioritized. 

149



 

 

17

 

 
• Develop the FY20 budget, limiting tax increases to no more than the rate of 

inflation for controllable costs. 
 

• Dedicate future accumulating cash generated by mid-year budget reductions for 
one-time future expenses such as the Public Safety building, repurposing of 
City Hall, or other capital projects.  

 

• Dedicate TIF release dollars generated by expired TIF areas to future economic 
development projects.  
 

• Continue to analyze cost savings initiatives: 
 

� Evaluate cost-effective alternatives to keep City departments staffed and 
functional. 

� Continue the review of open positions as they occur. 
� Succession planning. 
� Public Safety Officer (PSO) program and alternative employment practices 

(e.g. P.O.C or other cross training programs.). 
� Explore sharing services with other jurisdictions. 
� Investigate the concept of a fee for services for public safety responses. 
� Study privatization of select city services. 

 
• City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally 

incurred TIF debt annually by December 1st for all completed City and CFU 
construction work within the Industrial Park TIF District to better position the 
City and CFU financially. 

• Escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  The City will address annually 
these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a restricted account funds to 
pay these liabilities when they occur.  By policy the City will not unfund these 
liabilities.  (Escrow accounts include severance, payroll, liability insurance, 
vehicle replacement, data processing, workmen's compensation, long-term 
disability and all pensions.) 
 

• Implement user fees for specific City services and evaluate the wisdom of 
implementing State authorized tax levies for statutory services, if the General 
Funds experiences financial limitations. 

 

• Determine if yard waste collection programs need to be altered or expanded 
based on the efficiency of material collection, customer satisfaction and general 
cost efficiency. 

 
� Re-evaluate City-operated leaf vacuum collection rates to determine if they 

are set at levels that encourage property owners with small volumes of 
leaves to compost, mulch or utilize “City” container  disposal methods; but 
ensure that the rate offers a cost effective option for property owners who 
must dispose of large volumes of leafs. 

150



 

 

18

 

 
� Evaluate how the expansion of the hours of operation for the yard waste 

drop off site have impacted revenues and expenditures.   
 

� Continue the City’s marketing and public relations program that encourages 
environmentally safe methods of yard waste disposal and clearly informs 
citizens of the rules that must be abided by under the no burning ordinance. 

 
• Review refuse fees to ensure that sufficient revenues exist to cover all costs 

related to refuse collection.  
 

• Review sewer rental fees to ensure that sufficient revenue exists in the next 
several years to pay for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements and 
other sewer projects. 
 

• Review storm water fees to determine if sufficient fees exist to pay for projected 
storm water costs outlined in the capital improvement program.  

 
• The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest 

income generated by the fund minus an interest income contribution into the 
fund’s principal equal to the rate of inflation in health care.  Principal should only 
be used in negotiating a development agreement for a new hospital or a health 
care provider.  

 
• Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to 

pay the required City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the 
principal shall be used for operating purposes. 

 
• Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with 

their use limited to street operations and maintenance purposes. 
 

• Additional General Fund financial support for annual maintenance expenses to 
better landscape public roadways should be considered. (Also addressed 
above  in the Capital Improvements Financial Policies) 

 
• Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees 

set aside to pay for future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the 
users contributing (examples include the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, 
Hearst Center, Beach House, Big Woods Campground and golf courses). 

 
• The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in 

the General Fund to off-set the cost of supplying City services.  Transfer funds 
shall also be set aside in a capital account to finance various one-time capital 
projects. 

 
 
 

151



 

 

19

 

• Require that all outside agencies seeking City financial support submit formal 
applications that are reviewed by a committee of staff members with 
recommendations forwarded to the Mayor and City Council regarding timely 
reporting, performance, public benefit, funding options and service priority. 

 
• Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required 

by law or policy to support the City’s self-insurance programs. 
 

• Continue to monitor if the State of Iowa continues to roll back 
commercial/industrial taxable values without long-term guaranteed backfill 
funding. 

 
• Evaluate annually the ability of the Library Board to utilize Community 

Foundation Trust accounts to support select programs, operations and capital 
needs. 

 
• Budget TIF qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill 

properties for payment to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership 
rather than payment of City TIF debt. 

 
Long Term & On-going Objectives: 

� See financial policies referenced in Organizational Goal 4. 

� Continue to return City-owned property to the tax base to support revenue and 
economic development. 

 
FY20 Detailed Objectives: 

� Legislative Priorities: 

� Maintain the strategy of utilizing the aid of various lobbying groups, such as 
the Iowa League of Cities and the City’s own lobbyist to influence legislative 
action related to municipal issues such as home rule, fiscal flexibility, 
unfunded mandates, reserve restraints ($8.10 levy, rollback, 411 pension, 
etc.). Continue to oppose any changes to tax increment financing laws that 
would impair its use as an economic development tool and continue to 
support property tax reform initiatives that eliminate the rollback formula that 
shifts burdens among classes of property. 

 

• Process Issues: 

� Continue to meet with legislators to increase rapport, gain insight into 
current legislative directions, and to apprise them of the City's problems with 
revenue generation, as well as the negative impact of unfunded mandates, 
tax exempt and rollback legislation.  Conduct pre- and post-legislative 
session meetings with area representatives annually.  

� Continue to contract with a professional lobbyist to represent the interests of 
the City of Cedar Falls. 

152



 

 

20

 

• State Issues: 

� Support fully funding the state backfill to local governments pursuant to the 
commercial property tax reduction law passed in 2013.  

� Support initiatives to control all public pension costs by returning the state 
funding of a portion of the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of 
Iowa (MFPRSI) and increase employee contribution rates on a “prorated 
basis”, if needed to maintain a solvent pension system. 

� Support initiatives that maintain benefit levels but increase employee 
contributions to maintain a solvent pension system. 

� Support the changing of the 411 Pension vesting period and elimination of 
the DROP program. 

� Support the creation of a State legislative study committee to determine if 
the creation of a State-wide (standardized/centralized) public employee 
health insurance program would save taxpayers and public employees 
money without reducing benefits to employees. 

• Support the elimination of employee healthcare benefits as a mandatory 
subject of collective bargaining by creating a State system. 

� Oppose efforts to eliminate state tax credits that are used for economic 
development projects including new business development and incumbent 
business expansion and to preserve historic tax credits.  

� Support the state providing additional funding sources and flexible policies 
related to water, wastewater, and storm water infrastructure to meet the 
demands of increased environmental regulation for cities.  

• Federal Issues: 

� Federal transportation funding support for the Greenhill Road and 1st Street 
projects. 

� EPA funding for federally mandated treatment plant improvements. 

� Support CFU in securing federal grants to increase regional electrical 
distribution capacity and development or access to redundant fiber trunk 
services into the greater metropolitan area. 

� Seek changes in EPA/DNR Rules Interpretation: Currently EPA/DNR staff in 
the Midwest is improperly interpreting rules related to sewer discharges, 
particularly during periods of wet weather that can overload treatment plants 
and collection systems. The result is forcing cities to spend millions of 
dollars to achieve compliance.  The more restrictive federal rule 
interpretations since 2009 have placed Cedar Falls’ otherwise compliant 
facilities into a frequent violation status that could dictate extreme sewer 
system and treatment plant designs to address rare wet weather flows. In 
essence the EPA/DNR has created a situation where many cities (including 
Cedar Falls) will be in ongoing violation with no reasonable means to 
achieve compliance. Communities will be forced into large expenditures that 
have no relationship to environmental needs or technology rule compliance. 

153



 

 

21

 

� Continue to be a party in the Iowa League of Cities law suit against EPA to 
seek judicial intervention on rule interpretation detrimental to Cedar Falls. 

 
ORGANIZATIONAL GOAL 5 

Preserve the community’s physical, human, and aesthetic assets by assuring that 
“Quality of Life” services are available for the leisure, educational, cultural and 
personal enrichment of residents. 
 
Supporting Policies: 

� Actively support the development of cultural, educational, recreational, and natural 
features, which make Cedar Falls distinctive. 

� Endorse planned community growth, which protects the unique, natural, and historic 
features of Cedar Falls. 

 
Long Term & On-going Objectives: 

� Continue to review and evaluate the ways in which the City and its agencies relate to 
issues of cultural diversity. 

 
FY20 Detailed Objectives: 

� Continue planning for Hearst Center expansion/relocation by first performing a usage 
study. 

� Complete a usage study to determine the viability to continue to design and  plan for a  
Recreation Center expansion 

� Complete the following quality of life projects in FY19 – FY20: 

o Implement when financially feasible an enhanced riverfront as a visitor attraction 
consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Development Master Plan. 

o Purchase land for future parks in developing areas in association with the Cedar 
Falls Schools when possible. 

o Assist in the solicitation of grants and development of the Cedar River including 
dam safety improvements, riverbank improvements, and recreational features. 

o Undertake the second phase of Greenwood Cemetery and Lookout Park Cedar 
River bank stabilization. 

o Complete the All Play Playground project. 

o Complete the Library Co-Lab project. 

o Pettersen Plaza Redevelopment project. 

o Park Master Plan update. 

� Continue to implement portions of the park master plan for the Big Woods Lake, 
Gateway Park and Cedar City sites in 2020. 

154



 

 

22

 

o Make additional improvements at the Big Woods Campground (cabins, playground, 
and landscaping) as funding becomes available and as floodplain development 
ordinances allow. 

� Develop and fund from increased hotel/motel tax revenues an annual Street Right-of-
Way Beautification Wayfinding signage, bike network signage, and City Entrance 
Signage & Monument Program. 

� Consider recommendations from City staff when alternative designs are appropriate 
based on safety, roadway efficiency and financially feasible. Typically, these 
opportunities arise when a street is scheduled for resurfacing or reconstruction 
allowing the City to address issues involving landscaping, pedestrian movements, 
transit, bike and vehicular traffic. 

� Evaluate portions of the Comprehensive Watershed and Sensitive Lands Study to 
protect these areas when financially feasible. 

� Develop a policy to determine appropriate trails marked for removal of snow and 
inform public with a map of those trail routes.  

 
 
ORGANIZATIONAL GOAL 6 

Create an environment conducive to economic development. 
 
Supporting Policies: 

� Function as a catalyst to encourage and assist businesses to develop and expand in 
Cedar Falls. 

� Continue to support public and private economic development efforts in Cedar Falls 
and the metropolitan area. 

 
Long Term & On-going Objectives: 

� Develop initiatives, when financially feasible, to support the economic development 
goals contained in the Vision 2025, College Hill Development, Downtown, Northern 
Cedar Falls Neighborhood Association, University Avenue Corridor District, and 
Commercial Development plans.  Continue to update these plans as needed. 

� Implement the long-term plan for the development of future TIF districts.   This plan 
should include ways to acquire land and provide adequate infrastructure utilizing 
cooperative efforts with other groups and agencies (GCVA, CFU, EDA, IDED and 
IDOT (RISE) see New Objectives in Goal 1 above). 

� Continue the plan for strategic purchases of flood prone properties in a systematic 
manner to retain viable areas based on quality of infrastructure, elevation and 
contiguousness. 

� Prepare on a project–by-project basis an in-depth analysis of the long-term economic 
benefits vs. public investment/risk for each private/public cooperative economic 
development venture. (The analysis must conclude that the long-term financial benefit 
derived by Cedar Falls taxpayers clearly out-weighs the risk of public financial assets.) 

 

155



 

 

23

 

FY20 Detailed Objectives: 

� Economic development: 

o Offer the same type of economic development incentives as other cities, in an 
effort to remain competitive. 

o Continue to utilize TIF increment to acquire land and develop the City owned land 
into marketable industrial lots. 

o Utilize TIF financing as a means to provide cash incentives to developers and 
business owners, when the request in consistent with adopted City economic 
development policies. 

o Provide property tax abatement based on current schedules when the project 
meets adopted job creation and tax base growth criteria.  

o Redevelopment utilizing TIF financing should be considered for projects on College 
Hill, in the Downtown, and in northern Cedar Falls. 

o Allocate funds in the budget to expand marketing efforts.  

 

� Comprehensive planning, zoning, engineering and building: 

o Develop a grading ordinance for all new and existing developments. 

o Implement the City’s new Comprehensive Plan by maintaining: 

• Design standards that protect urban watersheds by encouraging developers to 
utilize natural methods of storm water control rather than traditional 
underground storm water collection and disposal systems. 

• Growth, streets, street connectivity and walkability standards.  

• Encouraging the inclusion of more landscaping on City ROW, if it has a low 
maintenance expense. 

• Trails and on-road accommodation of bicyclists when safely designed. 

o Develop a revised Cedar Falls Zoning Ordinance.  When the ordinance is 
developed consider: 

• Developing new zoning and traffic control regulations to better control density 
and parking problems citywide by reducing the number of multiple family and 
duplex conversions.  

• Requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission consider new zoning 
regulation changes that limit or better control the conversion of single-family 
properties to rental uses as a means of protecting neighborhood stability and 
character. 

• Requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission develop new zoning 
regulations, policies and land use plans that restrict development of non-profit 
uses on prime commercial sites along arterial streets. 

156



 

 

24

 

• A Zoning Ordinance (and Subdivision Ordinance) that better accommodates 
features that encourage mixed uses, variable building setbacks, walkability, 
sustainability and street concepts. 

• Requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission develop as a part of the 
new zoning ordinance zoning map areas that are pre-zoned. 

� Select properties for residential development and pre-zone them, in an effort 
to speed the developmental process, identify neighborhood concerns and 
form developmental limitations in respond to founded neighborhood 
concerns. 

o Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan support the annexation of additional lands 
into the City if requested by property owners to support community growth and 
development. 

o Code enforcement and neighborhood preservation: 

• Evaluate annually the performance of the formally adopted the Landlord 
Accountability Ordinance (LOA). 

• Implement traffic and parking controls City-wide based on the results of 
community meetings, test cases and specific structural or safety limitations 
(street width, density, traffic flow and safety). 

• Enforce laws prohibiting illegal parking on private property (front yards and non-
conforming lots). 

• Enforce over-occupancy regulations. 

• Continue to utilize parking restrictions on all streets less than 31’ in width, 
based on the need for public safety vehicle accessibility. 

• Analyze, when appropriate, the use of traffic calming devices to solve 
neighborhood traffic concerns. 

• Maintain a Targeted Minimum Property Maintenance Code Enforcement 
Program. (Also addressed in Goal 3, FY20 Detailed Objectives.)  

• Consider and implement appropriate ordinances discussed by the Single Family 
Conversion taskforce that limits the number of converted single family home in 
neighborhoods. 

o Continue to seek ways in which to promote affordable housing including:  

• Review of City construction standards. 

• Determine if existing older homes can provide a market for affordable housing 
demand. 

• Target potential developers with RFPs if federal or state grants can be secured. 

• Continue a private/public partnership with Habitat for Humanity developing 
undeveloped or city-owned lots. 

 

 

157



 

 

25

 

� Commercial and Office Development: 

o Support the private development of commercial (retail & wholesale), professional 
office and industrial expansions to improve the City’s residential to 
commercial/industrial land use mix from an 80/20 assessed value split to a 50/50 
assessed value split. 

o Consider development of diagonal on street parking within neighborhoods when it 
is structurally feasible and results in increased parking in areas where deficiencies 
exist. 

o Develop Commercial and Business Park Plans along the Relocated Highway 20 
corridor  and establish a new urban renewal area if appropriate. 

o Support the annexation of property south of US Highway 20, which can be 
immediately serviced with Cedar Falls water, sewer, police and fire protection, if 
petitioned by the property owner and establish a new urban renewal area if 
appropriate 

• Study the future use, ownership and corporate jurisdiction of land along the 
Highway 20 corridor, including cooperative arrangements with the City of 
Hudson if petitioned by property owners for annexation. 

o College Hill: 

• Continue to evaluate the impact of the College Hill Overlay District on 
surrounding neighborhoods. 

o Northern Cedar Falls: 

• Support the development of commercial uses in the NE corner of Lone Tree 
Road and Center Street and at the Lone Tree Road interchange. 

o Downtown: 

• Develop a downtown parking plan that maximizes the number of on-street and 
public parking lot spaces in FY19 and consider a pay-for-parking study. Utilize 
diagonal on street parking when it is structurally feasible and resulting in 
increased parking in areas where deficiencies exist. 

� Industrial Development: 

o Create a new urban renewal area  by acquiring additional land in areas that are 
attractive to the private sector for industrial development yet can be efficiently 
developed at a low public cost. 

o Reserve TIF increment capacity to allow for the payment of debt incurred by the 
cooperative construction of an interchange at Viking Road and US 58 between the 
City and IDOT. 

o Continuing to aggressively repay Industrial Park TIF debt owed to the City debt 
service, economic development and capital project funds.  

o Annually consider repaying eligible CFU expenses (if excess TIF revenues exist) 
for projects they have completed in City TIF districts subject to CFU maintaining a 
fair and updated annual transfer that equitably compensates the City for return on 
investment from City ownership, property taxes, franchise fees and use of ROW. 

158



 

 

26

 

� Sartori site: 

o Plan for the redevelopment of the Sartori site using current health trust fund monies.   

o Organize a staff and council committee to determine options and best uses for that 
site. 

� Flood control, storm water, sanitary sewer and water improvement priorities: 

o Complete the river levee upgrade to a 500-year protection level project in FY19. 
Key areas of improvement will include: 

• Protection of the sewage treatment plant. 

• Protection of CFU (CFU project). 

• Connection of levee walls adjacent to the Western Home (addressed as a part 
of the CFU levee work). 

• Repair select weakened subsurface at the toe of the existing levee. 

o Complete select “priority” waste water treatment system improvements: 

• Increase sewer rental fees to cover costs of sewer infrastructure improvements. 

• Seek a judicial solution to EPA changes in rules interpretations or begin 
designing a treatment upgrade, prepare a financing plan, pre-set sewer rental 
rates and sell bonds to finance the project. 

� Seek federal grants to fund a portion of the project mandated by EPA, 
during the Alliance visit to Washington D.C. 

� Street Improvement priorities: 

o Develop cooperative agreements with the IDOT to improve the following streets 
using Road Use revenues, Local Option Sales tax revenues, and General 
Obligation bonds, if necessary: 

• University Avenue (US58 to east city limits) – 2016-2020 construction. 

• 1st Street (Hudson Road to Main Street) – Consider a cooperative agreement 
similar to the project completed with the IDOT from Hudson Rd. to Union Rd. for 
construction in 2019-2021. (The majority of the City’s match for the project will 
be financed with Local Option Sales tax revenues supplemented with General 
Obligation bonds, if available, for any expanded initiatives designed into the 
project.) 

 
ORGANIZATIONAL GOAL 7 

Select, train, motivate and retain highly qualified employees who represent the City in 
a professional manner. 
 
Supporting Policies: 

� Provide an employee wage and benefit schedule that is competitive with other 
municipalities in the state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

� Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between policy makers and staff. 

159



 

 

27

 

� Treat employees with respect and expect, in turn, that they will treat citizens with 
respect. 

� Encourage and support management and supervisory employees to be creative and 
innovative. 

� The council supports the process of continuous quality improvement in the city 
government. 

 
Long Range & On-going Objectives: 

� Continue to monitor the ability to attract and maintain quality staff.   

� Maintain and adequately finance a merit pay system that rewards superior 
performance in an effort to retain key employees 

� Expand public safety officer program and other cross-training programs for employees 
to improve service without increasing staffing. 

� Seek methods of reducing the cost of employee health insurance by altering benefits, 
seeking greater financial contribution from employees and modify methods of 
employee health service delivery. 

FY20 Detailed Objectives: 

� Continue to evaluate whether to fill an opening or proposed newly created position.  

� Identify and implement opportunities to restructure, merge, or eliminate unnecessary 
positions when retirements or vacancies occur. 

� Continue to update the city’s employment strategies by developing and maintaining 
multi-year staffing and succession plans. 

� Implement and keep up to date the comprehensive pay plan study that was completed 
in FY18.    

� Complete the review of all non-union job classifications in FY19. 

� Encourage all employees to utilize the City’s wellness program.  

� Update the staffing plan to address the impacts of employment attrition, retirements 
and the use of part-time, PSO’s, POC’s, reserves, volunteers or other cross training 
programs to respond to long-term staffing needs. 

 

160



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Non-Union Job Classifications   

 
After the pay plan study was completed and adopted, the next step was to work with the 
consultant to update all of the non-union job classifications for full-time and part-time 
positions.  We worked with the consultant to update language in a lot of the job classes 
and also to develop any new positions that came out of the study or that had been 
recently created. The consultant used the Job Description Questionnaires (JDQs) that 
employees had completed as part of the pay plan study and the current job 
classifications to create the new classifications.  Attached are the seventy-eight job 
classifications that were updated.  After approval, we will update our job classification 
binders that are on file in our finance and human resource areas.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 

161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



522



523



524



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 
 

RECREATION CENTER 
110 E. 13

TH
 STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8636 
FAX 319-273-8656 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Jim Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Bruce Verink, Manager, Recreation & Community Programs 

 DATE: December 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Recreation Fee Proposal 

 
Attached is staff’s proposed fee schedule.  If adopted by City Council any fee change 
would go into effect for any program or service that will start on or after April 30, 2019.  
For example, someone registering for a program in February that starts June 6 or 
someone scheduling a birthday party in April to be held in June would both pay the new 
rate.  While someone purchasing a Recreation Center membership on April 12 would 
pay the current fee even if a change were recommended. 
 
On the attached sheets is a history of fees we have used dating back to April 2012.  Any 
fee that changed from the previous year is highlighted in gray for easy identification.  

 
The current fees were adopted by Council in January 2018 and went into effect April 23, 
2018.  Staff is recommending a change in what is included under the Recreation Center 
membership and this is the major change being proposed this year.  There are just a 
few changes in other areas as well. 
 
The Park and Rec Commission was presented the change on what staff wanted to 
include under the Recreation Center Membership at the October meeting.  They were 
asked to think about this change for a month and to discuss the change with friends.  At 
their November meeting, they voted unanimously to approve the change of including all 
the drop in fitness classes and towel service under the Recreation Center membership.  
At that meeting, they recommended the fee increase shown on the attachment.  At their 
December meeting, they approved all the changes being proposed by staff and 
submitted for your approval.  
 
The major changes lie in the Recreation and Fitness Center membership where towel 
service and all drop in Fitness classes will now be included under a membership.  
Currently it is an extra cost to attend the drop in fitness classes.  The $25-$40 dollar 
increase in current fees is the largest single year increase we have ever recommended 
but is justified by the additional things to be added or now included under a 
membership.  The proposed fees would still be very competitive with other area 
facilities. 
 
In the past, those who had a membership could then buy a 4-month fitness pass to 
addend the drop in classes for $48 every 4 months or pay $96 if they were not a 

525



member.  If you took any of the fitness classes, the $25 annual increase in an adult 
membership of the $40 increase for an annual family membership then the increase is 
very reasonable.  For the members who never planned to go to the fitness classes the 
increase can still be justified by the fact membership fees at the Rec have not increased 
since 2014.  By the time these recommended fees go into effect, that will have been a 
five-year period.  Plus, all members will now have the option of going to any of the drop 
in classes we offer. 
 
Staff looks at the following items when considering adjusting any and all fees:  

 The increase in staff wages (that are part of the City’s wage adjustment for all 
employees)  

 The increasing cost of supplies and equipment  

 What the market for the programs and services we offer indicates  

 What others in the metro area charge for similar programs  

 Changes staff have made to improve the program  

 The last time fees adjustments were made   

 Staff attempts to hold fees the same for a two or three year period whenever 
possible 

 To keep all fees as reasonable as possible  
 
Proposed changes are as follow: 

 Page 1 
o A $10.00 increase for fall softball leagues 
o A $5.00 increase for Adult dodgeball leagues 

 Page 2 
o We eliminate the fitness pass fee since drop in fitness classes would all be 

included under the membership. 

 Page  4 
o An increase of $10.00 for the Birthday Party themed package 
o An increase of $5.00 for birthday parties with pizza added 
o An increase of $3.00 for sack lunch days 
o An increase of $5.00 per weeks for Camp CF  
o A $35 increase  when registering for camp all summer  

 Page 5 
o A $1.00 increase in the daily admission rate for the indoor pools 
o An increase in Lifeguarding classes of $10 to reflect an increase the Red 

Cross charges to track those certified. 
o An adjustment of $5.00 per hour for indoor pool rentals 
o A $10.00 increase to include the concession stand option with outdoor 

pool rentals 

526



 Page 6 
o An increase in daily fees to use the Rec Center of $1.00 for youth and 

$2.00 for adults 
o All other changes on this page reflect the inclusion of the fitness passes 

under the membership 
 
With the change for including drop in fitness classes under the membership we would 
lose around $39,000 in revenue from the sale of fitness passes but the increased 
membership fees would bring in $63,000 for a net increase of $24,000 annually.  Staff 
feels this change will also reflect in more memberships being sold in the long run. 
 
Staff felt that in order for us to stay competitive with others in the metro area the change 
in what was included under the Recreation Center membership was needed. 
 
The proposed fee changes, approved by the Park and Rec Commission, and if adopted 
by the City Council as well staff projects an increase in revenue of $30,000 annually that 
will offset increasing expenses. 
 
Thank you in advance for considering this proposal.  Please let me know if you have 
any questions or need additional information.  

 

527



ADULT PROGRAMS

PROJECTED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 30, 2019

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2018

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2017

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2016

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 27, 2015

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 28, 2014

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 22, 2013

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2012

Basketball Leagues (team) 10 games 370 370 360 $360.00 $350.00 $350.00 $330.00 $330.00

Couples Volleyball Class 29.00 - 8 weeks 29.00 - 8 weeks 29.00 - 8 weeks 29.00 - 8 weeks 29.00 - 8 weeks 29.00 - 8 weeks 29.00 - 8 weeks 29.00 - 8 weeks

Volleyball League (team) 14 games 115 115 115 $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $115.00

Mini Volleyball (team) 6 games 70 70 70 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00

Softball League - 14 games

Registration (team) 355 355 350 $350.00 $345.00 $345.00 $345.00 $345.00

Player Fees (team) 70 70 70 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00

Mixed League Softball plus $25.00 plus $25.00 plus $25.00 plus $25.00 plus $20.00 plus $20.00 plus $20.00

Ball Field Rental per hour (field as is 1 1/2 hour) 8 8 8 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $10.00

Youth Games Ball Field Rental- Non-profit                                                               

    501C3 Field Rental

Week Day Evening 16 16 16 $16.00 $16.00 $16.00

Multiple Rentals (Max. 75 per season) $500.00 Max $500.00 Max $500.00 Max $500.00 Max $500.00 Max $500.00 Max

Fall Softball League - 10 games

Registration (team) 255 245 245 $245.00 $245.00 $245.00 $245.00 $245.00

Player Fees (team) 60 60 60 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00

Ball Field Rental

One Field - One Day 50 50 50 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00

Complex (weekend 1 & 2 day) 110 110 110 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00

Plus additional staff cost over initial field prep

Pfeiffer (weekend 1 & 2 day) 130 130 130 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $120.00

Plus additional staff cost over initial field prep

Pfeiffer (field/night, league) 60 60 60 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $55.00

Kickball League 75 70 70 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $60.00 $60.00

Flag Football League (team) 4 on 4 100 100 100 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00

Player Fee 15 15 15 $15.00 $15.00 $15.00 $15.00 $15.00

Dodgeball 70 70 70 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00

Golf Lessons (4 lessons) N/A 38 38 $38.00 $38.00 $38.00 $38.00 $36.00

Tennis Lessons (8 lessons) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $35.00 $35.00

Tournaments Cost + $20.00 Cost + $20.00 Cost + $20.00 Cost + $20.00 Cost + $20.00 Cost + $20.00 Cost + $10.00 Cost + $10.00

Open Gym Schools, residents 3.00 or RC punch card/memb. 3.00 or RC punch card/memb. 3.00 or RC punch card/memb. 3.00 or RC punch card/memb. 3.00 or RC punch card/memb. 3.00 or RC punch card/memb. 3.00 or RC punch card/memb. 3.00 or RC punch card/memb.

Open Gym Schools, non-residents 6 6 6 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00

Beach House (all day)

Weekend (Friday-Sunday & Holidays) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $90.00

Weekday (Monday-Thursday) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $55.00

Beach House (all day)

Weekend (Friday-Sunday & Holidays) $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $120.00

     West 100 100 100 $100.00

     East 200 200 200 $200.00

     Full Facility 275 275 275 $275.00

Weekday (Monday-Thursday) $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $70.00

     West 62.5 62.5 62.5 $62.50

     East 125 125 125 $125.00

     Full Facility 175 175 175 $175.00

Shelter Rental - All Day 22 22 22 $22.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00

Up to 6 hours N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $18.00

Over 6 hours N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $18.00

Gateway Shelter

Monday-Thursday (10:00 am-10:30 pm) 70 70 70 $70.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00

Friday-Sunday & Holidays (10:00 am-10:30 pm) 110 110 110 $110.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $95.00

Racquetball League - 11 games

Singles 35 35 35 $35.00 $33.00 $33.00 $33.00 $33.00

Racquetball Lessons (6 lessons) 33 33 33 $33.00 $33.00 $33.00 $33.00 $33.00

Table Tennis League 16 16 16 $16.00 $16.00 $16.00

CEDAR FALLS RECREATION DIVISION

PROGRAM FEE SCHEDULE

1
528



EXERCISE CLASSES

PROJECTED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 30, 2019

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2018

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2017

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2016

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 27, 2015

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 28, 2014

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 22, 2013

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2012

Specialty Classes Instructor Cost + $10.00 Instructor Cost + $10.00 Instructor Cost + $10.00 Instructor Cost + $10.00 Instructor Cost + $10.00 Instructor Cost + $10.00 Instructor Cost + $10.00 Instructor Cost + $10.00

Exercise Tryouts N/A $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00

Fitness Pass (no RCM)

4 Months Unlimited N/A $96.00 $96.00 $96.00 $90.00 $90.00 $90.00 $85.00

1  Month Unlimited N/A $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $30.00

Fitness Pass (with RCM)

4 Months Unlimited N/A $48.00 $48.00 $48.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $42.50

1  Month Unlimited N/A $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00

Circuit Weight Training (no FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $19.00 $19.00

Circuit Weight Training (with FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month $14.00 $14.00 $14.00 $14.00 $14.00 $14.00 $9.50 $9.50

Cardio Cycling - Per Month (no FP or RCM)

3 x Per Week Per Month $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $40.00 $40.00

Cardio Cycling - Per Month (with FP or RCM)

3 x Per Week Per Month $21.00 $21.00 $21.00 $21.00 $21.00 $21.00 $20.00 $20.00

Rock On - Monthly  (with FP or RCM)

3 x Per Week $26.00 $26.00 $26.00 $26.00 $24.00 $24.00 $24.00

Rock On - Monthly  (no FP or RCM)

3 x Per Week $52.00 $52.00 $52.00 $52.00 $48.00 $48.00 $48.00

Knock Out  (with FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month $26.00 $26.00 $26.00

Knock Out  (no FP or RCM)

2 x Per Week Per Month $52.00 $52.00 $52.00

Teen Weight Lifting Training (2 - 2 hour classes) $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $25.00 $25.00

*RCM - Rec Center Membership

*FP - Fitness Pass

2
529



PROJECTED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 30, 2019

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2018

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2017

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2016

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 27, 2015

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 28, 2014

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 22, 2013

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2012

YOUTH PROGRAMS

Boys Baseball - T-ball

Registration $35.00 $35.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00

Sponsor $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00

Boys Baseball 1

Registration $38.00 $38.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $33.00 $33.00

Sponsor $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00

Boys Baseball 2 & 3

Registration $45.00 $45.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $40.00 $40.00

Sponsor $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Boys Baseball 4 & 5

Registration $48.00 $48.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $43.00 $43.00

Sponsor $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00

Girls Softball - T-ball

Registration $35.00 $35.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00

Sponsor $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00

Girls Softball 1

Registration $38.00 $38.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $33.00 $33.00

Sponsor $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00

Girls Softball 2 & 3

Registration $45.00 $45.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $40.00 $40.00

Sponsor $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Girls Softball 4-6

Registration $48.00 $48.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $43.00 $43.00

Sponsor $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Kindergarten Basketball

Registration $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $28.00 $28.00

Sponsor $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

Boys Basketball 5 & 6

Registration $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $38.00 $38.00

Sponsor $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Boys Basketball 3 & 4

Registration $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $33.00 $33.00

Sponsor $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00

Boys Basketball 1 & 2

Registration $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $28.00 $28.00

Sponsor $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00

Girls Basketball 5 & 6 (format change)

Registration $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $33.00 $33.00

Sponsor $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00

Girls Basketball 3 & 4

Registration $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $33.00 $33.00

Sponsor $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00

Girls Basketball 1 & 2

Registration $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $28.00 $28.00

Sponsor $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00

Summer Track

Registration $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00

Sponsor $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00

Volleyball 3-6 (format change)

Registration (8 weeks) $39.00 $39.00 $39.00 $39.00 $39.00 $39.00 $37.00 $37.00

Sponsor $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00

Flag Football K-2

Registration (8 weeks) $43.00 $43.00 $43.00 $43.00 $41.00 $41.00 $36.00 $36.00

Sponsor $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

Flag Football 3 & 4

Registraion $43.00 $43.00 $43.00 $43.00 $41.00 $41.00 $36.00 $36.00

Sponsor $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00

Flag Football 5 & 6

Registration $43.00 $43.00 $43.00 $43.00 $41.00 $41.00 $36.00 $36.00

Sponsor $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Baseball Club $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00

Softball Club $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00

3
530



YOUTH PROGRAMS-continued

PROJECTED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 30, 2019

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2018

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2017

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2016

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 27, 2015

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 28, 2014

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 22, 2013

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2012

Soccer K, 1 & 2

Registration $29.00 $29.00 $29.00 $29.00 $29.00 $29.00 $27.00 $27.00

Sponsor $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00

Golf Lessons N/A $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $27.00 $27.00

Tennis Lessons $45.00 $45.00 $39.00 $39.00 $39.00 $39.00 $37.00 $35.00

Tot Lot

One Session N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $75.00

Both Sessions N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $140.00

Tot Lot

One Week $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00

Six Weeks $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00

Open Gym in schools Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free

Special Events Cost + $5.00 Cost + $5.00 Cost + $5.00 Cost + $5.00 Cost + $5.00 Cost + $5.00 Cost + $5.00 Cost + $5.00

Tournaments Cost + 0 to 10% Cost + 0 to 10% Cost + 0 to 10% Cost + 0 to 10% Cost + 0 to 10% Cost + 0 to 10% Cost + 0 to 10% Cost + 0 to 10%

Indoor Park - 1 year to 5 years $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00 $28.00

Full Session (18 to 22 times) $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00

Mini Session $18.00 $18.00 $18.00 $18.00 $18.00 $18.00 $18.00 $18.00

Daily $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $2.50

Chew & View  - 2 hours $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00

Parents Night Out - 2 hours $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00

Birthday Party $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $95.00

Birthday Party Theme Package $150.00 $140.00 $140.00 $135.00 $135.00 $135.00 $135.00 $125.00

Birthday Party Theme & Pizza N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $140.00

Add Pizza $30.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00

3 on 3 Basketball Tourney (per team) $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00

Soccer Tournament $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00

Hot Shot Basketball $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00

Free Throw Contest $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00

Karate $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $28.00

New Sports and Active Programs Comparable Charge Comparable Charge Comparable Charge Comparable Charge Comparable Charge Comparable Charge Comparable Charge Comparable Charge

Sack Lunch Days $28.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00

Tumbling - 5 Sessions $30.00 $30.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00

Hockey - Inline

Registration N/A $24.00 $24.00 $24.00 $24.00 $24.00 $24.00 $24.00

Sponsor N/A $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00

Camp Cedar Falls 

One Week $110.00 $105.00 $105.00 $105.00 $105.00 $105.00 $105.00 $105.00

Full Summer   (1 week free) $770.00 $735.00 $735.00 $735.00 $735.00 $735.00 $850.00 $850.00

Pre and Post Care

Daily $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00

Weekly $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $18.00 $18.00

4
531



SWIM POOL FEES

PROJECTED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 30, 2019

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2018

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2017

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2016

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 27, 2015

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 28, 2014

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 22, 2013

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2012

Daily Admission-Indoor

Infant (Under 2) $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $2.50

Youth (3-17) $5.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $3.75 $3.75 $3.75 $3.25

Adult (18 & Up) $5.00 $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $3.75 $3.75 $3.75 $3.75

Daily Admission-Outdoor

Infant (Under 2) $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 $2.50

Youth (3-17) $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $5.00

Adult (18 & Up) $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00

Summer-Memorial Day-1st Day of School

Family Season Pass

Resident **  $195.00 **  $195.00 **  $195.00 **  $180.00 **  $180.00 **  $180.00 **  $180.00 **  $165.00

Non-Resident **  $245.00 **  $245.00 **  $245.00 **  $230.00 **  $230.00 **  $230.00 **  $230.00 **  $215.00

Child Care Provider Pool Pass - Mon-Fri $60.00 $60.00 $60.00

Adult Season Pass (Indoor or Outdoor)

Resident $115.00 $115.00 $115.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00

Non-Resident $145.00 $145.00 $145.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00

Youth & Sr.Season Pass (65 & Over)

Resident $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $95.00 $95.00 $95.00 $95.00 $80.00

Non-Resident $140.00 $140.00 $140.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $110.00

Lap Swim (Indoor only)

Resident $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00

Non-Resident $85.00 $85.00 $85.00 $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $75.00

***Purchase your summer swim pass prior to May 15 & receive a $10 discount for a family & $5 for an individual pass.

Winter-1st Day of School-Memorial Day

Family Season Pass (with RCM)

Resident $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $35.00

Non-Resident $55.00 $55.00 $55.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $45.00

Family Season Pass (without RCM)

Resident $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $110.00

Non-Resident $140.00 $140.00 $140.00 $135.00 $135.00 $135.00 $135.00 $120.00

Adult Season Pass (with RCM)

Resident $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $15.00

Non-Resident $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00

Adult Season Pass (without RCM))

Resident $95.00 $95.00 $95.00 $90.00 $90.00 $90.00 $90.00 $85.00

Non-Resident $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $95.00 $95.00 $95.00 $95.00 $90.00

Youth Season Pass-17 & Under (with RCM)

Resident $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $15.00

Non-Resident $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00

Youth Season Pass-17 & Under (without RCM)

Resident $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $60.00

Non-Resident $80.00 $80.00 $80.00 $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $65.00

*RCM - Rec Center Membership

Swim Lesson - Youth $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $28.00 $28.00

Swim Lesson - Adult $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $31.00 $31.00 $31.00 $31.00 $31.00

WSI $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $60.00

Aqua Trim $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $29.00 $29.00

Deep Water Aqua Trim $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $29.00 $29.00

Aqua Trim Tryout $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00

Stretching Aqua Trim $32.00 $32.00 $32.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $29.00 $29.00

Lap Swim-Daily-Indoor Pass or $4.00 Pass or $4.00 Pass or $4.00 Pass or $4.00 Pass or $3.75 Pass or $3.75 Pass or $3.75 Pass or $3.75

Lifeguarding $125.00 $115.00 $115.00 $105.00 $105.00 $105.00 $98.00 $98.00

Lifeguard Recertification $86.00

Scuba Diving Cost + $10.00 Cost + $10.00 Cost + $10.00 Cost + $10.00 Cost + $8.00 Cost + $8.00 Cost + $8.00 Cost + $8.00

Pool Rental ID - 75 people or less $65.00 $60.00/hr. $60.00/hr. $60.00/hr. $60.00/hr. & $50.00/add hr. $60.00/hr. & $50.00/add hr. $60.00/hr. & $50.00/add hr. $55.00/hr. & $45.00/add hr.

Pool Rental ID - 76 people or more $80.00 $75.00/hr . $75.00/hr . $75.00/hr . $75.00/hr & $65.00/add hr. $75.00/hr & $65.00/add hr. $75.00/hr & $65.00/add hr. $70.00/hr & $60.00/add hr.

Pool Rental OD

Zero Depth - 2 hour $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $180.00 $180.00 $180.00 $160.00

Zero Depth & Lazy River/2 Waterslides  - 2 hour $425.00 $425.00 $425.00 $425.00 $310.00 $310.00 $310.00 $290.00

Lap Pool & & Lazy River/2 Waterslides - 2 hour $525.00 $525.00 $525.00 $525.00 $370.00 $370.00 $370.00 $350.00

Lap Pool - 2 hour $325.00 $325.00 $325.00 $325.00 $280.00 $280.00 $280.00 $250.00

Entire Facility-No Concessions Sold - 2 hour $625.00 $625.00 $625.00 $625.00 $470.00 $470.00 $470.00 $430.00

Concessions Sold

Resident $35 per hour $25 per hour $25 per hour $25 per hour $25 per rental $25 per rental $25 per rental $25.00

Cost - Programs that are listed, as cost will be charged on the basis of direct program costs excluding administration and office costs.

New programs will be charged a comparable fee to other similar activities.

Sponsor fee may change in some cases depending on the registration, program changes or sponsor charge.

**  Summer Family Swim Pass - Resident & Non-Resident - Will be the fee listed for 1 adult & 4 or less children or 2 adults and 3 or less children .  Each additional child in the family will be $10.00.  Implemented Spring 2012.

5
532



RECREATION CENTER

PROJECTED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 30, 2019

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2018

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2017

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 24, 2016

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 27, 2015

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 28, 2014

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 22, 2013

APPROVED FEES EFFECTIVE DATE 

FOR 

ANY ACTIVITY STARTING ON OR

AFTER APRIL 23, 2012

Admission

Daily Resident

12 Grade & Under $6.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $4.50 $4.50

Adult $9.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $6.50 $6.50

Senior Citizen $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $5.50 $5.50

Holiday Special Event Admission $3.00 per person any age $3.00 per person any age $3.00 per person any age $3.00 per person any age $3.00 per person any age $3.00 per person any age $4.00 per person any age $4.00 per person any age

Daily Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $6.00 $5.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00

Adult $9.00 $7.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $9.00

Senior Citizen $6.00 $6.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00 $8.00

Resident Yearly Memberships**

Individual

12 Grade & Under $115.00 $90.00 $90.00 $90.00 $90.00 $90.00 $85.00 $85.00

Adult $175.00 $145.00 $145.00 $145.00 $145.00 $145.00 $140.00 $140.00

Senior Citizen $155.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $125.00 $125.00

Family $260.00 $220.00 $220.00 $220.00 $220.00 $220.00 $210.00 $210.00

Non-Resident Yearly Memberships**

Individual

12 Grade & Under $210.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

Adult $355.00 $340.00 $340.00 $340.00 $340.00 $340.00 $340.00 $340.00

Senior Citizen $290.00 $280.00 $280.00 $280.00 $280.00 $280.00 $280.00 $280.00

Family $465.00 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00

4 Month (May-August only)

Resident

12 Grade & Under $57.50 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $42.50 $42.50

Adult $85.00 $72.50 $72.50 $72.50 $72.50 $72.50 $70.00 $70.00

Senior Citizen $77.50 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $62.50 $62.50

Family $130.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $105.00 $105.00

Non-Resident

12 Grade & Under $105.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00

Adult $177.50 $170.00 $170.00 $170.00 $170.00 $170.00 $170.00 $170.00

Senior Citizen $145.00 $140.00 $140.00 $140.00 $140.00 $140.00 $140.00 $140.00

Family $232.50 $225.00 $225.00 $225.00 $225.00 $225.00 $225.00 $225.00

20 Punch Card - Resident Only

12 Grade & Under $58.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $43.00 $42.50

Adult $85.00 $73.00 $73.00 $73.00 $73.00 $73.00 $70.00 $70.00

Senior Citizen $78.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $65.00 $63.00 $62.50

20 Punch Card - Non-Resident 

12 Grade & Under $140.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00

Adult $140.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00 $130.00

Senior Citizen $120.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00 $110.00

Replace I.D. Card $9.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00 $7.00

Corporate Rate

Individual $235.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

Family $310.00 $265.00 $265.00 $265.00 $265.00 $265.00 $265.00 $265.00

Racquetball

Drop in per hr/per court $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Reservation per hr/per court $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00

10 Punch Card $17.00-$20.00 value $17.00-$20.00 value $17.00-$20.00 value $17.00-$20.00 value $17.00-$20.00 value $17.00-$20.00 value $17.00-$20.00 value $17.00-$20.00 value

Child Care

2 hour stay $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 $2.00

20 Punch Card $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00

Rentals

Resident non-profit organizations

Entire facility with adequate approved adult supervision 1:20 ratio

Per hour $100.00 per hr $50.00 + s.c.* $50.00 + s.c.* $50.00 + s.c.* $50.00 + s.c.* $50.00 + s.c.* $100.00 + s.c.* $75.00 + s.c.*

Each additional hour N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.*

Maximum cost (12 hr. max) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $200.00 + s.c.* $175.00 + s.c.*

Meeting Room - per hour $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00

1st 2 hours

Each additional hour

Multi Purpose Room (1/2)

1st hour

Each additional hour

Full Room - per hour $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00

1st hour

Each additional hour

Gym Rental

Fit Gym $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.*

1/2 of Old Gym $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.* $35.00 + s.c.*

All of Old Gym $70.00 + s.c.* $70.00 + s.c.* $70.00 + s.c.* $70.00 + s.c.* $70.00 + s.c.* $70.00 + s.c.* $70.00 + s.c.* $70.00 + s.c.*

Activity Room - per hour $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.* $25.00 + s.c.*

* s.c. - Staff Cost (if needed) $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00

**Memberships include free towel usage and all drop-in fitness classes.  Members as of April 30th, 2019 wanting to get a fitness pass would pay the difference between the old membership price and the new price. 

6
533



M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE:  December 12, 2018 
TO:   Mayor Jim Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 
FROM:  Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs Supervisor 
SUBJECT: Site approval for Public Art Project 

 

The Cedar Falls Art and Culture Board and City staff have reviewed the attached proposal from 
the Public Art Committee (PAC) with regards to a work of public art to be placed to the right of 
the west entrance to City Hall. The Art and Culture Board respectfully requests that City Council 
consider the site for approval. At a future time, the City Council will be provided with an 
agreement for the artist that will complete the project. 

The site was selected by PAC after discussion with members of the Crews family who are 
working with the PAC to sponsor a work of art in memory of former Mayor Jon Crews. For a 
more detailed description of the project and timeline, please refer to the attachment from Dan 
Perry, vice president of PAC and UNI Public Art Incubator faculty. 

In order to complete the project, the Eternal Flame in front of City Hall will need to be 
relocated. Three veterans groups have been contacted (Amvets, American Legion and the VFW) 
and there are few concerns moving the Eternal Flame to the Veteran’s Park facility on Waterloo 
Road. The final preferred location will be reviewed by the Park and Recreation Commission and 
sent to City Council for review. 

If you have any questions or comments please feel free to contact me. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

 

CC: Mark Ripplinger, Municipal Programs & Operations Director 
 Kim Manning, Cultural Programs/Visitors and Tourism Bureau Manager 
 

534



Jon Crews Memorial Artwork Proposal 

Proposed Location: West side of city hall south of main entrance – see attached images.  It will be sited 
in the landscaped area off of the sidewalk and out of the right of way. 

Base Size: 9-10’ diameter concrete floating slab on grade with thickened edge (6-8” thick) 

Sculpture/Artwork Description: Artist’s proposals will be evaluated by Cedar Falls Public Art committee 
for viability and appropriateness for the project.  Given the nature of public art calls, the art work is 
undetermined at this point giving the artists freedom to work within the space and the project scope.  
Artists will submit qualifications and the committee will narrow the pool down to 3 finalists to submit 
site specific proposals.  The artwork selected will be appropriately scaled for the site – 12-15’ tall and 
the materials will be of high quality able to withstand outdoor exposure.  

Site work Notes: Mark Ripplinger mentioned moving the veteran’s memorial currently installed at the 
site to Veteran’s Park.  

-There is a stump that will need to be removed and possibly one bush trimmed or removed to make 
room for the artwork. 

 

Aerial/Plan View 

535



 

Street View 

536



Potential

Eternal Flame

Location

Potential

Eternal Flame

Location

Potential

Eternal Flame

Location

Veterans Park
Potential Locations - Eternal Flame

537



538



1

Mark Ripplinger

From: Thomas Hagarty <thagarty@cfu.net>

Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2018 10:55 AM

To: Mark Ripplinger; Mike Butler; Angelo Schmidt; Sage, Tom

Subject: eternal Flame

After speaking with several veterans who  
were involved with the Eternal Flame  
installed in front of City Hall, 
 
I have not received any opinions 
that anyone would have a concern with it being 
moved and re-installed at  Veterans Park. 
 
where it is placed in Veterans Park  
is another conversation. 
after transfer and installation in Veterans Park, 
if maintenance is required etc who handles it? 
 
Electricity is not installed at  
Veterans Park now as far as I know. 
The Eternal Flame is electric, used to be gas. 
 
The Cedar Falls American Legion was instrumental 
in installing this in front of city hall, 
but as I indicated, no one has any gas pains about 
relocating it. 
 
Tom Hagarty  
Cedar Falls American  
Legion Post #237 
[NOTICE: This message originated outside of the City Of Cedar Falls mail system -- DO NOT CLICK on links 

or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]  

539



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: December 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project - Property Acquisitions 

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Appraisals and offers are gradually being sent to the properties affected by this corridor 
reconstruction project. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
 
Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

65 Brian C. Jorgenson 
Kristine M. Jorgensen 

1120 W. 1
st
 Street Fee 

Temporary Easement 

50 CV Properties, LLC 724 W. 1
st
 Street Fee 

Temporary Easement 
Tenant Agreement 

24 Jeffery S. Johnson 
Jillynn S. Johnson 

923 W. 1
st
 Street Fee 

Permanent and 
Temporary Easement 

7 Kelley J. Ruehs 1301 W. 1
st
 Street Fee 

Permanent and 
Temporary Easement 
Tenant Agreement 

5a Cedar Valley Medical Specialist P.C. 1409 W. 1
st
 Street Tenant Agreement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 

540



 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 
includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city signed 
as agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. Funds for 
this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY20 
under item number 91. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing 
documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving 
the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the W. 1

st
 Street 

reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

541



Ol
ive

 St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt
 St

N 
Co

lle
ge

 St

Co
tta

ge
 G

rvElm St

Pa
rk

Dr

Edgewood St

W 3rd St

Linda Dr

Theimer St

W 2nd St

W 1st St

Pine St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Fr
an

cis
 St

Di
vis

ion
 St

Fo
rre

st 
Rd

W 3rd St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ida St

Pe
ar

l S
t

Oak St

Parkway Ave

Ell
en

 St

Iow
a S

t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Ge
ne

vie
ve

 St

Fr
an

kli
n S

t

N 
Fr

an
cis

 S
t

NEll enS t

S Park Rd

Edgewood St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Ba
ke

r D
r

Parkway Ave

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Higby Dr

Crescent Dr

Center St

75 69
68

67
72 71 64 63 62

61
60

59 58
57 56

55
54

52
51

49 48 47 46

45
4143

252 3 4 5 8 299 30 31
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19 20
21

22
23

42

28

76 74 73 6670
53 44

5 6 26

1

77

27

65
50

7
24

I

Signed
Submitted for Approval
Condemnation

542



543



544



545



546



547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



577



578



579



580



581



582



583



584



585



586



587



588



589



590



591



592



593



594



595



596



597



598



599



600



601



602



603



604



605



606



607



608



609



610



611



612



613



614



615



616



617



618



619



620



621



622



623



624



625



626



627



628



629



630



631



632



633



634



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: December 10, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: REAP Grant Agreement, # 19-R4-FY 
  Clay Street Park: Water Quality Improvement Project 
  ST–077–3146  
 
A few months ago, the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) 
completed a grant application to the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) for 
Resource Enhancement and Protection (REAP) funds. The purpose of the application 
was to pay for additional improvements at Clay Street Park. Recently, the IDNR notified 
the City that the application was successful for funding up to $150,000 for the Clay 
Street Park, Water Quality Improvement Project.  
 
The proposal included two bioretention cells and a permeable alley along Clay Street 
Park, estimated to cost $192,100. CIP funding match will also be applied to this project 
for the remaining amount. The exact CIP funding source is currently being reviewed. 
Completion of the design will be finalized by the Engineering Division this spring with 
the Clay Street Park project partners. The project is anticipated to commence in the 
summer of 2019. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends that the agreement for REAP funding for the 
Clay Street Park: Water Quality Improvement Project be approved. If you have any 
questions or comments regarding this matter please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Mark Ripplinger, Director of Municipal Operations & Programs 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  
 

635



 
 

 WALLACE BUILDING, 502 E 9
TH

 ST, DES MOINES IA 50319  

Phone: 515-725-8200 www.IowaDNR.gov  Fax: 515-725-8201 

 

December 5, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

MARK RIPPLINGER 

2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 

CEDAR FALLS, IA  50613 
 

 

Re: REAP Grant # 19-R4-FY, CLAY STREET PARK: WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT 

 

 

Dear MARK RIPPLINGER: 

 

Congratulations!  Attached please find your organizations Grant Agreement for your Resource 

Enhancement and Protection (REAP) grant awarded by the Department of Natural Resources 

(DNR).  Please carefully review the grant agreement, print, sign, and return an original to my 

attention.  A signed copy will be returned to you. 

 

Please start a folder to place all grant and expense documention in.  State rules and regulations 

included with the application and pertaining to the REAP program effectively become part of the 

grant agreement. 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me at 515-725-8213. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kathleen Moench  
 

Kathleen Moench 

Budget and Finance Bureau 

 

 

Enclosures 

636



REAP Grant # 19-R4-FY 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
502 E. 9

TH
 STREET DES MOINES, IA  50319 

 

RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT AND PROTECTION FUND 
GRANT AGREEMENT-DEVELOPMENT 

 

GRANTEE: CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

PROJECT TITLE: CLAY STREET PARK: WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT 

CONTACT PERSON/PHONE #: MARK RIPPLINGER 319-273-8629 

  GRANT AWARD:  $150000.00 

DNR CONTACT/PHONE #: Kathleen Moench 515-725-8213 
 

1. PURPOSE.  The purpose of this REAP Development Grant Agreement is to enable the Iowa 

Department of Natural Resources (DNR), acting for the State of Iowa, to assist the CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS (Grantee) in the development of land for the enhancement and protection of open 

space areas. 

 

2. PARTIES/AUTHORITY.  The parties to this Grant Agreement are the DNR, an agency of the State of 

Iowa, and the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS.  The parties make this Grant Agreement pursuant to 1989 

Iowa Code Supplement Section 455A.19(1)(a), which authorizes the Natural Resource Commission 

to spend certain state funds appropriated for projects to enhance and protect open spaces. 

 

3. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT LANDS.  This Grant Agreement is for your project described 

as: 

 

INSTALLATION OF AN UPDATED BIORETENTION CELL, A PERMEABLE 

PAVEMENT SYSTEM IN THE ALLEY, AND A NEW BIORETENTION CELL UPSTREAM 

OF CLAY STREET PARK, TO MITIGATE STORMWATER RUNOFF AND REDUCE 

POLLUTANTS IN DRY RUN CREEK, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 

4. GRANT AWARD AND REIMBURSEMENTS.  The DNR will provide 100 percent of development costs 

up to a maximum amount of $150000.00. 

 

A. A ninety (90) percent advance reimbursement of the grant award may be requested by submitting 

a letter of request to: 

 

Kathleen Moench, Budget & Grants Bureau, 

Iowa Department of Natural Resources 

502 E. 9
th
 Street 

Des Moines, Iowa  50319 

 

B. Final payment will be made when the project is completed and the grantee submits a letter of 

request along with the following grant requirements: 

 

 a legal description of the property for the required Notice of Use Restriction; 

 pictures of the completed project; 

 copies of billings and canceled checks for 100 percent of the grant award; 

 contracted development work requires; a copy of the signed contract, pay estimates, and 

contractor’s reimbursement Refund of Sales Tax; 

 final report, to include a description of the completed project and efforts made to procure 

goods and services from Targeted Small Businesses (TSBs). 

 

637



REAP Grant # 19-R4-FY 

 

5. RESPONSIBILITIES.  The grantee is solely responsible for the project completion as outlined in the 

project proposal.  The grantee will make a concerted effort to procure goods and services from 

Targeted Small Businesses (TSBs) during the performance of this Grant Agreement. The DNR may 

provide assistance at the request of the grantee, or at the Director's recommendation. 

 

6. AMENDMENTS.  This Grant Agreement may be amended only by written ADDENDA signed and 

dated by the DNR Director or the DNR REAP coordinator.  Requests for amendments shall be 

directed to the DNR REAP coordinator. 

 

7. EFFECTIVE DATE/TERMINATION.  This Grant Agreement shall become effective when it has been 

signed and dated by the DNR Director and the grantee.  All work specified in the project proposal 

will be completed by DECEMBER 31, 2020. 

 

8. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: If funds anticipated for the continued fulfillment of this agreement are at 

any time not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the State of Iowa to appropriate 

funds, or discontinuance or material alteration of the program under which funds were provided, then 

the Department shall have the right to terminate the agreement without penalty. 

 

9. By signing this Grant Agreement, the grantee agrees to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

agreement and all attachments listed below: 

 

 the REAP “General Provisions” (State Administrative Rules from your application); 

 

 

 

 

   

   

Date  Bruce Trautman, Acting Director 

  Iowa Department of Natural Resources 

   

   
MARK.RIPPLINGER@CEDARFALLS.COM   

Email Address  Grantee Signature; Mayor or County Board Director 

   

  Print Name; Mayor or County Board Director 

 

638



REAP Grant # 19-R4-FY 

Shaded area for DNR use only 

Accounting Department Return Copy to:   Kathleen Moench _________________________________________________ 

           Doc #: __________________________________ Date: ___________________ 

         Warrant #:  ______________________________________________________ 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 

CEDAR FALLS, IA  50613  

State ID #:        CV:  ____________________________________________________________ 

    Fund/Ag/Org/SubOrg/$: ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

 REAP PROJECT BILLING – DEVELOPMENT GRANT 

 

Project billings must be accompanied by all required documentation (invoices, canceled checks, deeds, etc.) covering 

expenditures included in the billing.  If you have questions, please contact the Budget & Grants Bureau at 515-725-

8213.  Make additional copies as needed. 

 

Grant Recipient:  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS    Project #: 19-R4-FY 

Project Title:  CLAY STREET PARK: WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT  

Final Billing:  Y or N 
 

Use the table below to list your budget items and the expenditures for each item. You should follow the budget items provided with your grant proposal as 
closely as possible. 

Budget Item  Budget 

Amount 
 Expenditures 

This Billing 

  “To Date” Item 

Expenditures 

         

         

        

        

         

        

        

        

        

        

Totals        

        
Less Expenditures In Excess of Total Authorized Project Budget:    

  Total “To Date” Expenditures:    

CLAIM REQUEST (__% OF “TO DATE” EXPENDITURES):    

    

 LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS OF:    

TOTAL CLAIM TO BE PAID:    
 

I certify that this billing is correct and just based upon actual payment(s) of record by the grant recipient, and that the 

work and services are in accord with the approved grant. 

 

Signature: ______________________________________________ Date: ___________________ 

Print Name: ______________________________________________ 

Title:  ______________________________________________  Phone: __________________ 

 
Mail original Billing Form to DNR Budget & Finance Bureau, backup documentation may be emailed. 
 

639



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: December 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 1416 Clay Street 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Ashley Bargman purchased 1416 Clay Street in November 2018. The property meets the 
requirements for the program: has been a rental for at least the past three years (since 2011), 
is located in the R-2 zoning district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is 
in a block with less than 75% rentals.  
 
Ashley Bargman is proposing to replace the property’s roof and reconstruct a poorly done 
addition. Based on the submitted bid by Stutzman Construction, LLC the actual cost of the 
improvements listed is $13,348.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the property 
for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold prior to the 
end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is 
subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

640



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 1416 Clay Street 

and legally described as J R AND S CAMERONS SECOND ADD LOT 6 BLK 11 

 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Ashley Bargman (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to Owner 
Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the above-
described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 

60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

641



 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Ashley Bargman   

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2019, by Ashley 
Bargman. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

642



643



Monday - November 10, 2018 
 
Cedar Falls Planning Committee, 
 

My name is Ashley Bargman.  I currently live at 1416 Clay St.  I purchased this house on 

November 26, 2018.  I intend to live at this property for at least 5 years and will be using it as 

my primary residence.  Please get a hold of me if you have any questions.  I look forward to 

hearing from you. 

 

Sincerely, 

Ashley Bargman 

644



�������������	
����������������������
���
�������
�������
��������� ����������� �����������������  !"#$%#&%#&'%((" )*+,-*./*012345*55 )*+,-*./*012345*56768592*450:593;*+5<*220/5=*5>?86@A????����
�B ��C����� ��D�������EF��G55 09;+<20A6H55 555���C���F������  �E���D�������������D I��6768592*450:593;*+5<*220/5=*5>?86@A766?5 ��������JD ���������� �����������EK�D� �FC�66LH8LH?6M 66LHGLH?6M H?6G5??M@MH ;����� �	����
N���������� �K�ED�
	���O��FC�66LH8LH?6MMG/>?? 0*235)3:P33.5<*-=245-3-)3+0Q+5+32*:3;5R*+:=305A56H5L5;SST6?L68LH?6HG@/U>? 0*235)3:P33.5<*-=245-3-)3+0Q+5+32*:3;5R*+:=305A56H5L5;SST8LH?LH??8 U>/??? .Q+-*25*+-0A23.,:1:+*.0*9:=Q.5A5R+=Q+5?G5L5;SST6HL6MLH??68>/??? .Q+-*25*+-0A23.,:1:+*.0*9:=Q.5A5R+=Q+5?G5L5;SST ���� 
EKV�� �K�ED� �� �D6HL6?LH?6M 09 ? -WXY66L>LH??7 9<51*5?776 ? RZ[\]L3ZSY7L6?LH??H 9<51*5??6G ? *L9���������̂��	��O���������� ���  _(#! #((̀�̂�E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Da �E����Da ����� ���� H6/?H? ? 88/77? ? MU/78? ?����V���̂�E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Da �E����Da �����66/G87 ? @U/M68 ? 7G/UM?���� ���  _(#b #((̀�̂�E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Da �E����Da ����� ���� H6/?H? ? 88/77? ? MU/78? ?����V���̂�E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Da �E����Da �����66/8GH ? @8/G>> ? 7M/87U���� ���  _(#' #((̀�̂�E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Da �E����Da ����� ���� H6/?H? ? 88/77? ? MU/78? ?����V���̂�E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Da �E����Da �����66/G8G ? @U/M@? ? 7G/UGG�����
�������
���������
������_(#b���������_(#!O_(#"������ �����"#(((#�%�����������c N��  �̂��E� ����V���̂��E� �������F����KC���D ��dF���� N��  ���� 
���������C MU/78? 7M/87U ? @@eHH>6 f6/868e@? f6/868e??
����C ? ? ? ? f?e?? 5c ��K� ���������� �� �V����̂�����D������ ���C���F���������I������ �a������ �E �D�  ����C���F�������������C f?e?? f?e?? f?e?? f?e?? f?e??
����C 5 5 f?e?? 5 5 645



�����������	�
�������
�
���	��		������������� ��������� �����  !�� "�#!$% "�#!$& ��� ��!� �'�!������$������ �� �() �() * +,�) *-).���/�0 12%& 34&�5���6��$78� �7.� 6".67".9:! "�9/! .���/$��;��<$��!�
=>?@ABCDE=@F�G��H>AI��JJKL=AM ���G)�
NOIF�CIDEA P,)Q!��$�R�/� ��!� 8!�� �7 ����'�+,S (*+ TAU TAU �O>A.���/$ ��V�$�W�;! .���/$ ��V�$�!/�X �!#���V�$�W�;! �!#���V�$�!/�X� * ( *���!V!�� ���!V!��$�����Y!#$��!� ��$���!V!��$�/����O>A * *��R�#����� �/�����<
N> �DIL�G�Z=>F@�[�!����$5�//� 6��!����$�����Y�U\ ]@DU ��̂�UL_�G�̀D\@A���a���!8!����< �/���b5�// c�:!/!�� 8��#̂��!# ":�'!$8!��!��* � � ��##����� Q!��$�R�/� "�9/! ��!� ���!V!��$d"�e ��$���!V!��$d"�e 8!�� �7 ����'�+,S ��
NOIF�CIDEA ff+ ff+ * TAU TAU *c/RVW��<��CK@@��DN_ gc��'Y"�9/! ��!��
�CIDEA��LA> �S�
�CIDEA�>J@OUAM P��� ���" ��"�h��.".���"Q!��$�R�/� "�9/! 5�#�Y �!�<�Y ��!� ���!V!�� i���$j;!� ��!� �7�P�, 	AN�CIDEA )f )f S,� * �O>A * * �O>A����9$"���R�0$6��:!'�!#
646



�������������	����
����������������
647



648



.

649



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: December 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 821 College 
Street 

 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Chris and Eaulla Saltzman are in the process of purchasing 821 College Street. The pending 
owner has submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental to Single Family 
Owner Conversion Incentive Program. The property meets the requirements for the program: 
has been a rental for at least the past three years (since 2009), is located in the R-2 zoning 
district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is in a block with less than 
75% rentals.  
 
Chris and Eaulla Saltzman are proposing to replace the roof of the property. Based on the 
submitted bid by Robert Castro Construction, Inc the actual cost of the improvements listed is 
$18,200.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the property 
for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold prior to the 
end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is 
subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection) and closing 
documents being provided to staff. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

650



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 821 College Street  

and legally described as PETER O JENSENS ADDITION LOT 4 

 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Chris Saltzman and Eaulla Saltzman (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a 
Rental to Owner Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed 
upon the above-described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 

60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

651



 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Chris Saltzman   Eaulla Saltzman 

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2019, by Chris 
Saltzman and Eaulla Saltzman. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

652



 
City of Cedar Falls            (319) 273-8600: email: planning@cedarfalls.com 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
RENTAL TO SINGLE FAMILY OWNER CONVERSION INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
APPLICATION 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Property’s Address:             
 
Property Zoning (circle one):    R1   ,   R2  ,   Other        
 
Name of Applicant:               
 
Applicant’s Email:        Daytime Phone #:      
 
Current Deed Holder or Contract Buyer:             
 
Mailing Address of Owner (if different than above):         
 
Owner’s Email:        Daytime Phone #:      
 
Nature of improvements (specify):              
 
                 
 
Estimated or Actual Cost of Improvements:           
 
Proposed Start Date:         Estimated or Actual Date of Completion:    
 
Lender:       Daytime Phone #:      
 
Lender Address:              
 
Applicants Signature:               Date:    
 
Name (Printed):              
 
FOR CITY USE ONLY 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
Application Approved / Disapproved 

 

Reason (if disapproved):                               
 

Date:       Resolution No.      
 

Attested by the City Clerk   
 

ASSESSOR 

 
Present Assessed Value of Structure                     

 

 
Assessed Value with Improvements   

 

 
Eligible or Non-eligible for Tax Abatement  

 

 
Assessor  Date  

 

821 College Street, Cedar Falls Ia 50613

Eaulla Saltzman

e.saltz68@gmail.com 712-899-2998

Peggy Winninger

550 Sheridan Waterloo IA 50701

new roof

May  1, 2019 May 31, 2019

n/an/a

n/a

dotloop verified
11/05/18 7:56 PM EST
OZWN-5NZJ-Y32T-7NBNEaulla Saltzman

Eaulla Saltzman

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/63vY-a1iU-NXhD

winsum5@aol.com 319-240-0105

653



December 3, 2018 

 

To:  City of Cedar Falls 

Re:  Application for Rental Conversion at 821 College Street, Cedar Falls 

 

The property at 821 College Street, Cedar Falls is in the process of being purchased by Chris and Eaulla 
Saltzman with the intention of converting the property back to a single family dwelling for them to live 
in.  The estimated closing date for this purchase is January 9, 2019.  The intent is for Chris, Eaulla, and 
their 3 children to make this their primary residence for many years to come.   

They are applying for the Rental Conversion funds to assist with converting this home from a multiple 
family rental unit to a single family home.  The funds from the Rental Conversion program will go 
towards the cost of replacing the roof per the bid that is submitted with this application.  A new roof is 
well past due for this home and will have a very positive impact on the neighborhood.   

 

 

654



 Defective Summary

This summary is not the entire report. The complete report may include additional information of concern to the client. It is 
recommended that the client read the complete report. 

Exterior Surface and Components 

1.  Door Bell: Hard wired. Inoperative. 

2.  Basement Windows: Steel frame & Wood frame. Broken glass in North 
window. A qualified contractor is recommended to evaluate and 
estimate repairs. 

Roof 

3.  Main. Roof Surface Material: Asphalt shingle. Roof shows signs of deterioration, Roof at 
end of useful life. A qualified roofing contractor is recommended to evaluate.  

4.  Valleys: Asphalt shingle. Showing signs  of deterioration, recommend 
monitoring. A qualified roofing contractor is recommended to evaluate. 

5.  Gutters: Aluminum. Leaking. A licensed contractor should evaluate. 

6.  Center of house. Chimney Chimney: Brick Loose brick noted, Chimney 
requires tuck point repairs. A qualified contractor is recommended 
to evaluate and estimate repairs 

7.  Center of house. Chimney Chimney Flashing: Tar covered Tar is cracking, 
recommend sealing. Monitoring will be required. Tar is prone to 
cracking. 

Milestone Home Inspection, LLC
17:05 November 15, 2018 Page 22 of 23

11-15-18 821 College St. Chris Saltzman.pt6

Palm-Tech Inspector, Copyright © 1998-2018, PDmB, Inc.655



656



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: December 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 1616 Olive 
Street 

 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Hali Simmons purchased 1616 Olive Street in August 2018. The property meets the 
requirements for the program: has been a rental for at least the past three years (since 2013), 
is located in the R-2 zoning district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is 
in a block with less than 75% rentals.  
 
Hali Simmons is proposing to replace the siding, soffit, and fascia of the house and garage. 
Based on the submitted bid by QUEGG Siding, Windows & Roofing the actual cost of the 
improvements listed is $13,247.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the property 
for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold prior to the 
end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. The property has 
passed a major system evaluation (city inspection).  
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

657



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 1616 Olive Street  

and legally described as HIGHLAND ADDITION CEDAR FALLS LOT 6 BLK 5 

 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners:  Hali Marie Simmons (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to Owner 
Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the above-
described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 

60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

658



 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Hali Marie Simmons   

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2018, by Hali Marie 
Simmons. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

659



660



Good morning,

My name is Hali Simmons and in August 2018 I purchased 1616 Olive Street in Cedar Falls. It
had been a rental property for quite some time but now my son and I live there. Attached, please
find my application for the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Grant Program
Application.

The siding, soffit and facia on the house and garage needs to be replaced. It has hail damage that
the previous owner did not repair. Also, one of the renters painted the original green siding
yellow obviously with a paint brush and did a very poor job. One part of the house they did not
even paint. They just left it green.

I got 4 estimates from local businesses ranging from $12,100 to $14,632. I feel this would be a
huge improvement to the curbside appeal of the home as well. If I can provide any additional
information, I shall be glad to do so. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Hali Simmons

661



�������������	
����������������������
���
�������
�������
��������� ����������� �����������������  !"#$%#&%#'(%))* +,--./+0123,4-25,644 +,--./+0123,4-25,6478784.3,964+:4;6<254=233+04,24>?87@A????����
�B ��C����� ��D�������EF��G44 +;<5=3+A7@44 444���C���F������  �E���D�������������D H��78784.3,964+:4;6<254=233+04,24>?87@A@I784 ��������JD ���������� �����������EK�D� �FC�LM78MN?7L LM7IMN?7L N?7G4??NI>G <����� �	����
O���������� �K�ED�
	���P��FC�LM78MN?7L77>0???/.5-234A47N4M4<QQRIMGMN??LG@0??? /.5-23425-+A36/S:1:52/+2;:,./4A4T5,.54?G4M4<QQR>MGMN??LI>0??? +2364U6:V66/4=2-,3W4-6-U65+4AT5,.54?G4M4<QQRGM7GMN??@>80>?? /.5-23425-+A36/S:1:52/+2;:,./4A4T5,.54?G4M4<QQR ���� 
EKX�� �K�ED� �� �D7?MNMN?7L +; ? -YZ[IM7GMN?7L ;=4?N@@\ N0@?? VY]R̂_ZLM78MN?7? ;=478\LI 80L?? 5̂ ^̀���������a��	��P���������� ���  ()#! #))ba��E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Dc �E����Dc ����� ���� N70?N? ? I@0II? ? G\0IG? ?����X��a��E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Dc �E����Dc �����770G8\ ? \70GLL ? >@0G>N���� ���  ()#* #))ba��E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Dc �E����Dc ����� ���� N70?N? ? I@0II? ? G\0IG? ?����X��a��E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Dc �E����Dc �����7708GN ? \70?@N ? >N0IN\���� ���  ()#d #))ba��E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Dc �E����Dc ����� ���� N70?N? ? I@0II? ? G\0IG? ?����X��a��E� ��D� �E���%� ���D�������D� �J����Dc �E����Dc �����770G8G ? \N0??\ ? >@0GI@�����
�������
���������
������()#*���������()#!P()#"������ �����"#)))#�%�����������e O��  �a��E� ����X���a��E� �������F����KC���D ��fF���� O��  ���� 
���������C G\0IG? >N0IN\ ? @@gNN>7 h70I>7gI8 h70I>Ng??
����C ? ? ? ? h?g?? 4e ��K� ���������� �� �X����a�����D������ ���C���F���������H������ �c������ �E �D�  ����C���F�������������C h?g?? h?g?? h?g?? h?g?? h?g??
����C 4 4 h?g?? 4 4 662



�����������	
��

���	���
������������������� ��������� ��� ! "#�� $�%#&' $�%#&( ��! ��#� �)�#���� !&���!�� �� *+, *+, - ./*, -0,1�!�2�3 45'( 67(�8���9��&:;�"�:1�"9$19:$1<=# $!<2# 1�!�2&��>� ?&��#��@ABCDE�FG@CH�I�JADK�LLMN@DO *��PQKH��KFGD ��-R#��&�S�2! ��#� ;#�! �: �!!�)*T,� ��- UDV 	Q �CQQK�W��PF@KV1�!�2&"��X�&�Y�># 1�!�2&"��X�&�#2�Z �#%���X�&�Y�># �#%���X�&�#2�Z[ - , -���#X# ! ���#X# !&�� ��\#%&��#� ��&���#X# !&�2����MCC [-- -��S %�!�� �2���� ?�QAL �FKN�I�]@AHC�̂!#����&8�22� 9 !#����&�� ��\]@AHC _CFV"��̀�VNa�I��FbCD�� c���#;#�!� ? �2���d8�22 e�=#2#�� ;� %̀��#% $=�)#&;#�!#��- � � �e2SXY� ?*��MCC��FPa fe��)\$!<2# ��#�*���KFGD��ALCQVDO .-�#)g $!<2# ��#��QALKDPD�_FP@QE�QJ T�hQQO�
DLiE�QJ *--�bBCVIjPC��QQkE�QJ *.-��"���$ ��$�l��1$1���$R#��&�S�2! $!<2# 8�%!\ �# ?!\ ��#� ���#X# ! m!��&n>#� ��#� �:*T.T 
DP��KFGD ,[ ,[ �/� - 	QAD - - 	QAD� !�<&$!�!S�3&9 �=#)!#%
663



�������������	����
����������������
664



665



666



667



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: December 12, 2018 

SUBJECT:  Demolition of Structure as part of the Northern Cedar Falls Flood   
Buyout Program 

  Project Number: FL-000-2017 
 

As Council may recall, the City recently acquired one additional property (in addition to 
the13 properties in 2017) as part of the 2016 Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout 
Program through the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP). Asbestos containing 
materials were found in the house, which is being scheduled to be removed. After the 
asbestos is removed, the Cedar Falls Fire Division will conduct fire training on the 
property. Once the fire training is complete, the remaining debris and foundation will 
need to be removed, as the grant program requires that the property be returned to 
open space. Three bids for demolition services were received: 
 

Benton’s Sand and Gravel $5,800.00 

Lehman Trucking & Excavating, Inc. $8,000.00 

Vieth Construction $16,500.00 

 
The Community Development Department recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Benton’s Sand and Gravel for the demolition of the structure at 2703 
Timothy Street. It is anticipated that the demolition will be completed by January 2019.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
CC: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

668



 

Summary of Demolition Bids 

 

 
Property 

Benton’s 
Sand and 

Gravel 

Lehman 
Trucking & 
Excavating, 

Inc. 

Vieth 
Construction 

2703 Timothy St $5,800 $8,000 $16,500 

TOTAL BID $5,800 $8,000 $16,500 

669



670



671



672



673



674



675



676



677



678



679



680



681



682



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: December 12, 2018  

 SUBJECT: Parkade Brick Replacement Project 
 Project Number:  RC-000-3180  
 

The City completed a selection and hiring process for general engineering services 
support, due to a staffing shortage of civil engineers.  Outside of general support, staff 
anticipated several CIP projects would be assigned too.  Some of these were noted in the 
contract cover memo from November 27, 2018.  On December 3rd, staff explained that 
supplemental agreements would be reviewed for these CIP projects, ensuring an adequate 
scope of work and review of anticipated cost for design services. 
 
Attached is a proposed contract for Parkade brick replacement design.  The project spans 
along Main Street from 1st to 6th Street.  Three options will be prepared for the existing 
sidewalk area (back of curb to front of buildings).  One option will be to utilize the same 
pattern, colors & brick sizes as are currently in place.  Two additional options will be 
developed.  Each option will have a cost estimate.  A sidewalk design expanding the 
Parkade design onto the sidestreets, continuing the streetscape expansion, will also be 
completed as a part of this.  A public meeting and Council committee meeting are planned, 
to select an option for construction.  The contract also includes preliminary and final design 
services for the first phase of the project: a 2-block reconstruction of the sidewalk.  The 
total fee for services on this project will not exceed $89,870.  This includes $3,930 in 
“contingency items” on two meetings that staff may be able to lead, but would like to allow 
for the potential of consultant involvement, if needed.  We would anticipate bidding Phase 1 
in February 2020, with construction completed by June 30, 2020. 
 
This project is identified in the current CIP, under #94: Downtown Brick Replacement. It 
anticipated addressing one block per year.  In the upcoming CIP, staff will be adjusting the 
design costs and construction timing, recommending construction of 2-blocks at a time.  
The project would then be completed within three years.  The City is applying for a Gaming 
grant and requesting funds for the streetscape expansion as well as these Parkade 
improvements. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.  Thank you. 
 
Attachment: Supplemental Agreement #1: Parkade Brick Replacement Project 

683



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

2019 Engineering Services 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number RC-000-3180 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (CLIENT), 
and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated December 3, 2018 for the 
municipal engineering support services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include Scope of 
Services and Compensation for additional items required as a part of the 2019 Engineering Services,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. The CONSULTANT shall provide Professional Services for design for renovations to the existing 
streetscape parkade, which extends along Main Street from W. 1st Street to W. 6th Street and 
construction documents for Phase 1.  
 

B. The CONSULTANT shall complete a topographic survey of the project site. 
 

1. Includes five blocks along Main Street from building front to back of street curb. 
2. Includes existing site terrain grades and locations of existing above ground features.  
3. Provide a CADD terrain model with one-foot contour intervals, and spot elevations.  

 
C. The CONSULTANT shall complete concept designs for the purposes of providing the CLIENT with 

preliminary options prior to design efforts. 
 

1. Attend a kickoff meeting with CLIENT Staff to discuss project goals and objectives project 
approach and schedule. 

2. Perform a site visit to review existing conditions and evaluate option for alternative design 
considerations. 

3. Prepare three concept designs for the streetscape parkade along Main Street. The 
concept designs shall include replacing the current streetscape as it currently exists as 
well as two alternative designs which shall consider aesthetics, installation, maintenance 
and costs. Additionally a design concept for the incorporation of minor parkade 
improvements along the intersecting side streets extending east and west respectively to 
State and Washington Streets should be included.  

684



2019 Engineering Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. RC-000-3180 

4. Obtain quantities and prepare cost opinions for each concept design. 
5. Attend a meeting with the CLIENT to review concept designs and cost opinions for input 

and direction. 
6. Prepare a phasing plan for the five blocks of improvements in coordination with the 

CLIENT for implementation over multiple years. 
7. Public meeting to go through evaluation, recommendation and phasing recommendation.  
8. Council committee meeting alternative. This is a possible contingency item for which costs 

are included below. Email approval from the City’s project manager is required prior to 
prior to completing this task item.  

9. Finalize the preferred concept design and cost opinion. 
10. Attend a meeting with the CLIENT for review and acceptance of the preferred concept 

design. 
 

D. The CONSULTANT shall complete preliminary design services. 
 

1. Prepare preliminary design of site demolition items for the project area. 
2. Prepare preliminary design for site layout improvements for the preferred pavement and 

paver design concept through the corridor. 
3. Prepare preliminary design for the reuse of existing site furniture and amenities such as 

benches, flower planter beds, trash cans, wayfinding signage and bike racks. Wayfinding 
signage modifications recommendations may be included.  

4. Attend a meeting with the CLIENT to review preliminary plans and to receive input and 
direction. 

5. Attend a public meeting. Discussion items should include but are not necessarily limited to 
access and staging.  

 
E. The CONSULTANT shall complete final design services and preparation of construction 

documents for Phase 1 (the remainder of the final design shall be completed during subsequent 
project Phases).  
 

1. Prepare final design and plans for improvements including pavements, pavers, site 
furniture and site amenities and project staging which should include business access 
information.  

2. Utility Coordination 
3. Prepare a final grading plan with one foot contours, spot elevations and construction 

notes.  
4. Prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan for the project site and apply for NPDES 

Permit No. 2 through the Iowa DNR for Phase 1 improvements. 
5. Prepare supplemental technical specifications for proposed site improvements. 
6. Prepare construction details for project improvements.  
7. Submit site plan drawings to CLIENT Staff for review and comments. 
8. Prepare a final cost opinion of proposed improvements. 
9. Provide final plans and specifications to the CLIENT. 
10. Attend meetings with CLIENT for reviews and approvals.  

 
F. The CONSULTANT shall provide bidding assistance for the Phase 1 construction bid letting. The 

Bid letting should generally take place on or before February 14, 2020 with construction to be 
complete by June 30, 2020. 
 

1. Preparation of the project manual, including bid forms, form of contract, instruction of 
bidders and general conditions. 

2. Preparation of addenda, if required. 
3. Address bidder questions. 
4. Neighborhood meeting for construction kickoff following the bid letting and prior to 

construction. This is a possible contingency item for which costs are included below. Email 
approval from the City’s project manager is required prior to completing this task item. 

685



G. Additional Services 

2019 Engineering Services 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project No. RC-000-3180 

1. The CLIENT may request Additional Services from the CONSULTANT not included in the 
Scope of Services as outlined. Additional Services may include, but are not necessarily 
limited to; expanding the scope of the project or the work to be completed (e.g. 
construction services are not included in the project scope); requesting the development of 
various documents; extending the time to complete a project through no fault of the 
CONSULTANT; or requesting additional work items that increase the Engineering 
Services and corresponding costs. 

II. COMPENSATION 

Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 
other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a not 
to exceed fee of Eighty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty Dollars ($85.940.00). Contingency 
items, as listed above, may be utilized as defined up to a maximum amount of Three Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($3.930). The compensation for this supplemental agreement is 
to be segregated from the original agreement. 

Ill. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSUL TANT shall remain as specified in 
the Professional Services Agreement dated December 3, 2018. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 

By: ____________ _ 

Printed Name: __________ _ Printed Name: Lindsay Beaman 

Title: _____________ _ Title: _ ____....B ..... u ..... s ..... in"""e __ s~s"""U~ni"'"t .... L-=-ea=d ... e ..... r _______ _ 

Date: _____________ _ Date: __ D_e~c_e~m~b~e_r_5~20~1_8~----------

686



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: December 4, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY2019 Budget Amendment 

 
Please find attached the notice for a FY19 budget amendment.  This budget 
amendment is necessary due to the timing of various projects.    
 

The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 

that the hearing be set for January 7, 2019. 

 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

687



046
Jun-18

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Form 653.C1 AMENDMENT OF FY2018-2019 CITY BUDGET

     The City Council of Cedar Falls in BLACK HAWK County, Iowa

will meet at 

at 7:00 p.m. on 1/7/2019
(hour) (Date)

 ,for the purpose of amending the current budget of the city for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019
(year)

 by changing estimates of revenue and expenditure appropriations in the following functions for the reasons given.

 Additional detail is available at the city clerk's office showing revenues and expenditures by fund type and by activity.

Total Budget  Total Budget

as certified Current after Current

or last amended Amendment Amendment

Revenues & Other Financing Sources

Taxes Levied on Property 1 20,820,495 20,820,495

Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0

   Net Current Property Taxes 3 20,820,495 0 20,820,495

Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0

TIF Revenues 5 3,753,970 3,753,970

Other City Taxes 6 5,957,056 5,957,056

Licenses & Permits 7 934,000 934,000

Use of Money and Property 8 723,375 723,375

Intergovernmental 9 23,111,603 23,111,603

Charges for Services 10 12,180,850 12,180,850

Special Assessments 11 0 0

Miscellaneous 12 1,584,333 1,584,333

Other Financing Sources 13 2,986,590 2,986,590

Transfers In 14 12,817,790 12,817,790

Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 84,870,062 0 84,870,062

Expenditures & Other Financing Uses

Public Safety 16 11,601,490 11,601,490

Public Works 17 13,553,020 13,553,020

Health and Social Services 18 20,500 4,000 24,500

Culture and Recreation 19 8,004,550 8,004,550

Community and Economic Development 20 2,915,600 2,915,600

General Government 21 5,023,550 5,023,550

Debt Service 22 1,007,000 1,007,000

Capital Projects 23 26,940,050 4,350,000 31,290,050

    Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 69,065,760 4,354,000 73,419,760

Business Type / Enterprises 25 9,865,550 9,865,550

Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 78,931,310 4,354,000 83,285,310

 Transfers Out 27 12,817,790 12,817,790

Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 91,749,100 4,354,000 96,103,100

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out Fiscal Year 29 -6,879,038 -4,354,000 -11,233,038

Beginning Fund Balance July 1 30 87,393,024 87,393,024

Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 80,513,986 -4,354,000 76,159,986

Explanation of increases or decreases in revenue estimates, appropriations, or available cash:

There will be no increase in tax levies to be paid in the current fiscal year named above related to the proposed 

budget amendment.  Any increase in expenditures set out above will be met from the increased non-property tax 

revenues and cash balances not budgeted or considered in this current budget.

City Clerk/ Finance Officer Name

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Jennifer Rodenbeck

These over expenditures are primarily due to the timing of capital projects and these expenditures will be covered by 

cash reserves.

688



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: December 10, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Setting a Public Hearing for a Rezoning Request – Prairie West II 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone a property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms, Owner; CGA Inc., Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

40.62 acres at the North end of Arbors Drive and the West end of Richard 
Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted a request to rezone 40.62 acres of land off of the North end of 
Arbors Drive and the West end of Richard Road from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential. The 
area being rezoned consists of two different parcels of land, see areas outlined in red in the map 
below. The rezoning will allow for the development of single family homes similar to the 
neighboring subdivisions of the Prairie West and Prairie Winds developments.  
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned agricultural since 
the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970. 
The land is surrounded by R-1, Single Unit 
Residential zoning to the South and East and MU, 
Mixed Use Residential District to the Northeast. 
The owner wishes to rezone the land for future 
residential development. The other half of the 
northern parcel was rezoned to MU in July of 
2016. The rezoning of these properties must be 
carefully considered by evaluating the 
characteristics of the land and surrounding 
properties. This staff report will outline a number 
of these elements in order to have a firm 
understanding of the future use of this property. 
 

689



ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the A-1, agricultural zoning district is to act as a “holding zone” for future 
development when municipal services (sanitary sewer, water, roads) are accessible to the site.  
When these services are available, the land is ripe for development according to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. Before land can be developed it must be zoned appropriately, which will 
then allow for platting, as necessary, and construction.  
 
As previously mentioned, this 40.62 acre property is surrounded by residential zoning. Aldrich 
Elementary School was constructed directly to the south. The property to the north is zoned for 
a future mixed use development and to the east is the Prairie West 7th Addition residential 
subdivision. The land to the west is zoned A-1, Agricultural, and consists of farmland and the 
floodplain along Dry Run Creek.  
 
Zoning considerations involve evaluation of the following four criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
The Future Land Use Map identifies this and the surrounding properties as Low Density 
Residential and Greenways/Floodplain. Low density residential emphasizes single family 
detached development. Typical densities range from 1 to 4 units per acre. The requested 
R-1 Zoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Map. Development of the property will 
provide additional residential housing in proximity to the new elementary school.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2) Are areas of this site in the Floodplain? Are there 

environmental sensitive areas that need to be 
protected? 
As both of these lots have been farmed the 
topography of the land is relatively flat. Both 
properties border the floodplain boundary (see 
image to the right). The floodway is indicated by 
red hashing, the blue shaded area represents the 
boundaries of the 100 year flood plain, and the 
orange shaded area represents the boundaries of 
the 500 year flood plain. The properties subject to 

Future Land Use Map with Categories 

690



this rezoning do not fall within the floodplain. There does not appear to be any 
environmentally sensitive areas on these sites that need to be protected. This will be 
confirmed when the land is subdivided for development. If any sensitive areas are found 
during the required environmental assessment they will be protected.  
 

3) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer and water services?  
These developments, as well as any development in the city will be provided with full 
municipal services. Sanitary sewer and water are readily available to the site.  
Connections to sanitary sewer and water service are available from Arbors Drive to the 
South and Richard Road to the East. There will also be future connections to Greenhill 
Road to the north as development continues in this area. In order to further develop the 
land to the west of the proposed site, the necessary infrastructure (i.e. sanitary sewer and 
water) will need to be extended to the western boundaries of this site. 
 

4) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
Development of the property under R-1 Zoning will be possible by extending Arbors Drive 
from the south, which will also extend north as part of the West Village Subdivision to 
provide a street connection to Greenhill Road. Richard Road will be extended west to 
provide access to a future subdivision from the east. Any future subdivision will need to 
provide a pattern of streets that connects with the existing street network in this part of 
the community.   

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposal 
and have no comments that need to be addressed on the proposed item.  

 
The rezoning of this property would allow for the continued development of residential lots. A 
notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on November 20, 2018 regarding this 
rezoning request.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction and 
Public Hearing 
11/28/2018 

Chair Oberle opened the public hearing and Mr. Wingert noted that he will be abstaining 
from this item. Ms. Lehmann provided background information on the request. She noted 
that all criteria with regard to future land use map consistency, protection of environmentally 
sensitive areas, access to needed municipal services, and adequate street connection to the 
site, have been met.  Staff recommended approval of the request. Ms. Oberle asked if there 
were any comments from the public. There were none. The Commission agreed that the 
request was fairly straight forward. Ms. Lehmann noted that if the Commission felt it was 
appropriate they could forward the request on to City Council without reviewing it again at 
the next Commission meeting. The Commissioners discussed the possibility and agreed 
that reviewing the request a second time was not needed. 
  
Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Leeper, 
Oberle, and Saul), 1 abstention (Wingert) and 0 nays. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council set a date for 
public hearing on January 7, 2019 for this rezoning request. 
 
Attachments: Location Map, Rezoning Exhibit, Letter of Intent  

691



Dry
Run

Creek

(SW)

Aldrich
Elementary

School
Arbors Dr

Richard Rd

Flynn Dr

Reese Rd

Vera Way

Ironwood Dr

Ed
en

 W
ay

Leigh Ln

Do
na

ld
D r

Ashworth Dr

Blythe Blvd

Andy Ave

Erik Rd

HorseshoeDr

Vera Way (Planned)

Co
he

nC
t(P

lan
ne

d)

Greenhill Rd

University Ave

R-1

R-1

C-2R-4 C-1

RP R-3

A-1

MU

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
November 28, 2018

Rezone 40.62 acres from A-1 to R-1
Panther Farms, LLC

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra iriePkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rs e
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

692



693



 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 

16 East Main Street ● Marshalltown, Iowa  50158 ● Telephone 641-752-6701 ● Fax 641-752-2849 
Toll Free 800-542-7981 ● www.cgaconsultants.com 

 

October 18, 2018 
 
Planning Department 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay St 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
 

RE: Prairie West 2 Subdivision Rezoning 

 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
On behalf of Panther Farms, LLC, we would like to submit a rezoning application for parcel 
8914-27-226-002 and part of 8914-22-478-004 as indicated on the rezoning exhibit. This land 
will be used as the next phase of the Prairie West subdivision and consist of a number of single-
family homes to be built at a later date.  
 
At this time the application is only to rezone the property to R1 from A1 and does not include 
platting or other planning efforts.   
 
Please contact me at 641-752-6701, or stroskey@cgaconsultants.com if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

 
Stephen Troskey       
Planner - Project Manager 

694



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 29, ZONING, CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to change the zoning of 40.62 acres generally located at the north end of Arbors 

Drive and the west end of Richard Road from A-1 Agricultural to R-1, Residence as described 

below, and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in zoning, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to amend Section  

29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, by removing and changing from the  A-1 Agricultural Zoning District, and 

placed in the R-1 Residence Zoning District the following described real estate: 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

SECTION 27 AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, ALL 

IN TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5th P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID 

SECTION 27; THENCE, S89°56'37"W 1330.50' ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27 TO THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 

THENCE, N0°00'46"E 968.98' ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, N50°17'38"E 537.79'; THENCE, 

N50°13'16"E 301.37'; THENCE, NORTHEASTERLY 290.97' ALONG THE ARC OF A 

500.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A CHORD BEARING 

OF N66°54'44"E AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 286.88'; THENCE, N83°35'00"E 45.01'; 

THENCE, S0°11'02"E 339.85'; THENCE, N89°53'10"E 375.31' TO A POINT ON THE EAST 

LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 

THENCE, S0°00'14"W 1282.49' ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, CONTAINING 40.62 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND 

RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY 

 

695



And that said public hearing shall be held on the 7th day of January, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., 

in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 17
th

 day of December, 2018. 

 

 

  _________________________ 

                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

696



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED CHANGES IN  

SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND  

DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29), ZONING, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA BY REMOVING CERTAIN REAL ESTATE 

FROM THE A-1, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND PLACING SAID 

REAL ESTATE IN THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended approval to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for an amendment to Section 

20-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, and known as the Zoning Ordinance and that the City Council of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a request to amend said Ordinance by removing the following 

described real estate from A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the same in the  R-1, Residence 

District, as follows: 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27 AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 

WEST OF THE 5th P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, 

IOWA. 

 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, S89°56'37"W 1330.50' ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 

OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27 TO 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 

1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; THENCE, N0°00'46"E 968.98' ALONG THE WEST 

LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 

THENCE, N50°17'38"E 537.79'; THENCE, N50°13'16"E 301.37'; THENCE, 

NORTHEASTERLY 290.97' ALONG THE ARC OF A 500.00' RADIUS CURVE, 

CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF N66°54'44"E 

AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 286.88'; THENCE, N83°35'00"E 45.01'; THENCE, 

S0°11'02"E 339.85'; THENCE, N89°53'10"E 375.31' TO A POINT ON THE EAST 

LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 27; 

THENCE, S0°00'14"W 1282.49' ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, CONTAINING 40.62 ACRES.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND 

RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY 

 

There will be a public hearing to consider said proposed rezoning on the 7th day of January, 

2019 at 7:00 o’clock P.M., in the Council Chambers and said request is now on file in the office 

697



of the City Clerk in the City Hall in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and is available for reference 

and inspection by the public.  Comments on said proposed change in said Ordinance may be 

made in writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set forth herein and oral comments will 

be heard at said hearing. 

_________________________________ 

           Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

698


	Top
	1. Regular meeting of December 3, 2018.
	181203MINUTES.docx

	2. Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan
	1_Memo To Council Approving Amendment No. 5 on December 17, 2018.docx
	2_Amend No. 5 to Downtown URP - Authorizing Resolution.docx
	3_Consultation Session Minutes and Agenda 11-27-18.pdf

	3. Resolution approving and adopting Amendment No. 5 to the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Plan.
	4. Amendment No. 5 to the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan
	1_Memo To Council Approving Amendment No. 5 on December 17, 2018.docx
	3_Consultation Session Minutes and Agenda 11-27-18.pdf
	2_Amend No. 5 to Unified Hwy 58 URP - Authorizing Resolution.docx

	5. Resolution adopting Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan
	6. Reappt of Roger White to Health Trust
	Reappt Memo.docx

	7. Goal Setting Session report
	Cedar Falls - Goal Setting Session Rpt  - 2018.pdf

	8. Certified Lists
	AdminAsst-CertList12-18.pdf
	WWTPOprI-CertList12-18.pdf

	9. Human Rights Commission - FY18 Annual Report
	Annual Report FY18 - Council Memo.doc
	Annual Report FY18.pdf

	10. Liquor
	Liquor Beer 12-17.doc

	11. Elected Official 2019 Pay - Jen Rodenbeck
	1-COUNCIL RAISES RESOLUTION.MEM.doc
	2-Pr19dec.pdf

	12. FY20 Goals
	0-goal cover council.mem.doc
	FY20 CC Goals final.pdf

	13. Job Classes
	0-job classes council.mem.doc
	1-Non-union job classifications - non exempt.pdf
	2-Non-union job classifications - exempt.pdf

	14. 2019-21 Flood Buyout Leases
	2019-21 Flood Buyout Leases - 12-17.pdf

	15. Rec Fee Schedule
	Mayor &amp;amp; CC fee proposal-18.docx
	Fee Schedule Revised15.xls

	16. Public Art Project Site Approval Request - Jon Crews
	1-Crews Project Memo_12_10_18.pdf
	2-Jon Crews Memorial Artwork Proposal.pdf
	3-Eternal_Flame_12_10_18.pdf
	4-VFW_Approval_Move_Flame.pdf
	5-Flame_Hagarty_Amvets_American_Legion.pdf

	17. W. 1st Street Acquisition
	1.council memo on w 1st street ROW acquisitions 9-13-18.docx
	7.W1stPropAcq181217.pdf
	2.1872_001.pdf
	3.1873_001.pdf
	4.1874_001.pdf
	5.1875_001.pdf
	6.Parcel 5A scanned signed docs.pdf

	18. Clay Street Park REAP Grant
	1. REAP Grant - Clay Street Park.docx
	2. REAP Development Grant.pdf

	19. Rental to SF - 1416 Clay
	1. Memo to Council - 1416 Clay Street.docx
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 1416 Clay Street.docx
	3. supplimental materials - 1416 Clay Street.pdf

	20. Rental to SF - 821 College
	1. Memo to Council - 821 College Street.docx
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 821 College.docx
	3. Supplimental materials - 821 College Street.pdf

	21. Rental to SF - 1616 Olive Street
	1. Memo to Council - 1616 Olive Street.docx
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 1616Olive.docx
	3. Supplimental materials - 1616 Olive Street.pdf

	22. Demolition Contract - 2703 Timothy Street
	1_Demolition Staff Memo to Council 12-17-18.docx
	2_Summary of Demolition Bids 11-27-18.docx
	3_Demolition Contract - Benton&amp;#39;s Sand and Gravel.pdf

	23. Parkade Brick Replacement
	1-Council memo-Parkade brick replacement 12-17-18.docx
	2. Supplemental_Agreement_2018-12-12_StreetscapeIncreasesFee.pdf

	24. Set Public Hearing 1/7/19 for FY2019 Budget Amend #1
	1 Budget Amend #1 Set Pub Hear Memo.doc
	2 CedarFalls_budget_amend_1_FY19.pdf

	25. Setting Public Hearing - Rezoning, Prairie West II
	1. CC staff Report for Prairie West II Rezoning - Setting Public Hearing.docx
	2. ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3.. 5722 Rezoning Exhibit.pdf
	4. Cover Letter.docx
	5. CC Rezoning Resolution Setting Public Hearing - Prairie West II edit.docx
	6.  CC Notice- Prairie West II.docx

	26. Bills &amp; Payroll 12/17
	Bottom

